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CAUTIONARYR NOTE CONCERNING FORWAR RD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains both historical and forff ward-looking statements, iincll diudi gng statements
rellatedd to our ffutff urt e res lults a dnd perfforff mance. All statements that are not statements of historical faff ct are, or may
be deemed to be, forff ward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reforff m Act
of 1995. Similarly, statements that describe our objectives, plans or goals are or may be forff ward-looking
statements. These forff ward-looking statements reflff ect our current expectations concerning futff urt e results and
events; generally can be identififf ed by the use of statements that include phrases such as “believe,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “forff esee,” “likely,” “will,” “may,” “could,” “estimate” or other similar words or
phrases; and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other faff ctors that are diffff iff cult to predict and
which may cause our actuat l results, perforff mance or achievements to be diffff eff rent frff om any futff urt e results,
perforff mance or achievements expressed or implied by these statements. These risks, uncertainties and other
faff ctors are discussed in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Other
risks, uncertainties or other faff ctors, or updates to those discussed herein, may be described in our other fiff lings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), including our reports on Form 10-Q and Form 8-K,
press releases, public confeff rence calls, webcasts, our social media and blog posts and on our website at
paramount.com. Thhere mayy bbe addidditiionall riiskks, uncertaiintiies a dnd othher faff ctors thhat we ddo not currentllyy iview as
materiiall or thhat are not necessariillyy kknown. The forff ward-looking statements included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K are made only as of the date of this document, and we do not undertake any obligation to publicly
update any forff ward-looking statements to reflff ect subsequent events or circumstances.

PART I

Item 1. Businii ess.

Overview

We are a leading global media, streaming and entertainment company that creates premium content and
experiences forff audiences worldwide. Driven by iconic consumer brands, our portfolff io includes CBS, Showtime
Networks, Paramount Picturt es, Nickelodeon, MTV, Comedy Central, BET, Paramount+ and Pluto TV. We hold
one of the industry’rr s most extensive libraries of television and fiff lm titles. In addition to offff eff ring innovative
streaming services and digital video products, we also provide powerfulff capaa bia lities in production, distribution
and advertising solutions.

Our strategy is grounded in three key strengths: (1) our broad range of popular content; (2) our multiplatforff m
distribution model; and (3) our global operating reach. In 2022, we demonstrated the continued breadth and depth
of our content capaa bia lities across our distribution platforff ms — broadcast, including the leading network in the
United States (the “U.S.”), CBS; a portfolff io of cabla e networks that includes Nickelodeon, MTV and BET; a
rapia dly growing subscription streaming service, Paramount+; a leading frff ee advertising-supported streaming
television (“FAST”) service in the U.S., Pluto TV; and an iconic Hollywood studit o, Paramount Picturt es. Our
global operating footff prt int includes content production capaa bia lities across Latin America, the United Kingdom
(the “U.K.”), Europe, the Middle East, Afrff ica and Asia Pacififf c, cabla e networks in many key markets and deep
commercial relationships with strategic partners around the world.

2022 was a notabla e year forff us in streaming. Benefiff ting frff om a slate of original series, including HalHH o, 1883,
1923, TulTT sll a KiKK ng, CrCC iminal MiMM nds: Evolution and SEAEE L TeTT am, and original fiff lms, including Orphan:rr FiFF rsrr t KiKK ll
and Beavisii and Butt-HeHH ad Do the UniUU versrr e, our global streaming subscribers grew 38% year-over-year to 77.3
million and Paramount+ subscribers grew 70% year-over-year to 55.9 million. According to Antenna,
Paramount+ is the number one premium streaming service in domestic sign-ups and gross subscriber additions
since its launch in March 2021 through the end of 2022, and had the most sign-ups in 2022. In sports, we reached
a six-year multiplatforff m U.S. media rights extension forff the Union of European Footbat ll Associations (“UEFA”)
Champions League. We also recently announced that we will be fulff ly integrating SHOWTIME into Paramount+
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across both streaming and linear platforff ms later in 2023. In frff ee, Pluto TV global monthly active users (MAUs)
increased 22% year-over-year to 78.5 million.

Paramount Picturt es released six fiff lms in 2022 that debuted at number one at the domestic box offff iff ce — Scream,
JacJJ kaskk s ForFF ever, TheTT Lost Citytt , Sonic TheTT HeHH dgehog 2, TopTT Gun: MavMM erick and Smile. These hits were led by
TopTT Gun: MavMM erick, the fiff ftff h highest-grossing domestic movie of all time and fiff rst fiff lm to top the domestic box
offff iff ce on both Memorial Day and Labora Day. Following its theatrical run,rr the fiff lm has continued to draw big
audiences in the U.S. digital home entertainment market and on Paramount+. Released in the faff ll, Smile became
the highest-grossing horror fiff lm of the year worldwide.

CBS fiff nished the 2021-2022 season as America’s number one broadcast network in primetime forff the 14th
consecutive season. In entertainment, CBS was number one across multiple genres — drama (N(( CNN ICC SII )SS ; new comedy
(Ghoststt ); primetime news series (60 MiMM nutes); late night series (TheTT Late Show with Stephee n ColCC bert)t ; and the
number one daytime lineup forff the 35th consecutive year. CBS Sports delivered its most-watched National
Footbat ll League (the “NFL”) regular season in seven years, while Paramount+ had its most-streamed NFL regular
season ever, recording double-digit year-over-year growth. Additionally, forff the 14th consecutive year, CBS
Sports maintained college footff bat ll’s highest average viewership. Beginning next season, we will air Big Ten
footff bat ll and basketbat ll games as part of a multiplatforff m agreement that extends through the end of the decade.

Our portfolff io of cabla e networks attracted audiences through a broad range of shows, including the most watched
original series in the U.S. across all of television, YeYY llowsww tone, and one of the world’s most popular preschool
series, PAPP W Patrol. In 2022, adult cabla e series on our cabla e networks accounted forff three of the top fiff ve and fiff ve
of the top ten series among adults 18 to 34. Nickelodeon networks accounted forff seven of the top ten cabla e series
among kids two to 11 and returt ned to share growth forff the fiff rst time in fiff ve years.

In 2022, we focff used on expanding our global footff prt int and building key distribution partnerships with industryrr
leaders including Sky, CANAA AL+ and Virgin Media. We launched Paramount+ in South Korea, the U.K., Ireland,
Italy, France, Germany, Switzerland and Austria, and in the U.S., launched a fiff rst-of-ff its-kind partnership with
Walmart to offff eff r Paramount+ Essential to Walmart+ members. SkyShowtime, our streaming joint venturt e with
Comcast, launched in Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden (the “Nordics”). Finally, we launched Pluto TV in
Canada with Corusrr and in the Nordics with Viapla ay Group.

We continued our commitment to diversity, equity and inclusion (“DEI”) in 2022. We hosted our fourff th annual
Global Inclusion Week, a week-long initiative feff aturt ing conversations, panels and workshops designed to ensure
our workforff ce and culturt e reflff ect, celebrate and elevate the diversity of our audiences and communities. We also
continued to advance Content forff Change, a companywide initiative designed to use the power of our content,
creative supply chain and culturt e to counteract bias, stereotypes and hate. We released our third Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report, and made progress on our ESG strategy and goals across our three focff us
areas: (1) On-Screen Content & Social Impact, (2) Workforff ce & Culturt e and (3) Sustainabla e Production &
Operations. We also hosted our 26th annual Community Day, a global day of community service focff used on
causes and issues that resonate with our employees and audiences.

We operate through the folff lowing segments:

• TV MeMM dia. Our TV MeMM dia segment consists of our (1) domestic and international broadcast networks and
owned television stations; (2) domestic and international extensions of our cabla e networks; and (3) domestic
and international television studit o operations, and production and distribution of fiff rst-runrr syndicated
programming. TV MeMM dia generated appra oximately 72% of our consolidated revenues in 2022.

• Dirii ect-tt to-tt ConCC sumer.rr Our Direct-to-ConsCC umer segment consists of our portfolff io of domestic and
international pay and frff ee streaming services. Direct-to-ConsCC umer generated appra oximately 16% of our
consolidated revenues in 2022.
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• FiFF lii mll ed EnE tett rtaitt nii ment.tt Our FiFF lml ed EntEE ertainment segment consists of our production and acquisition of
fiff lms, series and short-forff m content forff release and licensing in media around the world, including in theaters,
on streaming services, on television, and through digital home entertainment and DVDs. FiFF lmll ed
EntEE ertainment generated appra oximately 13% of our consolidated revenues in 2022.

We were organized as a Delaware corporrr ation in 1986. In December 2019, we changed our name to
ViacomCBS Inc. in connection with the merger of Viacom Inc. (“Viacom”) and CBS Corporrr ation (“CBS”)
(the “Merger”). In Februarr ryrr 2022, we changed our name to Paramount Global. Unless the context requires
otherwise, refeff rences in this document to “Paramount,” “the Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” mean Paramount
Global and its consolidated subsidiaries, to “CBS” mean CBS and its consolidated subsidiaries prior to the Merger
and to “Viacom” mean Viacom and its consolidated subsidiaries prior to the Merger.

Our principal offff iff ces are located at 1515 Broadway, New York, New York 10036. Our telephone number is (212)
258-6000 and our website is paramount.com. Inforff mation included on or accessible through our website is not
intended to be incorporrr ated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We have two classes of common stock, Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock (together, our
“Common Stock”), both of which are listed on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC, under the ticker symbols
“PARARR A” and “PARARR ,” respectively. Owners of our Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share.
Shares of our Class B Common Stock do not have voting rights. As of December 31, 2022, National
Amusements, Inc. (“NAI”), a closely held corporrr ation that owns and operates movie screens in the U.S., the U.K.
and South America, directly or indirectly owned appra oximately 77.4% of our voting Class A Common Stock,
representing appra oximately 9.8% of our Common Stock. NAI is not subject to the reporting requirements of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Our Segments

TV MeMM dia

Our TV MeMM dia segment consists of our (1) broadcast operations — the CBS Television Network, our domestic
broadcast television network; CBS Stations, our owned television stations; and our international frff ee-to-air
networks, Network 10, Channel 5, Telefeff and Chilevisión; (2) domestic premium and basic cabla e networks,
including Paramount Media Networks, Nickelodeon, BET Media Group and CBS Sports Network, and
international extensions of certain of these brands; and (3) domestic and international television studit o operations,
including CBS Studit os, Paramount Television Studit os and MTV Entertainment Studit os, as well as CBS Media
Venturt es, which produces and distributes fiff rst-runrr syndicated programming. TV MeMM dia also includes a number of
digital properties such as CBS News Streaming forff 24-hour news and CBS Sports HQ forff sports news and
analysis.

TV MeMM dia’s revenues are generated principally frff om advertising; affff iff liate and subscription revenues principally
comprised of feff es received frff om multichannel video programming distributors (“MVPDs”) and third-party live
television streaming services (“virtuat l MVPDs” or “vMVPDs”) forff carriage of our cabla e networks (cabla e affff iff liate
feff es) and our owned television stations (retransmission feff es), and feff es received frff om television stations forff their
affff iff liation with the CBS Television Network (“reverse compensation”); and the licensing and distribution of our
content and other rights. In 2022, advertising, affff iff liate and subscription, and licensing and other generated
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appra oximately 43%, 38% and 19%, respectively, of the segment’s total revenues. TV MeMM dia generated
appra oximately 72%, 80% and 83% of our consolidated revenues in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Broadcast

CBS Television Network. The CBS Television Network (the “CBS Network”), through CBS Entertainment,
CBS News and CBS Sports, distributes entertainment programming, news, public affff aff irs programs and sports.
CBS Network content also is availabla e on the internet, including through: CBS.com, CBSNews.com,
CBSSports.com and related appsa ; our streaming services, such as Paramount+, CBS News Streaming and Pluto
TV; and MVPDs and vMVPDs. CBS Entertainment acquires or develops and schedules the programming on the
CBS Network, which includes primetime comedies and dramas, reality, specials, kids’ programs, daytime dramas,
game shows and late night. CBS News operates a worldwide news organization, providing the CBS Network,
CBS News Radio and digital platforff ms with regularly scheduled news and public affff aff irs programs. CBS Sports
broadcasts on the CBS Network include certain regular season and playoffff NFL games, including post-season
American Footbat ll Confeff rence wild card playoffff ,ff divisional playoffff and championship games and, on a rotating
basis with other networks, the Super Bowl; the National Collegiate Athletic Association’s (the “NCAA”)
Division I Men’s Basketbat ll Tournament and marquee regular-season college basketbat ll games; regular-season
college footff bat ll games; the PGA TOUR, the Masters and the PGA Championship; and certain UEFA Champions
League games.

CBS Stations. CBS Stations consists of our 29 owned broadcast television stations, all of which operate under
licenses granted by the Federal Communications Commission (the “FCC”) pursuant to the Communications Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Communications Act”). Licensees must seek to renew each license everyrr eight years.
Our stations are located in the six largest, and 15 of the top 20, television markets in the U.S. We own multiple
stations within the same Nielsen-designated market area in 10 maja or markets, including New York, Los Angeles
and Philadelphia. The stations broadcast news, pubu lic affff aff irs, sports and other programming to serve their local
markets. Local versions of CBS News Streaming offff eff r local news frff om certain of our owned stations.

International Free-to-Air Networks. We operate a number of frff ee-to-air networks around the world:
Network 10 in Australia whose brands include 10, 10 Bold, 10 Peach, 10 Shake and 10 Play; Channel 5, a public
service broadcaster in the U.K. whose brands include 5, 5 Action, 5 Select, 5Star, 5USA, Milkshake and My5;
Telefeff in Argentina whose brands include Telefeff Noticias, Mi Telefeff , Telefeff Internacional, tlfeff sports, Telefeff
Channels on Pluto TV and Mitelefeff ; and Chilevisión in Chile whhose brands include Chilevisión Noticias, CHV
and Chilevisión Channels on Pluto TV.

C blablCC e

Paramount Media Networks. Paramount Medidia Networkks connects wiithh glgl boball a diudiences thhroughough iits iic ionic
brbra dnds ― CMT, a countryyrr musiic a dnd lliiffeff stylyle chhannell; Comedydy Centrall, a comedy-dy-ffocff usedd bbra dnd thhat iincll dudes
sta dnd-up speciialls, skketchh shhows, ad ldult a inimatiion a dnd llate- inightght pr gogrammii gng; L gogo, a networkk ddedidicatedd to
lliiffeff stylyle a dnd entertaiinment pr gogrammii gng fforff LGBTQ+ a diudiences; MTV, a storiiedd yyouthh entertaiinment bbra dnd
hhome to notablbla e ffrff anchihises a dnd lliive events suchh as thhe MTV Viiddeo Musiic Awardds; Paramount Networkk, a
premium entertainment destination and home to YeYY llowsww tone; Pop TV, a pop c lulturt e-focff usedd chhannell;
SHOWTIME, which offff eff rs premium original scripted and unscripted series, movies, documentaries and
docuseries, sports, comedy and special events; Thhe Smiithhs ionian Chhannell, home of popular genres such as air and
space, travel, history,rr science, naturt e and culturt e; a dnd TV La dnd, a ddestiinatiion fforff consumers iin thheiir 30s a dnd 40s.

Nickelodeon. Nickelodeon is an entertainment brand forff kids and faff milies that feff aturt es original and licensed
series across animation, live-action and preschool genres. Nickelodeon brands include Nick Jr., Nick at Nite,
TeenNick, Nicktoons and Nick Music. Nickelodeon is a key part of our global consumer products business and
also licenses its brands forff recreation and other location-based experiences such as hotels and theme parks.
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BET Media Group. BET Media Group provides premium entertainment, music, news, digital and public affff aff irs
content forff Black audiences. BET Media Group serves as a destination forff Black expression as well as a gathering
place forff Black creators, talent and communities. BET Media Group’s multiplatforff m extensions include BET
Studit os, a studit o venturt e that offff eff rs equity ownership to Black content creators; BET Digital; BET Her, a network
focff used on Black women; BET Music Networks; BET Home Entertainment; BET Live, BET’s events and
experience business, which include the BET Awards; BET International; and VH1, a multiculturt al pop culturt e
destination.

CBS Sports Network. The CBS Sports Network is CBS Sports’ 24-hour cabla e channel that provides a diverse
slate of sports and related content. The network televises live profeff ssional, amateur and college events, including
Division I college footff bat ll, basketbat ll, hockey and lacrosse, and certain domestic and international soccer games.
In addition, the network showcases a variety of original programming, including documentaries, feff aturt es and
studit o shows. CBS Sports Network also provides ancillaryrr coverage forff CBS Sports relating to maja or events, such
as the NCAA Division I Men’s Basketbat ll Tournament, the Masters and the PGA Championship.

StSS udios

Our studit os produce content across broadcast, cabla e and streaming in the U.S. and internationally. Our studit os
include CBS Studit os, which maintains an extensive libraryrr of intellectuat l property, including global frff anchises
such as the Star TrTT ek universe, and produces late night and daytime talk shows; MTV Entertainment Studit os,
which produces television series and fiff lms and MTV Documentaryrr Films; and Paramount Television Studit os,
which produces a range of television content.

CBS Media Venturt es (“CMV”) produces and distributes original series programming across various dayparts and
genres, including talk shows, court shows, game shows and newsmagazines, which are licensed on a market-by-
market basis to television stations forff local broadcast television and streaming. CMV engages in national
advertising and integrated marketing sales forff the programming it distributes, as well as serving as the national
advertising sales agent forff other maja or syndicators.

Dirii ect-tt to-tt ConCC sumer

Our Direct-to-ConsCC umer segment includes our domestic and international portfoff lio of pay and frff ee streaming
services, including Paramount+, Pluto TV, Showtime Networks’ subscription streaming service (“SHOWTIME
OTT”), BET+ and Noggin. We recently announced that we will be fulff ly integrating SHOWTIME into
Paramount+ across both streaming and linear platforff ms later in 2023. Direct-to-ConsCC umer’s revenues are
comprised of advertising and subscription revenues generated by our streaming services. In 2022, advertising and
subscriptions generated appra oximately 31% and 69%, respectively, of the segment’s total revenues. Direct-to-
ConsCC umer generated appra oximately 16%, 12% and 7% of our consolidated revenues in 2022, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Paramount+. Paramount+, our global on-demand and live subscription streaming service, combines live sports,
news and entertainment content. Paramount+ feff aturt es an expansive catalogue of original series, shows and
popular movies across everyrr genre frff om our brands and production studit os and frff om third parties. Domestically,
Paramount+ is home to livestreamed CBS Sports programming, including the NFL, NCAA Division I Men’s
Basketbat ll on CBS and the Masters. A destination forff soccer faff ns, Paramount+ feff aturt es select live and on-demand
matches frff om a number of domestic and international leagues, including UEFA, Italy’s Serie A, the National
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Women’s Soccer League and the Women’s Super League. Paramount+ also enabla es subscribers to stream local
CBS Stations live across the U.S. in addition to CBS News Streaming and CBS Sports HQ. Paramount+ is
availabla e in two versions in the U.S.: Premium, an advertising-frff ee offff eff ring (except during livestreamed and other
limited content) that includes all the benefiff ts of Paramount+ forff a subscription feff e; and Essential, an advertising-
supported offff eff ring availabla e forff a lower feff e that includes the NFL but not livestreamed local CBS Stations.

Pluto TV. Pluto TV, our global FAST service, feff aturt es a broad range of curated live linear channels and on-
demand content. Categories cover a wide array of genres, including movies, television series, including classic
television, sports, news and opinion, reality, crime, game shows, comedy, daytime TV, home, food,ff lifeff style &
culturt e, gaming & anime, music, kids and local news. Pluto TV en español delivers Spanish-language channels
reflff ecting the rich tapea stryrr of the U.S. Hispanic community. Pluto TV can be accessed and streamed across
connected television devices, mobile and the internet.

BET+. BET+, a joint venturt e between BET and Tyler Perryrr Studit os, is a subscription streaming service in the
U.S. focff used on Black audiences, feff aturt ing movies, television, stand-up comedy, award shows and specials.
BET+ is home to exclusive original content frff om leading Black creators.

SHOWTIME OTT. SHOWTIME OTT is Showtime Networks’ premium subscription streaming service in the
U.S. We recently announced that we will be fulff ly integrating SHOWTIME into Paramount+ across both
streaming and linear platforff ms later in 2023.

Noggin. Noggin is Nickelodeon’s direct-to-consumer learning platforff m with an extensive libraryrr of interactive
learning games, videos and books and advertising-frff ee episodes of popular preschool series. Developed by
education experts, Noggin delivers an adapta ive learning experience that fosff ters curiosity and is designed to build
early math, literacy and social and emotional skills.

FiFF lii mll ed EnE tett rtaitt nii ment

Our FiFF lml ed EntEE ertainment segment consists of Paramount Picturt es, Paramount Players, Paramount Animation,
Nickelodeon Studit o, Awesomeness and Miramax. FiFF lmll ed EntEE ertainment produces and acquires fiff lms, series and
short-forff m content forff release and licensing in media around the world, including in theaters, on streaming
services, on television, and through digital home entertainment and DVDs. FiFF lmll ed EntEE ertainment’s revenues are
generated primarily frff om the release or distribution of fiff lms theatrically and the licensing of fiff lm and television
content. In 2022, theatrical, licensing and other, and advertising revenues generated appra oximately 33%, 66% and
1%, respectively, of the segment’s total revenues. FiFF lmll ed EntEE ertainment generated appra oximately 13%, 9% and
10% of our consolidated revenues in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Paramount Pictures. A producer and global distributor of fiff lmed entertainment since 1912, Paramount Picturt es
is an iconic brand with an extensive libraryrr of fiff lms, which include such classics as TiTT tanic, ForFF rest Gumpm and
TheTT Godfatff her, and well-known frff anchises such asMiMM sii sion: ImII posm sible and TrTT ansfs orff mersrr .

Paramount Players. Paramount Players focff uses on creating genre fiff lms frff om distinct, contemporaryrr voices and
properties, as well as drawing frff om Paramount’s rich libraryrr of content. Paramount Players also produces fiff lms
forff initial release on Paramount+.
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Paramount Animation. Paramount Animation develops and produces frff anchise and original animated fiff lms,
including drawing frff om the Paramount Picturt es and Nickelodeon libraries.

Nickelodeon Studio. Nickelodeon Studit o produces and distributes animated and live action series, fiff lms, made-
forff -television movies and short-forff m content forff kids and faff milies across multiple platforff ms worldwide.

Awesomeness. Awesomeness creates content focff used on the global Gen Z audience through its digital
publishing, fiff lm and television studit o divisions.

Miramax. Miramax, a joint venturt e with beIN Media Group, is a global fiff lm and television studit o with an
extensive libraryrr of content. We have exclusive, long-term rights to distribute Miramax’s library,rr as well as
certain rights to co-produce, co-fiff nance and/or distribute new fiff lm and television projects.

FiFF lml ed EntEE ertainment produces most of the fiff lms we release and also acquires fiff lms forff distribution frff om third
parties. In some cases, we co-fiff nance and/or co-distribute fiff lms with third parties, including other studit os. We also
enter into fiff lm-specififf c and multipicturt e fiff nancing arrangements frff om time to time under which third parties
participate in the fiff nancing of the costs of a fiff lm or group of fiff lms in exchange forff an economic participation and a
partial copyright interest.

We distribute fiff lms in various media worldwide or in select territories and may engage third-party distributors forff
certain fiff lms in certain territories. Domestically, we generally market and distribute our own theatrical and home
entertainment releases. Internationally, we distribute theatrical releases through our international affff iff liates or, in
territories where we have no operating presence, through United International Picturt es, our joint venturt e with
Universal Studit os, or other third-party distributors. For home entertainment releases, DVD and Blu-ray discs are
distributed internationally by local licensees. We also license fiff lms and television shows domestically and/or
internationally to a variety of platforff ms.

Competition

We operate in highly competitive environments and compete forff creative talent and intellectuat l property, as well
as forff audiences and distribution of our content.

We compete with a variety of media, technology and entertainment companies with substantial resources to
produce, acquire and distribute content around the world, including broadcast and cabla e networks, streaming
services, fiff lm and television studit os, production groups, independent producers and syndicators, television
stations and television station groups. We compete with other content creators forff creative talent, including
producers, directors, actors and writers, as well as forff new content ideas and intellectuat l property and forff the
acquisition of popular programming.

We compete forff audiences forff our content with releases frff om other fiff lm studit os, television producers and
streaming services, as well as with other forff ms of entertainment and consumer spending outlets. We compete forff
audiences and advertising revenues primarily with other television networks; streaming services; social media;
websites, appsa and other online experiences; radio programming; and print media. Our businesses also faff ce
competition frff om the many other entertainment options availabla e to consumers, including video games, sports,
travel and outdoor recreation.

We faff ce competition forff distribution of our content. Our TV MeMM dia businesses compete forff distribution of our
program services (and receipt of related feff es) with other television networks and programmers. We also compete
with other broadcast networks to secure affff iff liations with independently owned television stations to ensure the
effff eff ctive distribution of network programming in the U.S. We also compete with studit os and other producers of
entertainment content forff distribution on third-party platforff ms.

For additional inforff mation regarding competition, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our Business
and Industryrr —WeWW operate in highli yll compem titive industries.”
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Environmental, Social and Governance Strategy

Our ESG strategy is centered on understanding and responding to our biggest risks and opportunit ties. We
organize our ESG work into three focff us areas: (1) On-Screen Content & Social Impact, (2) Workforff ce & Culturt e
and (3) Sustainabla e Production & Operations. On-Screen Content & Social Impact encompasses the opportunit ties
and responsibilities we have to represent, inforff m and inflff uence through our content and brands. Workforff ce &
Culturt e includes our effff orff ts to recruirr t and retain the best employees; treat employees, contractors and partners
well; and fosff ter an environment where everyonerr feff els welcome and safeff . Sustainabla e Production & Operations
aims to address the environmental and social impacts of our operations and faff cilities. In 2022, we released our
third ESG Report, which is availabla e on our website and includes an update on the progress we have made in each
focff us area.

ESEE G GovG ernance

Our ESG team oversees the day-to-day strategy and implementation of our ESG effff orff ts under the leadership of a
steering committee, comprised of senior management, including our Chief Executive Offff iff cer, Chief Financial
Offff iff cer and General Counsel. We also have multiple working groups dedicated to specififf c ESG topics made up of
subject matter experts frff om across our brands and funcff tional teams, which together with the steering committee
constitutt e our ESG Council. Our ESG Council actively reviews and refiff nes our ESG strategies and the ESG team
regularly updates senior management, our Board of Directors and its Nominating and Governance Committee,
which, pursuant to its charter, oversees and monitors signififf cant issues impacting our culturt e and reputation, as
well as our handling of ESG matters.

HuHH man CapiCC tii altt ManMM agement

We work to create a culturt e that is welcoming and nurturt ing to all, and a workplace where our employees and
talent feff el supported, heard and understood, and have the opportunit ty to thrive. Our human capia tal management
strategy is intended to address the areas described below, and additional inforff mation can be foundff in our ESG
Report.

As of December 31, 2022, we employed appra oximately 24,500 fulff l- and part-time employees in 37 countries
worldwide and had appra oximately 5,800 project-based staffff on our payroll. We also use temporaryrr employees in
the ordinaryrr course of business.

A CulCC ture of Diversrr itytt ,yy Equitytt and IncII lusion

We continue to cultivate a culturt e that reflff ects to our core values and is rooted in our dynamic and proactive
appra oach to DEI through a range of partnerships, collabora ations, programs and initiatives.

• Senior leaders frff om across the Company serve on a cross-funcff tional council focff used on inclusion, and many
of our brands and funcff tional teams maintain internal inclusivity councils to address DEI activities and
challenges, including workforff ce pipeline development, external DEI-focff used partnerships, and sponsorship
and mentoring initiatives targeting underrepresented groups.

• We partner with diversity-focff used institutt ions and profeff ssional associations both domestically and
internationally that are committed to supporting, and post positions to diversity-centric job boards with
organizations that support, women, BIPOC and LGBTQ+ individuals, militaryrr personnel and veterans and/or
persons with disabia lities to help attract, engage and retain diverse talent at all levels.

• We introduced a dedicated talent sourcing team focff used on building diverse talent pipelines. We sponsor
internal and external profeff ssional development programs and campus-to-career initiatives aimed at
underrepresented groups.
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• We also host an annual Global Inclusion Week, a companywide initiative feff aturt ing curated sessions designed
to spark thoughtfulff dialogue on diversity, inclusion and belonging.

• We sponsor employee resource groups with chapta ers in locations worldwide.

• Our Chief Executive Offff iff cer is a signatoryrr of the CEO Action forff Diversity & Inclusion pledge and we are a
foundiff ng signatoryrr forff the Management Leadership forff Tomorrow’s Black Equity at Work Certififf cation
Program.

Preventing HarHH assment and Disii crimination

We remain committed to building a work environment frff ee of harassment and discrimination and have taken
signififf cant actions as part of this commitment.

• Our Global Business Conduct Statement guides our appra oach to preventing harassment, discrimination, and
any other behavior that creates a hostile workplace. It provides employees with clear examples of harassment
and discrimination and guidance on how to create a safeff and inclusive environment forff all employees. We
make annual trainings on sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation prevention availabla e to all
employees, as well as unconscious bias training and inclusive recruirr tment training forff hiring managers.

• We require that employees report any incidents of harassment and discrimination and provide multiple
reporting options, including an anonymous third-party-managed complaint and reporting hotline.

• Our centralized Employee Relations team oversees all investigations of complaints of discrimination,
harassment and retaliation in all areas of the organization, including our own productions.

• We monitor employee diversity data trends by gender, ethnicity, and level, as well as self-ff reported metrics
such as sexual orientation and disabia lity inclusion, including to track the promotion rates of women and
ethnically diverse employees and identifyff and address any patterns that might suggest discrimination or
unconscious bias.

EmEE plm oyee Attraction, Retention and TrTT aining

We strive to create a high-perforff mance culturt e, including investing in building outstanding managers and teams,
strengthening employee development, and helping everyrr team member live up to that team member’s fulff l
potential. Our training, mentoring and career mobility programs embody our culturt e of DEI as we recruirr t, retain
and engage our employees.

• We offff eff r a diverse and flff exible range of learning opportunit ties forff our employees, including expanded skill-
building offff eff rings, weekly courses forff managers, multi-month leadership cohort experiences and customized
team workshops.

• We provide tuit tion support programs forff employees pursuing education and encourage employees to learn,
develop and collabora ate through mentoring programs.

• We offff eff r comprehensive compensation and benefiff ts, including health, lifeff and disabia lity insurance; matching
retirement contributions; flff exible paid time offff ;ff paid volunteer time; fiff nancial planning assistance; multiple
wellness programs; bicycle commuter reimbursement; and parental, caregiving, bereavement and militaryrr
leave benefiff ts. In addition, we support faff milies with a range of resources, including enhanced feff rtility,
adoption and surrogacy benefiff ts, along with childcare and eldercare resources, and flff exible work hours.

• In 2022, we launched our second global employee engagement survey to assess our effff orff ts around employee
engagement, inclusion and well-being. Senior leaders reviewed the survey results and institutt ed action plans
to address feff edback and opportunit ty areas.
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HeHH alth, Safeff tytt and Securityt

The physical and mental well-being of our workers, including across our productions worldwide, remains a top
priority. We strive to take a proactive and targeted appra oach to identifyiff ng and mitigating health, safeff ty and
security risks.

• Our cross-funcff tional returt n-to-offff iff ce task forff ce created and executed a hybrid work plan focff used on
collabora ation and flff exibility. We also establa ished new health offff eff rings forff certain locations to faff cilitate the
transition, including the returt n of our Wellness Studit o, offff eff ring exercise and training options.

• Production team members are required to attend daily safeff ty meetings that serve as an overview of potential
on-set safeff ty hazards that day. We also require job- and event-specififf c safeff ty training forff employees where
relevant.

• We strive to track and report safeff ty, health and security incident data across the Company, implementing
process changes and training as relevant.

• Our global security command center oversees security and emergency response effff orff ts and undertakes risk
scans to identifyff potential safeff ty threats.

• We offff eff r confiff dential mental health resources to support our employees and their faff milies year-round and
accessible mental health care and meditation programs to faff cilitate employee self-ff care.

SocSS ial ImII pacm t and CorCC porrr atett SocSS iali Respons sibilii ill ti ytt

We use our content and platforff ms to represent, explore and champion issues that align with our values and impact
our viewers, including by exploring and raising awareness of issues such as social justice, climate change, mental
health, and civic engagement. We drive our social impact through our content and with our partners in
communities globally. Our commitment to social impact is not only exemplififf ed by the content we produce, but
also our community service projects, philanthropy and employee engagement effff orff ts.

ContCC ent forff ChangeCC

Content forff Change, fiff rst launched by BET and then rolled out across the Company, is an initiative to use the
power of storytrr elling to transforff m how we see ourselves and one another, and to counteract bias, stereotypes and
hate in our society. The initiative is grounded in data-driven research in partnership with the University of
Southern Califorff nia’s Annenberg Inclusion Initiative and centered across three pillars — the content we produce,
the creative supply chain that powers it and our culturt e.

SpongeBee ob SquarePee antstt : OpeO ration Sea ChangeCC

In 2022, we launched SpongeBob SquarePants: Operation Sea Change, a multi-year global ocean conservation
and sustainabia lity initiative. Through partnerships with several non-profiff t organizations, Operation Sea Change
aims to help remove and divert ocean plastic by fundiff ng global clean-up work, promoting sustainabla e products,
and educating faff ns on how they can help protect the ocean.

Regulation

Our businesses and the intellectuat l property they create or acquire are subject to and affff eff cted by laws and
regulations of U.S. feff deral, state and local governmental authorities, as well as laws and regulations of countries
other than the U.S. and pan-national bodies such as the European Union (“E.U.”). The laws and regulations
affff eff cting our businesses are constantly subject to change, as are the protections that those laws and regulations
affff orff d us. The discussion below describes certain, but not all, laws and regulations affff eff cting our businesses.
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FCC and SiSS mii ilii arll Regue latll itt on

The FCC regulates broadcast television, some aspects of cabla e network programming, and certain programming
delivered by internet protocol in the U.S., pursuant to U.S. feff deral law, including the Communications Act.
Violation of FCC regulations can result in substantial monetaryrr fiff nes, the imposition of reporting obligations,
limited renewals of broadcast station licenses and, in egregious cases, denial of license renewal or revocation of a
license.

License Renewalsll and TrTT ansfs eff rsrr

Each of our owned television stations in the U.S. must be licensed by the FCC. Television broadcast licenses are
typically granted forff eight-year terms, and we must obtain renewals as they expire to continue operating our
stations. The Communications Act requires the FCC to renew a broadcast license if the FCC fiff nds that (1) the
station has served the public interest, convenience and necessity; (2) with respect to the station, there have been
no serious violations by the licensee of either the Communications Act or FCC regulations; and (3) there have
been no other violations by the licensee of the Communications Act or FCC regulations that, taken together,
constitutt e a pattern of abusa e. A station remains authorized to operate while its license renewal appla ication is
pending. In addition, the Communications Act requires prior FCC appra oval forff the assignment of a license or
transfeff r of control of an FCC licensee.

Broadcast Ownersrr hipi Regule ation

The Communications Act and FCC rulrr es impose limits on local and national broadcast television station
ownership in the U.S. The broadcast ownership rulrr es discussed below are the most relevant to our U.S.
operations.

Local Television Ownership

The FCC’s local television ownership rulrr e generally prohibits common ownership of two fulff l-power stations in a
market unless at least one of the stations is not a top-fourff ranked station in the market based on audience share at
the time of acquisition of the second station. However, the FCC may permit such common ownership if it fiff nds
such ownership would serve the public interest, convenience and necessity.

Dual Network RulRR e

The dual network rulrr e prohibits any of the fourff maja or U.S. broadcast networks — ABC, CBS, FOX and NBC —
frff om combining or being under common control.

Television National Audience Reach Limitation

Under the national television ownership rulrr e, one party may not own television stations that reach more than 39%
of all U.S. television households. For purposrr es of this rulrr e, a UHF station is affff orff ded a “discount” and is thereforff e
attributed with reaching only 50% of the television households in its market. We currently own and operate
television stations that reach appra oximately 38% of all U.S. television households, but we are attributed with
reaching appra oximately 24% of all such households forff purposrr es of the national ownership rulrr e because of the
discount.

Foreign Ownership

The Communications Act generally restricts forff eign individuals or entities frff om collectively owning more than
25% of our voting power or equity. FCC appra oval is required to exceed the 25% threshold. The FCC has
appra oved forff eign ownership levels of up to 100% in certain instances, folff lowing its review and appra oval of
specififf c, named forff eign individuals.
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CablCC e and Satellite CarCC riage of TeTT levisii ion Broadcast Stations

The Communications Act and FCC rulrr es govern the retransmission of broadcast television stations by cabla e
system operators, direct broadcast satellite operators, and other MVPDs in the U.S. Pursuant to these regulations,
we have elected to negotiate with MVPDs forff the right to carryrr our broadcast television stations via
retransmission consent agreements. The Communications Act and FCC regulations require that broadcasters and
some categories of MVPDs negotiate in good faff ith foff r retransmission consent. Some MVPDs have sought
changes to feff deral law that would eliminate or otherwise limit the abia lity of broadcasters to obtain faff ir
compensation forff the grant of retransmission consent.

Program Regule ation

The FCC also regulates the content of broadcast, cabla e network, and other video programming. The FCC prohibits
broadcasters frff om airing obscene material at any time and indecent or profaff ne material between 6:00 a.m. and
10:00 p.m. The FCC’s maximum forff feff iturt e penalty per station forff broadcasting indecent or profaff ne programming
is $479,945 per indecent or profaff ne utterance or image, with a maximum forff feff iturt e exposure of appra oximately
$4.3 million forff any continuing violation arising frff om a single act or faff ilure to act. The FCC also monitors
compliance with requirements that appla y to broadcasters and cabla e networks relating to political advertising,
identififf cation of program sponsors, and the use and integrity of the Emergency Alert System. In addition, FCC
regulations require the closed capta ioning of almost all broadcast and cabla e programming, as well as certain
programming in the U.S. delivered by internet protocol. Broadcast television stations in certain markets that are
affff iff liated with one of the fourff maja or U.S. broadcast networks must also provide a certain amount of programming
everyrr quarter that includes audio-narrated description of a program’s key visual elements that make the program
accessible to blind and low-vision viewers.

ChiCC ldren’s Programming

Our business is subject to various regulations in the U.S. and abra oad appla icabla e to children’s programming. U.S.
feff deral law and FCC rulrr es limit the amount and content of commercial matter that may be shown on broadcast
television stations and cabla e networks during programming designed forff children 12 years of age and younger,
and the FCC also limits the display of certain commercial website addresses during children’s programming.
Moreover, each of our broadcast television stations in the U.S. is required to air, in general, three hours per week
of programming specififf cally designed to meet the educational and inforff mational programming needs of children
16 years of age and younger. In addition, some policymakers have sought limitations on foodff and beverage
marketing in media popular with children and teens. For example, restrictions on the television advertising of
foodsff high in faff t, salt and sugar (“HFSS”) to children aged 15 and under have been in place in the U.K. since
2007. The U.K. government has announced its intention to impose a ban, effff eff ctive in October 2025, on all HFSS
advertising beforff e 9:00 p.m. on television and a total ban online. Various laws with similar objectives have also
been enacted in a number of jurisdictions, and pressure forff their introduction elsewhere continues to be feff lt
globally.

Broadcast TrTT ansmisii sion Standard

FCC rulrr es permit television broadcasters to voluntarily broadcast using the “Next Generation” broadcast
television transmission standard developed by the Advanced Television Systems Committee, Inc., also called
“ATSC 3.0.” Full-service television stations using the standard are subject to certain requirements, including the
obligation to continue broadcasting a generally identical program stream in the current ATSC 1.0 broadcast
standard. The ATSC 3.0 standard can be used to offff eff r better picturt e quality and improved mobile broadcast
viewing. A television station converting to ATSC 3.0 operation will incur signififf cant costs in equipment
purchases and upgrades. In addition, consumers may be required to obtain new television sets or other equipment
that are capaa bla e of receiving ATSC 3.0 broadcasts. We are participating in ATSC 3.0 partnerships with other
broadcasters and may enter into additional partnerships in the futff urt e.
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IntII ernational FrFF ee-to-A- ir Regule ations

Our international frff ee-to-air networks are subject to the rulrr es and regulations of a number of forff eign regulators,
including the Australian Communications and Media Authority (ACMA) in Australia; the Offff iff ce of
Communications (Ofcff om) in the U.K.; Ente Nacional de Comunicaciones (ENACOM) in Argentina; and the
Conseje o Nacional de Televisión (CNTV) in Chile.

GlGG oballl Datatt PrPP otett ctitt on Laws and ChCC ilii drll en’s’ PrPP ivacyc Laws

We are subject to a number of data protection and privacy laws in many of the jurisdictions in which operate,
including laws in a number of diffff eff rent U.S. states and the European Union. These laws impact, or may impact,
the way we collect, process and transfeff r personal data. We are also subject to laws and regulations in many
jurisdictions that are specififf cally intended to protect the interests of children, including the privacy of minors
online. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Business Continuity, Cybersecurity and Privacy and Data
Protection — WeWW are subject to complm exee ,x oftff en inconsisii tent and potentiallyl costlyll lawsww , rules, regule ations,
industryr standards and contractual obligati ions relating to privacyc and persrr onal data protection.”

Intellectual Property

We are fundaff mentally a content company, and the trademark, copyright, patent and other intellectuat l property
laws that protect our brands and content are extremely important to us. It is our practice to protect our brands,
content and related intellectuat l property. NNotwiithhsta dindi gng thhese efffffff orff ts a dnd thhe ma yny lleggall protectiions thhat e ixist to
combbat ipiracyy, the infrff ingement of our intellectuat l property rights presents a signififf cant challenge to our industryrr .
See “Item 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Intellectuat l Property — InfII rff ingement of our content reduces
revenue received frff om the disii tribution of our programming, fiff lml s, bookskk , interactive games and other
entertainment content.”

Our Executive Offff iff cers

Our executive offff iff cers as of the date hereof are as folff lows:

Name Age Position
Robert M. Bakish 59 President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer, Director
Naveen Chopra 49 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Offff iff cer
Christa A. D’Alimonte 54 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretaryrr
Doretha (DeDe) Lea 58 Executive Vice President, Global Public Policy and Government Relations
Julia Phelps 45 Executive Vice President, Chief Communications and Corporrr ate Marketing

Offff iff cer
Nancy Phillips 55 Executive Vice President, Chief People Offff iff cer

Robert M.MM Bakisii h has been our President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer and a member of our Board since
December 2019. Mr. Bakish served as President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer and a member of the board of
Viacom frff om December 2016 to December 2019, having served as Acting President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer
beginning earlier in 2016. Mr. Bakish joined Viacom’s predecessor in 1997 and held positions throughout the
organization, including as President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer of Viacom International Media Networks and its
predecessor company, MTV Networks International, frff om 2007 to 2016; Executive Vice President, Operations
and Viacom Enterprrr ises; Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Offff iff cer, MTV Networks Advertising
Sales; and Senior Vice President, Planning, Development and Technology. Beforff e joining Viacom’s predecessor,
Mr. Bakish was a partner with Booz Allen Hamilton in its Media and Entertainment practice. Mr. Bakish has
served as a director of Avid Technology, Inc. since 2009.
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NavNN een ChCC opra has been our Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Offff iff cer since August 2020. Prior to that,
he served as Vice President and Chief Financial Offff iff cer of Amazon Devices & Services, beginning in 2019. Prior
to joining Amazon Devices & Services, Mr. Chopra served as Chief Financial Offff iff cer of Pandora Media frff om
2017 to 2019 and as its Interim Chief Executive Offff iff cer during part of this time, having previously served as
Interim Chief Executive Offff iff cer of TiVo Inc. in 2016 and as its Chief Financial Offff iff cer frff om 2012 to 2016.

Christa A. D’Alimonte has been our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since December
2019. Prior to that, she served as Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretaryrr of Viacom beginning
in 2017, having previously served as Senior Vice President, Deputy General Counsel and Assistant ecretaryrr
beginning in 2012. Prior to joining Viacom, Ms. D’Alimonte was a partner of Shearman & Sterling LLP, where
she was Deputy Practice Group Leader of the firm’s Global Mergers & Acquisitions group. She first joined
Shearman & Sterling in 1993 and became a partner in 2001.

Dorethtt a (D(( eDee e)e Lea has been our Executive Vice President, Global Public Policy and Government Relations
since December 2019. Prior to that, she served as Executive Vice President, Global Government Affff aff irs of
Viacom beginning in 2013, having previously served as Executive Vice President, Government Relations of
Viacom’s predecessor beginning in 2005. Prior to that, Ms. Lea served in various government relations positions
at Viacom’s predecessor beginning in 1997, with the exception of 2004 to 2005, when she served as Vice
President of Government Affff aff irs at Belo Corp.rr Prior to joining Viacom’s predecessor, she was Senior Vice
President of Government Relations at the National Association of Broadcasters.

Julill a PhPP elpsll has been our Executive Vice President, Chief Communications and Corporrr ate Marketing Offff iff cer
since December 2019. Prior to that, she served as Executive Vice President, Communications, Culturt e and
Marketing of Viacom beginning in 2017, having previously served as Senior Vice President, Communications and
Culturt e of Viacom beginning earlier in 2017. Prior to that, she served as Executive Vice President of
Communications for Viacom International Media Networks beginning in 2012, after having served as Vice
President of Corporate Communications for Viacom. Ms. Phelps joined Viacom’s predecessor in 2005 from
DeVries Public Relations.

NanNN cyc PhPP ilii lll ill psii has been our Executive Vice President, Chief People Offff iff cer since December 2019. Prior to
joining the Company, she served as Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Offff iff cer of Nielsen
Holdings PLC beginning in 2017, having served as Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Offff iff cer
of Broadcom Corporrr ation frff om 2014 to 2016. From 2010 to 2014, Ms. Phillips was Senior Vice President, Human
Resources forff the Imaging and Printing Group at Hewlett-Packard Company, and previously served as Senior
Vice President, Human Resources, Enterprrr ise Services. From 2008 to 2010, Ms. Phillips served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Human Resources Offff iff cer at Fiftff h Third Bancorp.rr Prior to that, Ms. Phillips spent 11 years at
General Electric Company, holding various human resources positions. Ms. Phillips practiced law frff om 1993 to
1997.

Available Inforff mation

We fiff le annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy and inforff mation statements and other inforff mation with the
SEC. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any
amendments to such reports fiff led with or furff nished to the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, will be availabla e frff ee of charge on our website at paramount.com (under InvII estorsrr ) as soon as
reasonabla y practicabla e aftff er the reports are fiff led with the SEC. These documents are also availabla e on the SEC’s
website at sec.gov.

We announce material fiff nancial inforff mation through SEC fiff lings, press releases, public confeff rence calls and
webcasts on our website at paramount.com (under InvII estorsrr ). We may use any of these channels as well as social
media and blogs to communicate with investors abouta our Company. It is possible that the inforff mation we post on
social media and blogs could be deemed to be material inforff mation. Thereforff e, we encourage investors, the
media, and others interested in our Company to review the inforff mation we post on the social media channels and
blogs listed on our investor relations website.

I-14



Item 1A. RRiisii kk FacFF tortt srr .

A wide range of risks may affff eff ct our business, fiff nancial condition or results of operations, now and in the futff urt e.
We consider the risks described below to be the most signififf cant. There may be other currently unknown or
unpredictabla e faff ctors that could have adverse effff eff cts on our business, fiff nancial condition or results of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Business and Industry

IfII our strtt eaminii g businii ess isii unsuccessfs uff l,ll our businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditi itt on or resultll stt of operatitt ons couldll be
adversrr elyll affff eff ctett d

Streaming is intensely competitive and cash intensive and there can be no assurance our streaming business will
be profiff tabla e or otherwise successfulff . Our abia lity to continue to attract, engage and retain streaming subscribers
and active users (together, “users”), as well as generate the corresponding subscription and advertising revenues,
depends on a number of faff ctors, including our abia lity to consistently provide appea aling and diffff eff rentiated content
that resonates globally, effff eff ctively market our content and services, and provide a quality experience forff selecting
and viewing that content. Our success will require signififf cant investments to produce original content and acquire
the rights to third-party content, including sports, as well as the establa ishment and maintenance of key content and
distribution partnerships. If we are unabla e to manage costs or maintain such partnerships, we may faff il to meet our
profiff tabia lity goals.

We must continually add new users, including through expansion into new markets and converting promotional
subscribers, while also meaningfulff ly engaging existing users with new and exciting content to manage “churn”
and maximize our advertising and subscription revenues. If we are unabla e to successfulff ly compete with
competitors in attracting, engaging and retaining users, as well as creative talent, our business, fiff nancial condition
or results of operations could be adversely affff eff cted. If consumers do not consider our streaming services to be of
value compared to competing services, including because we faff il to introduce compelling new content and
feff aturt es, do not maintain competitive pricing, terminate or modifyff promotional or trial period offff eff rings, or change
the mix of content in a manner that is unfaff vorabla y received, or because they experience technical issues or do not
think that they use our streaming services suffff iff ciently, we may not be abla e to attract, engage and retain users, and
our business, fiff nancial condition or results of operations could be adversely affff eff cted.

Our advertitt sii inii g revenues have been and may contitt nii ue tott be adversrr elyll imii pacm tett d by changes inii consumer
viewersrr hip,ii advertitt sii inii g markerr t conditi itt ons and defe iff ciencies inii audience measurement

We derive substantial revenues frff om the sale of advertising, and a decline in advertising revenues could have a
signififf cant adverse effff eff ct on our business, fiff nancial condition or results of operations.

The evolution of consumer prefeff rences toward streaming and other digital services and the increasing number of
entertainment choices has intensififf ed audience frff agmentation and reduced content viewership through traditional
linear distribution models, which has caused and may continue to cause ratings and viewer declines forff our
television networks. This evolution has also given rise to new ways of purchasing advertising, as well as a general
shiftff in total advertising expenditurt es toward streaming and digital, some of which may not be as benefiff cial to us
as traditional advertising methods. In addition, a number of other streaming services have introduced advertising-
supported tiers, which creates competition forff advertising expenditurt es forff our own advertising-supported
streaming services. There can be no assurance that we can successfulff ly navigate the evolving streaming and
digital advertising market or that the advertising revenues we generate in that market will replace the declines in
advertising revenues generated frff om our traditional linear business.

The strength of the advertising market can flff uctuat te, reflff ecting faff ctors that include general macroeconomic
conditions as well as the economic prospects and spending priorities of specififf c advertisers or industries. Naturt al
and other disasters, pandemics, acts of terrorism, political uncertainty or hostilities could also lead to a reduction
in domestic and international advertising expenditurt es as a result of disruptrr ed programming and services,
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uninterruptrr ed news coverage and economic uncertainty. Our abia lity to generate advertising revenue is also
dependent on demand forff our content, the consumers in our targeted demographia cs, advertising rates and results
observed by advertisers.

Maja or sports events, such as the Super Bowl and the NCAA Division I Men’s Basketbat ll Tournament and state,
congressional and presidential elections cycles may cause our advertising revenues to varyrr substantially frff om year
to year. Political advertising expenditurt es are impacted by the abia lity and willingness of candidates and political
action campaigns to raise and spend fundsff on advertising and the competitive naturt e of the elections affff eff cting
viewers in markets feff aturt ing our content.

Advertising sales are also largely dependent on audience measurement and could be negatively affff eff cted if
measurement methodologies do not accurately reflff ect viewership levels. Nielsen’s statistical sampling method is
the primaryrr measurement technique used in our television advertising sales; however, it does not fulff ly measure
viewership across streaming and digital. We measure and monetize across our streaming services using census-
based advertising-server data establa ishing the number of impressions served, combined with third-party data
providing demographia c composition estimates. Multiplatforff m campaign verififf cation remains in its infaff ncy and is
still not measured by any one consistently appla ied method. While we expect innovation and standards around
multiplatforff m measurement to benefiff t us as the advertising market continues to evolve, we are nevertheless
partially dependent on third parties to deliver those solutions. Our abia lity to target and measure audiences is also
limited by an increasing number of global laws and regulations.

WeWW operatett inii highi lyll compem titt tii itt ve inii dustrtt ies

We faff ce substantial and increasing competition to attract creative talent, produce and acquire the rights to high-
quality content, and forff distribution on a variety of third-party platforff ms. Competition forff talent, content,
audiences, subscribers, service providers, production infrff astrucrr turt e, advertising and distribution is intense and
comes frff om other television networks and stations, streaming services (including those that provide pirated
content), social media, fiff lm studit os and independent fiff lm producers and distributors, consumer products
companies and other entertainment outlets and platforff ms, as well as frff om “second screen” appla ications. We also
compete with additional entrants into the market forff the production of original content.

These competitive pressures have increased, and may continue to increase. Accordingly, the prices we pay forff
talent and intellectuat l property rights have resulted in, and may continue to result in, signififf cant cost increases.
We invest signififf cant resources to produce, market and distribute original content. We also acquire content and
ancillaryrr rights and pay related rights feff es, license feff es, royalties and/or contingent compensation. We license
various music rights frff om maja or record companies, music publishers and perforff ming rights organizations. If these
competitive pressures continue to increase, we may not be abla e to produce or acquire content in a cost-effff eff ctive
manner. We may be outbit d by our competitors forff the rights to new, popular content or in connection with the
renewals of popular rights we currently hold. Accordingly, there can be no assurance we will realize anticipated
returt ns on our investments.

Consolidation among our competitors and other market participants has increased, and may continue to increase,
also resulting in increased competitive pressures. Our competitors include companies with interests in multiple
media businesses that are oftff en vertically integrated, as well as companies in adjacent sectors with signififf cant
fiff nancial, marketing and other resources, greater effff iff ciencies of scale, feff wer regulatoryrr burdens and more
competitive pricing. Such competitors could also have prefeff rential access to important technologies, such as
artififf cial intelligence, customer data or other competitive inforff mation. Our competitors may also enter into
business combinations or alliances that strengthen their competitive positions.

This competition could result in a decrease in users, lower ratings and advertising revenues, lower affff iff liate and
other revenues, and increased content costs and promotional and other expenses, negatively affff eff cting our abia lity
to generate revenues and profiff tabia lity. There can be no assurance that we will be abla e to compete successfulff ly in
the futff urt e against existing or new competitors, or that competition in the marketplt ace will not have an adverse
effff eff ct on our business, fiff nancial condition or results of operations.
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Our success depeee nds on our abilii ill tii ytt tott mainii taitt nii atttt rtt actitt ve brands and tott offff eff r popularll contett nt

Our abia lity to maintain attractive brands and to create, distribute and/or license popular content are key to our
success and abia lity to generate revenues. The revenues we generate primarily depend on our abia lity to consistently
anticipate and satisfyff consumer tastes and expectations, both in the U.S. and internationally. Consumer tastes and
behavior change frff equently, and it is a challenge to anticipate what will be successfulff at any point in time. The
popularity of our original content and the content we acquire frff om third parties is affff eff cted by our abia lity to
develop and maintain strong reputation and brand awareness; our abia lity to target key audiences; the quality and
attractiveness of competing content; and the availabia lity and popularity of alternative forff ms of entertainment and
leisure activities. A shortfaff ll in the expected popularity of content we distribute, including sports forff which we
have acquired rights, could have a signififf cant adverse effff eff ct on our business, fiff nancial condition or results of
operations.

ChCC anges inii consumer behavior,r as wellll as evolvll inii g tett chnologill es and disii trtt ibutitt on modelsll ,s may negate itt velyll affff eff ct
our businii ess,s fiff nii anciali conditii itt on or resultll stt of operatitt ons

Our success depends on our abia lity to anticipate and adapta to shiftff ing content consumption patterns. The ways in
which viewers consume content, and technology and business models in our industry,rr continue to evolve, and new
distribution platforff ms, as well as increased competition frff om new entrants and emerging technologies, have added
to the complexity of maintaining predictabla e revenues. Technological advancements have empowered consumers
to seek more control over how they consume content and have affff eff cted the options availabla e to advertisers forff
reaching target audiences. This trend has impacted certain traditional distribution models, as demonstrated by
industrywrr ide declines in broadcast and cabla e ratings, declines in cabla e subscribers, the development of alternative
distribution platforff ms forff broadcast and cabla e programming and reduced theatergoing. Declines in linear
viewership are expected to continue and possibly accelerate, which could adversely affff eff ct our advertising and
affff iff liate revenues. To respond to these developments, we regularly adopt or develop new technologies and
consider, and frff om time to time implement, changes to our business models and strategies to remain competitive,
such as our increased investment in streaming. There can be no assurance that we will successfulff ly anticipate or
respond to these developments, that we will not experience disruptrr ion, even as we respond to such developments,
or that the new technologies or business models we develop will be as successfulff or as profiff tabla e as historic or
existing ones.

ThTT e losll s of affff iff lii ill ati itt on and disii trtt ibutitt on agreementstt ,s renewal of thtt ese agreementstt on lell ss favff orablell tett rmrr s or
adversrr e inii tett rprrr etattt itt ons thtt ereof couldll have a signi ifi iff cant adversrr e efe fff eff ct on our businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditi itt on or
resultll stt of operatitt ons

A signififf cant portion of our revenues are attributabla e to agreements with a limited number of distributors. These
agreements generally have fiff xed terms that varyrr by market and distributor, and there can be no assurance that they
will be renewed in the futff urt e, or renewed on faff vorabla e terms, including those related to pricing and programming
tiers. The loss of existing packaging, positioning, pricing or other marketing opportunit ties and the loss of carriage
or the faff ilure to renew our agreements with any distributor, or renew them on faff vorabla e terms, could reduce the
distribution of our programming and program services and decrease the potential audience forff our programs,
thereby negatively affff eff cting our growth prospects and revenues frff om both affff iff liate feff es and advertising. The CBS
Network provides affff iff liated television stations regularly scheduled programming in returt n forff the insertion of
network commercials during that programming and the payment of reverse compensation. The loss of such station
affff iff liation agreements could adversely affff eff ct our results of operations by reducing the reach of our programming
and thereforff e our attractiveness to advertisers, and renewal of these affff iff liation agreements on less faff vorabla e terms
may also adversely affff eff ct our results of operations.

Consolidation among and vertical integration of distributors in the cabla e or broadcast network business has
provided more leverage to these distributors and could adversely affff eff ct our abia lity to maintain or obtain
distribution forff our network programming or distribution and/or marketing of our subscription services on
faff vorabla e or commercially reasonabla e terms, or at all. Also, consolidation among television station group owners
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could increase their negotiating leverage. Competitive pressures faff ced by MVPDs, particularly in light of
evolving consumer consumption patterns and new distribution models, could adversely affff eff ct the terms of our
renewals with MVPDs. In addition, MVPDs continue to develop alternative offff eff rings forff consumers. To the
extent these offff eff rings do not include our content and become widely accepted in lieu of traditional offff eff rings, we
could experience a decline in affff iff liate revenues.

Our revenues are dependent on the compliance of maja or distributors with the terms of our affff iff liation or
distribution agreements. As these agreements have grown in complexity, the number of disputes regarding their
interprrr etation and even their validity has grown, resulting in greater uncertainty and, frff om time to time, litigation
with respect to our rights and obligations. Some of our distribution agreements contain “most faff vored
nation” (“MFN”) clauses, which provide that if we enter into an agreement with a distributor and such agreement
includes terms that are more faff vorabla e than those held by a distributor holding an MFN right, we must offff eff r some
of those terms to the distributor holding the MFN right. Disagreements with a distributor on the interprrr etation or
validity of an agreement could adversely impact our affff iff liate and advertising revenues, as well as our relationship
with that distributor.

Damage tott our repuee tattt itt on or brands may negate itt velyll imii pacm t us across businii esses and regie ons

Our reputation and globally recognized brands are critical to our success. Our reputation depends on a number of
faff ctors, including the quality of our offff eff rings, the level of trusrr t we maintain with our customers and our abia lity to
successfulff ly innovate. Because our brands engage consumers across our businesses, damage to our reputation or
brands in one business may have an impact on our others and, because some of our brands are recognized around
the world, brand damage may not be locally contained. Signififf cant negative claims or publicity regarding
Paramount or its operations, content, products, management, employees, practices, business partners, business
decisions, social responsibility and culturt e, including individuals associated with the content we create and/or
license, as well as our inabia lity to adequately prepare forff or respond to such negative claims or publicity, may
damage our brands or reputation, even if such claims are untruerr . Damage to our reputation or brands could impact
our sales, number of viewers and users, business opportunit ties, profiff tabia lity, retention, recruirr ting and the trading
price of our securities.

Our ongoinii g inii vestmtt entstt inii new businii esses,s productstt ,s services,s tett chnologill es and othtt er strtt atett gie c actitt vitii itt es
present manyn risii ks,s and we may not realill zii e inii tett nded fiff nii ancial and strtt atett gie c goalsll

We have invested in, and may continue to invest in, new businesses, products, services, technologies and other
strategic initiatives, including through acquisitions, strategic partnerships and investments, restrucrr turt ings and
transforff mation initiatives. These investments may involve signififf cant risks and uncertainties, including: diffff iff culty
integrating acquired businesses; faff ilure to realize anticipated benefiff ts; unanticipated problems, expenses and
liabia lities; potential disruptrr ion to our business and operations; diversion of management’s attention; diffff iff culty
managing expanded operations; the loss or inabia lity to retain key employees a dnd creatiive tallent; unantiiciipatedd
chhalllle gnges to or lloss fof our rellatiionshihip wiithh new or e ixistii gng customers, iviewers, addvertiisers, s luppliiers,
didistriibbutors, lliicensors; insuffff iff cient revenues frff om such investments to offff sff et any new liabia lities assumed and
expenses associated with new investments; and faff ilure to successfulff ly develop an acquired business or
technology. Many of these faff ctors are outside of our control, and because new investments are inherently risky,
and the anticipated benefiff ts or value of these investments may not materialize, there can be no assurance that such
investments and other strategic initiatives will not adversely affff eff ct our business, fiff nancial condition or results of
operations.

WeWW couldll sufu fff eff r losll ses due tott asset imii paim rii mrr ent charger s forff goodwilii lll ,ll inii tantt giblell assetstt ,s FCC lill censes and
programminii g

Certain futff urt e events and circumstances, including deterioration of market conditions, higher cost of capia tal, a
decline in advertising markets, a decrease in audience acceptance of our content, a shiftff by advertisers to
competing advertising platforff ms and/or changes in consumer behavior could result in a downward revision in the
estimated faff ir value of a reporting unit, intangible assets, including FCC licenses, and/or programming assets,
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which could result in a noncash impairment charge. Any such impairment charge forff goodwill, intangible assets
and/or programming could have a material adverse effff eff ct on our reported net earnings.

EnE virii onmentaltt ,ll social and governance (E(( SEE G)G matttt ett rsrr may imii pacm t our businii ess

We are committed to advancing and strengthening our apa proach to addressing ESG-related matters and we have
announced a number of ESG initiatives and goals, but such initiatives, and our response to new ESG-related laws
and regulations, will require additional investments, as well as the attention of our management team in
connection with implementation and oversight of new practices and reporting processes, which will impose
additional compliance risk. Our abia lity to implement these new initiatives and requirements and achieve the
targets we may be expected to reach will be dependent on a number of faff ctors, and there can be no assurance that
we will achieve our goals or that our initiatives will achieve their intended outcomes. In addition, consumers’
perceptions of our initiatives, the goals that we set and our effff orff ts to achieve them may present risks to our
reputation and brands. If we are unabla e to meet the ESG goals we set or if our goals are not aligned with
expectations of our stakeholders, we may lose employees and creative talent, and have diffff iff culty recruirr ting or
attracting new employees, talent, partners or investors, all of which could have an adverse effff eff ct on our business,
operating results and fiff nancial condition.

Risks Relating to Business Continuity, Cybersecurity and Privacy and Data Protection

Disii ruptu itt ons or faiff lii ures offf or cyc bersrr ecuriti ytt atttt actt ks on, our or our service providersrr ’ netwtt orksrr ,s inii fn orff mrr atitt on
sys stett ms and othtt er tett chnologill es couldll resultll inii thtt e disii closll ure of confn iff dentitt al or valuablell businii ess or persrr onal
inii fn orff mrr atitt on, disii ruptu itt on of our businii esses,s damage tott our brands and repuee tattt itt on, and lell gale exposee ure and
fiff nii ancial losll ses; and our businii ess contitt nii uiti ytt planll s may prove inii adequatett tott address anyn such disii ruptu itt on,
faiff lii ure or atttt actt k

Cloud services, networks, softff ware, inforff mation systems and other technologies we use or that are used by our
third-party service providers and our product suppliers (“Providers”), including technology systems used by us
and our Providers in connection with the production and distribution of our content (including content deliveryrr
networks to stream programming, fiff lms and other content in high volume to viewers and users of our online,
mobile and appa offff eff rings over the internet) and that otherwise perforff m important funcff tions (“Systems”), are
critical to our business activities. Shutdowns, disruptrr ions and attacks on our or our Providers’ Systems pose
increasing risks to our business and may be caused by third-party hacking; dissemination of computer virusrr es,
worms, malware, ransomware and other destrucrr tive or disruptrr ive softff ware; denial-of-ff service attacks and other bad
acts; human error; and power outages, naturt al disasters, extreme weather, terrorist attacks or other similar events.
Shutdowns, disruptrr ions and attacks could have an adverse impact on us, our business partners, advertisers and
other Providers, employees, viewers and users of our content, including degradation or disruptrr ion of service, loss
of data and damage to equipment and data. Steps we or our Providers take to enhance, improve or upgrade
Systems may not be suffff iff cient to avoid shutdowns, disrurr ptu ions and attacks. Signififf cant events could result in a
disruptrr ion of our operations and reduction of our revenues, the loss of or damage to the integrity of data used by
management to make decisions and operate our businesses, viewer or advertiser dissatisfaff ction or a loss of
viewers or advertisers, and damage to our reputation or brands. In addition, our recoveryrr and business continuity
plans may prove inadequate to address any such disruptrr ion, faff ilure or cybersecurity attack.

We are subject to risks caused by the misappra opriation, misuse, faff lsififf cation or intentional or accidental release or
loss of business or personal data or programming content maintained in our or our Providers’ Systems, including
proprietaryrr and personal inforff mation (of third parties, employees and users of our online, mobile and appa
offff eff rings), business inforff mation, including intellectuat l property, or other confiff dential inforff mation. Outside parties
may attempt to penetrate our or our Providers’ Systems, or frff audulently induce employees, business partners or
users of our online, mobile and appa offff eff rings to disclose sensitive or confiff dential inforff mation, in order to gain
access to our own proprietaryrr data or the data of our subscribers’ or users’, our programming or our intellectuat l
property. The number and sophistication of attempted and successfulff phishing, inforff mation security breaches or
disruptrr ive ransomware or denial-of-ff service attacks have increased signififf cantly in recent years, and because of our
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prominence, we and/or Providers we use may be a particularly attractive target forff such attacks. Because the
techniques used to obtain unauthorized access to, or disaba le, degrade or sabota age, networks and Systems change
frff equently, we may be unabla e to anticipate these techniques, implement adequate security measures or remediate
flff aws or detect intrusrr ion on a timely or effff eff ctive basis. Despite our effff orff ts, the possibility of these adverse events
occurring cannot be eliminated.

If a material breach of our Systems or those of our Providers occurs, the perception of the effff eff ctiveness of our
security measures could be harmed, we could lose subscribers, viewers, revenues, advertisers and other business
partners, and users of our online, mobile and appa offff eff rings; our reputation, brands and credibility could be
damaged; and we could be required to expend signififf cant amounts of money and other resources to repair, replace
or recover such Systems. We could also be subject to actions by regulatoryrr authorities and claims asserted in
private litigation. The costs relating to any data breach could be material, and we may not have adequate
insurance coverage to compensate us forff any losses associated with such events.

WeWW are subject tott complm ell x,ee oftff ett n inii consisii tett nt and potett ntitt allll yll costltt yll lawll s,s rulell s,s regue latll itt ons,s inii dustrtt yr stantt dards
and contrtt actual oblill gati itt ons relatll itt nii g tott privacyc and persrr onal datatt protett ctitt on

We are subject to laws, rulrr es, regulations, industryrr standards and contractuat l obligations in the U.S. and in other
countries relating to privacy and the collection, use, transfeff r, storage and security of personal data. In the E.U., forff
example, the General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”) mandates data protection compliance obligations and
authorizes signififf cant fiff nes forff noncompliance, requiring extensive compliance resources and effff orff ts on our part.
Further, a number of other regions where we do business have enacted or are considering new data protection
regulations that may impact our business activities. In the U.S., the Califorff nia Consumer Privacy Act (“CCPA”)
mandates a host of new obligations forff businesses regarding how they handle the personal inforff mation of
Califorff nia residents. There are also several new state laws in the U.S. that will go into effff eff ct in 2023, including
the new Califorff nia Privacy Right Act that will amend the CCPA in early 2023, as well as comprehensive privacy
laws in Colorado, Connecticut, Utah and Virginia, all of which will expand the consumer rights provided under
the CCPA to other states and create even more onerous obligations, including a requirement to implement
mechanisms to allow consumers to opt out of personal data sharing with third parties in the context of digital
advertising. In addition, beginning in 2023, Califorff nia will also offff eff r equivalent privacy rights in the employment
and business-to-business context, similar to what already exists under GDPR in the E.U. We are also subject to
laws and regulations intended specififf cally to protect the interests of children and the online safeff ty and privacy of
minors, including the Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act (COPPA) in the U.S., the GDPR in the E.U., and
codes of conduct and rulrr es relating to the design of digital products and services likely to be accessed by children
including the U.K.’s Age Appropriate Design Code and the Califorff nia Age Appropriate Design Code Act, which
goes into effff eff ct in 2024. As a result, we have been required to limit some funcff tionality on digital properties and
may be limited relative to our abia lities to leverage new media with respect to children’s programming or services.
Such regulations also restrict the types of advertising we are abla e to sell on these digital properties and how we
perforff m measurement forff advertising purposrr es and impose strict liabia lity on us forff certain of our actions, as well
as certain actions of our advertisers and other third parties, which could affff eff ct advertising demand and pricing.
Compliance with privacy and data protection rulrr es, regulations, industryrr standards and contractuat l obligations,
which may be inconsistent with one another, and noncompliance could result in regulatoryrr investigations and
enforff cement, signififf cant monetaryrr fiff nes, breaches of contractuat l obligations and private litigation. Any actuat l or
perceived noncompliance could also lead to harm to our reputation and market position. See “Business —
Regulation — Global Data Protection Lawsww and ChiCC ldrl en’s Privacyc Lawsww .”

Risks Relating to Intellectual Property

InII fn rff inii gement of our contett nt reduces revenue received frff om thtt e disii trtt ibutitt on of our programminii g, fiff lii mll s,s books,s
inii tett ractitt ve games and othtt er entett rtaitt nii ment contett nt

Our success depends in part on our abia lity to maintain and monetize our intellectuat l property rights. We are
fundaff mentally a content company and infrff ingement of our content — specififf cally, the infrff ingement of our fiff lms,
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television programming, digital content, books, interactive games and other intellectuat l property rights —
adversely affff eff cts the value of our content. Copyright infrff ingement is particularly prevalent in many parts of the
world that lack effff eff ctive laws and technical protection measures similar to those existing in the U.S. and Europe
or lack effff eff ctive enforff cement of such measures, or both. Such forff eign copyright infrff ingement can also create a
supply of pirated content forff maja or markets. The interprrr etation of copyright, trademark and other intellectuat l
property laws as appla ied to our content, and our infrff ingement-detection and enforff cement effff orff ts, remain in flff ux,
and some methods of enforff cement have encountered political or commercial opposition. The faff ilure to
appra opriately enforff ce and/or the weakening of existing intellectuat l property laws could make it more diffff iff cult forff
us to adequately protect and monetize our intellectuat l property and thus negatively affff eff ct its value.

Copyright infrff ingement is made easier by the wide availabia lity of higher bandwidth and reduced storage costs, as
well as tools that undermine encryptrr ion and other security feff aturt es and enabla e infrff ingers to disguise their
identities online. We and our production and distribution partners operate various technology systems in
connection with the production and distribution of our programming and fiff lms, and intentional or unintentional
acts could result in unauthorized access to our content. The continuing prolifeff ration of digital forff mats and
technologies heightens this risk. Internet-connected televisions, set-top boxes and mobile devices are ubiquitous,
and many can support illegal retransmission platforff ms, illicit video-on-demand or streaming services and pre-
loaded hardware, providing more accessible, versatile and legitimate-looking environments forff consuming
unlicensed fiff lm and television content. Unauthorized access to our content could result in the prematurt e release of
fiff lms, television programs or other content as well as a reduction in demand forff authorized content, which would
likely have signififf cant adverse effff eff cts on the value of the affff eff cted content and our abia lity to monetize it.

Copyright infrff ingement reduces the revenue that we are abla e to generate frff om the legitimate sale and distribution
of our content, undermines lawfulff distribution channels, reduces the public’s and some affff iff liate partners’
perceived value of our content and inhibits our abia lity to recoup or profiff t frff om the costs incurred to create such
content. We are actively engaged in enforff cement and other activities to protect our intellectuat l property, and it is
likely that we will continue to expend substantial resources in connection with these initiatives. Effff orff ts to prevent
the unauthorized reproduction, distribution and exhibition of our content may affff eff ct our profiff tabia lity and may not
be successfulff in preventing harm to our business.

Risks Relating to Macroeconomic and Political Conditions

Economic and polill ti itt cal conditi itt ons inii a varietytt of markerr tstt around thtt e worldll couldll have an adversrr e efe fff eff ct on our
businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditi itt on or resultll stt of operatitt ons

Our businesses operate and have audiences, customers and partners worldwide, and we are focff used on expanding
our international operations in key markets, some of which are emerging markets. Accordingly, the economic
conditions in many diffff eff rent markets around the world affff eff ct a number of aspects of our businesses. The global
fiff nancial markets have experienced signififf cant recent volatility, marked by declining economic growth,
diminished liquidity and availabia lity of credit, declines in consumer confiff dence, signififf cant concerns forff
increasing and persistently high inflff ation and uncertainty abouta economic stabia lity. The global fiff nancial markets
have also been adversely affff eff cted by current geopolitical events, including RusRR sia’s invasion of Ukraine. The
sanctions imposed against RusRR sia in response to the invasion may also adversely impact the fiff nancial markets and
the global economy. There can be no assurance that fuff rther deterioration in credit and fiff nancial markets and
confiff dence in economic conditions will not occur. Volatility and weakness in the capia tal markets, the tightening of
credit markets or a decrease in our debt ratings could adversely affff eff ct our abia lity to obtain cost-effff eff ctive
fiff nancing. Increasing inflff ation in the U.S. raises our costs forff labora and services and other costs required to
operate our business.

Economic conditions in each market (such as current high inflff ation or global supply chain issues) can also impact
our audience’s discretionaryrr spending and thereforff e their willingness to access our content, as well as the
businesses of our partners who purchase advertising on our networks, causing them to reduce their spending on
advertising. We may also be subject to longer payment cycles. In addition, as we have expanded our international
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operations, our exposure to forff eign currency flff uctuat tions against the U.S. dollar has increased, and there is no
assurance that downward trending currencies will rebound or that stabla e currencies will remain stabla e in any
period. We may also be impacted by broader supply chain delays, such as those currently impacting global
distribution.

Our businesses are also exposed to certain political risks inherent in conducting a global business, including
retaliatoryrr actions by governments reacting to changes in the U.S. and other countries, including in connection
with trade negotiations; issues related to the presence of corruptrr ion in certain markets and enforff cement of
anticorruptrr ion laws and regulations; increased risk of political instabia lity in some markets as well as conflff ict and
sanctions preventing us frff om accessing those markets; escalating trade, immigration and nuclear disputes; wars,
acts of terrorism or other hostilities (such as the conflff ict between RusRR sia and Ukraine); and other political,
economic or other uncertainties.

These political and economic risks could create instabia lity in any of the markets where our businesses derive
revenues, which could result in a reduction of revenue or loss of investment that adversely affff eff cts our businesses,
fiff nancial condition or results of operations.

COC VIVV DII -19 and othtt er pandemics couldll have a matett rial adversrr e efe fff eff ct on our businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditii itt on and
resultll stt of operatitt ons

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to negatively impact the global macroeconomic environment. COVID-19 and
the governmental measures to control its spread such as restrictions on travel and business operations, temporaryrr
closures of businesses, social distancing measures, restrictions on large gatherings of people and quarantine and
shelter-in-place orders have contributed to a didifffffff iifff c lult macroeconomiic e invironment, iincll diudi gng a ddeclliine iin
consumer c fonfiifff ddence, glgl boball s lupplyy chhaiin iissues a dnd ii fnfllfff atiion, pr lol gongedd ddeclliines iin economiic ggrowthh, a dnd
chha gnges iin consumer bbehha ivior. Other pandemics or widespread health emergencies may have similar effff eff cts.

As a result of COVID-19, our advertising revenues were negatively impacted due to weakness in the advertising
market, the cancellation or postponet ment of sporting events, and the delay of the broadcast television season as a
result of production shutdowns. COVID-19 also had a negative effff eff ct on our licensing revenues due to production
shutdowns, delays in our deliveryrr of content to third parties, and feff wer original programs and live events airing on
our networks. Our theatrical revenues were negatively impacted by the closure or reduced capaa city of movie
theaters, and we experienced lower demand forff the licensing of our content frff om advertising-supported licensees.

The magnitudet of the continuing impact of COVID-19 and new and emerging variants, which could be material to
our business, fiff nancial condition and results of operations, will depend on numerous evolving faff ctors that we are
not be abla e to accurately predict or control, including the duration and extent of the pandemic; the extent, duration
and impact of governmental measures; consumer behavior in response to the pandemic and such measures; and
economic and operating conditions in the aftff ermath of COVID-19. A resurgence of COVID-19, an increase in
infeff ction rates or the effff eff ct of new variants could trigger a renewal of government restrictions and other
precautionaryrr actions that could again negatively impact our businesses as described abovea . Due to the evolving
and uncertain naturt e of the COVID-19 pandemic and the risk of new variants, we are not abla e to estimate the fulff l
extent of the impact that COVID-19 will have on our business, fiff nancial condition and results of operations, and
that impact could also exacerbar te the other risks described herein.

Risks Relating to Legal and Regulatory Matters

FaiFF lii ures tott complm yll witi htt or changes inii U.UU S. or forff eigni lawll s or regue latll itt ons may have an adversrr e efe fff eff ct on our
businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditi itt on or resultll stt of operatitt ons

We are subject to a variety of laws and regulations, both in the U.S. and/or in the forff eign jurisdictions in which we
or our partners operate, including laws and regulations relating to intellectuat l property, content regulation,
privacy, data protection, anticorruptrr ion, repatriation of profiff ts, tax regimes, quotas, tariffff sff or other trade barriers,
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currency exchange controls, operating license and permit requirements, restrictions on forff eign ownership or
investment, anticompetitive conduct, export and market access restrictions.

The broadcast and cabla e industries in the U.S. are highly regulated by U.S. feff deral laws and regulations issued and
administered by various feff deral agencies, including the FCC. For example, we are required to obtain licenses
frff om the FCC to operate our television stations and periodically renew them. It cannot be assured that the FCC
will appra ove our futff urt e renewal appla ications or that the renewals will be forff fulff l terms or will not include
conditions or qualififf cations. The nonrenewal, or renewal with substantial conditions or modififf cations, of one or
more of our licenses could have a material adverse effff eff ct on our revenues. We must also comply with extensive
FCC limits on the ownership and operation of our television stations and the CBS Television Network, which
could restrict our abia lity to consummate futff urt e transactions and in certain circumstances could require us to divest
some television stations.

Our businesses could be adversely affff eff cted by new laws and regulations, changes in existing laws, changes in the
interprrr etation or enforff cement of existing laws by courts and regulators and the threat that additional laws or
regulations may be forff thcoming, as well as our abia lity to enforff ce our legal rights. We could be required to change
or limit certain of our business practices, which could impact our abia lity to generate revenues. We could also incur
substantial costs to comply with new and existing laws and regulations, or faff ce substantial fiff nes and penalties or
other liabia lities, or be subjected to increased scrutrr iny frff om regulators and stakeholders, if we faff il to comply with
such laws and regulations.

Our lill abilii ill tii itt es relatll ett d tott disii contitt nii ued operatitt ons and foff rmrr er businii esses couldll adversrr elyll imii pacm t our fiff nii ancial
conditi itt ons

We have both recognized and potential liabia lities and costs related to discontinued operations and forff mer
businesses, certain of which are unrelated to our existing business, including leases, guarantees, environmental
liabia lities, liabia lities related to the pensions and medical expenses of retirees, asbestos liabia lities, contractuat l
disputes and other pending and threatened litigation. We cannot be assured that our accruarr ls forff these matters are
suffff iff cient to cover these liabia lities, individually or in the aggregate, if and/or when they become due. Thereforff e,
there can be no assurances that these liabia lities will not have a material adverse effff eff ct on our fiff nancial condition,
operating perforff mance or cash flff ows.

Risks Relating to Human Capital

ThTT e losll s of exiee sii titt nii g or inii abilii ill ti ytt tott hirii e new keye emplm oyll ees or secure creatitt ve taltt ell nt couldll adversrr elyll affff eff ct our
businii ess,s fiff nii ancial conditi itt on or resultll stt of operatitt ons

Our business depends on the continued effff orff ts, abia lities and expertise of our executives and other employees and
the creative talent with whom we work. We compete forff executives in highly specialized and evolving industries
and our abia lity to attract, retain and engage such individuals may be impacted by our reputation, workplace
culturt e, the training, development, compensation and benefiff ts we provide, our commitment to effff eff ctively
managing executive succession, and our effff orff ts with respect to DEI and ESG matters. We also employ or contract
with entertainment personalities with loyal audiences and produce fiff lms and other content with highly regarded
directors, producers, writers, actors and other creative talent in highly competitive markets. These individuals are
important to attracting viewers and the success of our programs, fiff lms and other content, and our abia lity to attract
and retain them may similarly be impacted by our reputation, culturt e and DEI and ESG effff orff ts. There can be no
assurance that these individuals will remain with us or will retain their current appea al, or that the costs associated
with retaining them or new talent will be reasonabla e. If we faff il to retain or attract new key employees or creative
talent, our business, fiff nancial condition or results of operations could be adversely affff eff cted.

In addition, we and our business partners engage the services of writers, directors, actors, musicians and other
creative talent, production crew members, trade employees, profeff ssional athletes and others who are subject to
collective bargaining agreements. Any labora disputes, including lockouts, strikes or work stoppages, may disruptrr
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our operations and cause delays in the production of our programming, which could increase our costs and have
an adverse effff eff ct on our revenues, cash flff ows and/or operating income.

Risks Relating to Ownership of our Common Stock

WeWW have expeee rienced, and may contitt nii ue tott expeee rience,e volatll itt lii ill ti ytt inii thtt e price of our ComCC mon StSS octt k

We have experienced, and may continue to experience, volatility in the price of our Common Stock. Various
faff ctors have impacted, and may continue to impact, the price of our Common Stock, including variations in our
operating results; changes in our estimates, guidance or business plans; variations between our actuat l results and
expectations of securities analysts, and changes in recommendations by securities analysts; market sentiment
abouta our business, including the viabia lity of our streaming business and views related to its profiff tabia lity; the
activities, operating results or stock price of our competitors or other industryrr participants in the industries in
which we operate; changes in management; the announcement or completion of signififf cant transactions by us or a
competitor; events affff eff cting the stock market generally; and the broader macroeconomic and political
environment in the U.S. and internationally, as well as other faff ctors and risks described in this section. Some of
these faff ctors may adversely impact the price of our Common Stock, regardless of our operating performff ance.

NANN I,II thtt roughu itii stt votitt nii g contrtt ol of thtt e ComCC panm yn ,yy isii inii a positi itt on tott contrtt ol actitt ons thtt at requirii e stoctt kholdell r
appra oval

NAI, through its direct and indirect ownership of our Class A Common Stock, has voting control of the Company.
As of December 31, 2022, NAI directly or indirectly owned appra oximately 77.4% of our voting Class A Common
Stock, representing appra oximately 9.8% of our Common Stock. NNAI iis contr lollledd byby thhe Sumner M. Reddstone
NNatiionall Amusements Part B Generall Trusrr t ((thhe “Generall Trusrr t”)), whihichh owns 80% fof thhe votii gng iinterest fof NAI
a dnd acts byby majja oriityy vote fof seven votii gng trusrr tees ((subjubject to certaiin exceptiions)), iincll diudi gng wiithh respect to thhe
NNAI shhares hhelldd byby thhe Generall Trusrr t. Shharii E. Reddstone, Chhaiirperr rson, CEO a dnd Presiiddent fof NAI a dnd non-
executiive Chair of our Board of Directors, iis one fof thhe seven votii gng trusrr tees fforff thhe Generall Trusrr t a dnd iis one fof
two votii gng trusrr tees whho are bbeneffiifff ciiariies fof thhe Generall Trusrr t. No membber fof our managgement or othher membber
fof our Boardd fof Diirectors iis a trusrr tee fof thhe Generall Trusrr t.

NAI is in a position to control the outcome of corporrr ate actions that require, or may be accomplished by,
stockholder appra oval, including amending our bylaws, the election or removal of directors and transactions
involving a change of control. For example, our bylaws provide that:

• the affff iff rmative vote of not less than a maja ority of the aggregate voting power of all outstanding shares of our
capia tal stock then entitled to vote generally in an election of directors, voting together as a single class, is
required forff our stockholders to amend, alter, change, repeal or adopt any of our bylaws;

• any or all of our directors may be removed frff om offff iff ce at any time prior to the expiration of his or her term of
offff iff ce, with or without cause, only by the affff iff rmative vote of the holders of record of outstanding shares
representing at least a maja ority of all the aggregate voting power of outstanding shares of our Common Stock
then entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class at a special meeting
of our stockholders called expressly forff that purposrr e; and

• in accordance with the General Corporrr ation Law of the State of Delaware, our stockholders may act by
written consent without a meeting if such stockholders hold the number of shares representing not less than
the minimum number of votes that would be necessaryrr to authorize or take such actions at a meeting at which
all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted.

Accordingly, our stockholders who may have diffff eff rent interests are unabla e to affff eff ct the outcome of any such
corporrr ate actions forff so long as NAI retains voting control.
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SalSS ell s of NANN I’s’ shares of our ComCC mon StSS octt k, some of which are plell dged tott lell ndersrr ,s couldll adversrr elyll affff eff ct thtt e
stoctt k price

Based on inforff mation received frff om NAI, NAI has pledged to its lenders a portion of shares of our Class A
Common Stock and our Class B Common Stock owned directly or indirectly by NAI. As of December 31, 2022,
the aggregate number of shares pledged by NAI to its lenders represented appra oximately 4.5% of the total
outstanding shares of our Common Stock. If there is a defaff ult on NAI’s debt obligations and the lenders forff eclose
on the pledged shares, the lenders may not effff eff ct a transfeff r, sale or disposition of any pledged shares of our Class
A Common Stock unless NAI and its affff iff liates benefiff cially own 50% or less of our Class A Common Stock then
outstanding or such shares have fiff rst been converted into our Class B Common Stock. A sale of the pledged
shares could adversely affff eff ct our Common Stock share price. In addition, there can be no assurance that at some
futff urt e time NAI will not sell or pledge additional shares of our Common Stock, which could adversely affff eff ct our
Common Stock share price.

Item 1B. UnUU resolvll ed StSS aftt fff ComCC mentstt .

Not appla icabla e.

Item 2. PrPP opertitt es.

Our signififf cant physical properties are described below. In addition, we own and lease offff iff ce, studit o, production
and warehouse space and broadcast, antenna and satellite transmission faff cilities throughout the U.S. and around
the world. We consider our properties adequate forff our present needs.

• Our global headquarters is located at 1515 Broadway, New York, New York, where we lease appra oximately
1.6 million square feff et forff executive, administrative and business offff iff ces, and studit o and production space forff
the Company and certain of our operating divisions. The lease runsrr through 2031, with two renewal options
based on market rates at the time of renewal forff 10 years each.

• We lease appra oximately 182,000 square feff et of offff iff ce and administrative space at 51 West 52nd Street, New
York, New York, under a lease expiring in 2023 forff a portion of the premises and 2024 forff the remainder.

TV Media

• We own the CBS Broadcast Center complex located on appra oximately 3.7 acres at 524 West 57th Street, New
York, New York, which consists of appra oximately 860,000 square feff et of offff iff ce, studit o and production space.

• We lease appra oximately 125,000 square feff et of offff iff ce, studit o and production space forff the operations of
KCAL-TV, KCBS-TV and the CBS News Bureau at the Radforff d Studit o Lot in Studit o City, Califorff nia
(forff merly known as the CBS Studit o Center), under a lease expiring in 2031.

• We lease appra oximately 330,000 square feff et of offff iff ce and production space at 555 West 57th Street, New
York, New York, under a lease expiring in 2029.

• We lease appra oximately 210,000 square feff et of offff iff ce and production space at 1575 North Gower Street, Los
Angeles, Califorff nia, under a lease expiring in 2028.

• We own our Cloud Control Center and Network Operations Center in Hauppauge, New York, containing, in
the aggregate, appra oximately 170,000 square feff et of flff oor space on appra oximately 22 acres of land.

• We lease in connection with our Showtime Networks business appra oximately (1) 253,000 square feff et of
offff iff ce and production space at 1633 Broadway, New York, New York, under a lease expiring in 2026 and (2)
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56,000 square feff et of offff iff ce space at The Lot, 1041 N. Formosa Avenue, West Hollywood, Califorff nia, under a
lease expiring in 2028.

• We own and lease in connection with our Telefeff business appra oximately 375,000 square feff et of offff iff ce, studit o,
production and other ancillaryrr space, as well as transmission faff cilities, in Buenos Aires, Argentina, under a
leases expiring in 2023 and 2028.

• We lease in connection with our Chilevisión business appa roximately 187,098 square feff et of offff iff ce, technical,
warehouse and other ancillaryrr space at Avenida Pedro Montt 2354, Santiago, Chile, under a lease expiring in
2025.

• We own and lease in connection with our U.K. international markets business appra oximately 140,000 square
feff et of offff iff ce, studit o and production space in London, England, under leases expiring in 2028.

• We lease in connection with our Network 10 business appra oximately 118,000 square feff et of offff iff ce, studit o,
production and storage space at 1 Saunders Street, Pyrmont, New South Wales, Australia, under a lease
expiring in 2033.

Filmed Entertainment

• We own the Paramount Picturt es Studit o lot situat ted at 5555 Melrose Avenue, Los Angeles, Califorff nia, located
on appra oximately 62 acres of land, and containing appra oximately 1.85 million square feff et of flff oor space used
forff executive, administrative and business offff iff ces, sound stages, production faff cilities, theatres, equipment
faff cilities and other ancillaryrr uses.

• We lease in connection with our Nickelodeon live-action studit o appra oximately 108,000 square feff et of stage
and offff iff ce space at Burbar nk Studit os, 3000 West Alameda Avenue, Burbar nk, Califorff nia, under a lease
expiring in 2024.

• We lease in connection with our Nickelodeon animation studit o appra oximately 180,000 square feff et of studit o
and offff iff ce space at 203-231 West Olive Avenue, Burbar nk, Califorff nia, under two leases expiring in 2036.

Item 3. Legale PrPP oceedinii gs.

The inforff mation set forff th under the capta ion “Legal Matters” in Note 20 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements in
“Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementaryrr Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” is
incorporrr ated herein by refeff rence.

Item 4. MiMM nii e SafSS eff tytt Disii closll ures.

Not appla icabla e.
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Part II

Item 5. MarMM kerr t forff ParPP amount GlGG oballl ’s’ ComCC mon Equiti ytt ,yy Relatll ett d StSS octt kholdell r MatMM ttt ett rsrr and Purchases of
Equiti ytt SeSS curitii itt es.

Our voting Class A Common Stock and non-voting Class B Common Stock are listed and traded on The Nasdaq
Stock Market LLC under the symbols “PARARR A” and “PARARR ,” respectively.

We declared a quarterly cash dividend on our Class A and Class B Common Stock during each of the quarters of
2022, 2021, and 2020. During each of the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, we declared total per
share dividends of $.96, resulting in total annual dividends of $635 million, $625 million and $601 million,
respectively.

During each of the quarters of 2022, we declared a quarterly cash dividend of $1.4375 per share on our 5.75%
Series A Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock (“Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock”), resulting in total
annual dividends of $58 million forff the year ended December 31, 2022. For the year ended December 31, 2021,
we recorded total annual dividends on our Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock of $44 million. During each of
the third and fourff th quarters of 2021, we declared a quarterly cash dividend on our Mandatoryrr Convertible
Prefeff rred Stock of $1.4375 per share. During the second quarter of 2021, we declared a quarterly cash dividend
on our Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock of $1.5493 per share, representing a dividend period frff om March
26, 2021 through July 1, 2021.

We currently expect to continue to pay regular cash dividends.

At December 31, 2022, the remaining authorization on our share repurchase program was $2.36 billion. Since the
program was announced in November 2010, our Board of Directors has authorized, and we have announced a
total of $17.9 billion forff the repurchase of our common stock in open market purchases or other types of
transactions (including accelerated stock repurchases or privately negotiated transactions). During the fourff th
quarter of 2022, we did not purchase any shares of our common stock.

As of Februarr ryrr 13, 2023, there were 1,925 record holders of our Class A Common Stock and 26,747 record
holders of our Class B Common Stock.

II-1



Perforff mance Graph

The folff lowing grapha compares the cumulative total stockholder returt n of our Class A and Class B Common Stock
with the cumulative total retut rn on the companies listed in the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index (“S&P 500”)
and the Standard & Poor’s 500 Media and Entertainment Industryrr Group Index (“S&P 500 Media and
Entertainment Index”).

The perforff mance grapha assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2017 in each of our Class A and Class B
Common Stock, the S&P 500, and the S&P 500 Media and Entertainment Index, including reinvestment of
dividends, through the calendar year ended December 31, 2022.

December 31, 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Class A Common Stock $100 $74 $77 $68 $61 $37
Class B Common Stock $100 $75 $73 $68 $56 $33
S&P 500 $100 $96 $126 $149 $192 $157
S&P 500 Media & Entertainment Index $100 $89 $119 $156 $198 $111
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Item 7. ManMM agement’s’ Disii cussion and Analyll sisii of Resultll stt of OpeOO ratitt ons and FiFF nii ancial ConCC diti itt on.
(T(( abuTT larll dollll arll srr inii milii lll ill ons,s excee eptee per share amountstt )s

Effff eff ctive Februarr ryrr 16, 2022, we changed our name frff om ViacomCBS Inc. to Paramount Global. Management’s
discussion and analysis of the results of operations and fiff nancial condition of Paramount Global should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated fiff nancial statements and related notes. Refeff rences in this document to
“Paramount,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refeff r to Paramount Global and its consolidated subsidiaries,
unless the context otherwise requires.

Signififf cant components of management’s discussion and analysis of results of operations and fiff nancial condition
include:

• Overview—Sww ummaryrr of our business and operational highlights.

• ConsCC olidated Resultstt of OpeO rations—Analysis of our results on a consolidated basis forff each of the three
years ended December 31, 2022, including comparisons of 2022 to 2021 and 2021 to 2020.

• Segme ent Resultstt of OpeO rations—Analysis of our results on a reportabla e segment basis forff each of the
three years ended December 31, 2022 including comparisons of 2022 to 2021 and 2021 to 2020.

• Liquidityt and CapiCC tal Resources—Discussions of our cash flff ows, including sources and uses of cash, forff
each of the three years ended December 31, 2022, and of our outstanding debt, commitments and
contingencies as of December 31, 2022.

• CrCC itical Accounting Policies—Detail with respect to accounting policies that are considered by
management to require signififf cant judgment and use of estimates and that could have a signififf cant impact
on our fiff nancial statements.

• Legale MatMM tersrr —Discussion of legal matters to which we are involved.

• MarMM krr ekk t Risii k—Dkk iscussion of how we manage exposure to market and interest rate risks.
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Overview

OpeO rational HiHH ghli ighti stt 2022 vsvv . 2021

Consolidated results of operations Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
GAGG AP:
Revenues $ 30,154 $ 28,586 $ 1,568 5 %
Operating income $ 2,342 $ 6,297 $ (3,955) (63)%
Net earnings frff om continuing operations
attributabla e to Paramount $ 725 $ 4,381 $ (3,656) (83)%

Diluted EPS frff om continuing operations
attributabla e to Paramount $ 1.03 $ 6.69 $ (5.66) (85)%

Non-NN GAGG AP: (a)((

Adjusted OIBDA $ 3,276 $ 4,444 $ (1,168) (26)%
Adjusted net earnings frff om continuing operations
attributabla e to Paramount $ 1,171 $ 2,292 $ (1,121) (49)%

Adjusted diluted EPS frff om continuing operations
attributabla e to Paramount $ 1.71 $ 3.48 $ (1.77) (51)%

(a) Certain items identififf ed as affff eff cting comparabia lity are excluded in non-GAAP results. See “R“ econciliation of Non-NN
GAGG AP MeMM asures” forff details of these items and reconciliations of non-GAAP results to the most directly comparabla e
fiff nancial measures in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”).

For 2022, revenues increased 5% to $30.15 billion, driven by signififf cant growth in our streaming services, led by
Paramount+, and higher theatrical revenues, reflff ecting the success of our 2022 releases, led by TopTT Gun:
MavMM erick. These increases were partially offff sff et by lower revenues frff om our linear networks, including the impact
frff om the rotational naturt e of the rights to air the Super Bowl, which was broadcast on CBS in 2021 but another
network in 2022. The absa ence of the Super Bowl negatively impacted the total revenue comparison by 2
percentage points. The revenue comparison also includes a 2 percentage point negative impact frff om forff eign
exchange rate changes.

Operating income forff 2022 decreased 63% to $2.34 billion. This comparison was impacted by higher charges in
2022 forff restrucrr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters, as well as lower gains on dispositions. Adjusted OIBDA,
which excludes these items, decreased 26%, driven by our investment in our streaming services, and revenue
declines frff om our linear networks, including frff om the comparison to the broadcast of the Super Bowl in 2021.

For 2022, net earnings frff om continuing operations attributabla e to Paramount and diluted EPS frff om continuing
operations decreased 83% and 85%, respectively, frff om 2021, primarily as a result of the decline in operating
income. Adjusted net earnings frff om continuing operations attributabla e to Paramount and adjusted diluted EPS,
which exclude the items impacting the comparabia lity of operating income noted abovea , discrete tax benefiff ts of
$80 million in 2022 and $517 million in 2021, and the other items described under Reconciliation of Non-NN GAGG AP
MeMM asures forff 2022, decreased 49% and 51%, respectively, primarily reflff ecting the lower Adjusted OIBDA.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition (Continued)
(Tabular dollars in millions, except per share amounts)
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Reconciliation of Non-NN GAGG AP MeMM asures

Results forff each of the years presented included certain items identififf ed as affff eff cting comparabia lity. Adjusted
OIBDA, adjusted earnings frff om continuing operations beforff e income taxes, adjusted provision forff income taxes,
adjusted net earnings frff om continuing operations attributabla e to Paramount, and adjusted diluted EPS frff om
continuing operations (together, the “adjusted measures”) exclude the impact of these items and are measures of
perforff mance not calculated in accordance with GAAP. We use these measures to, among other things, evaluate
our operating perforff mance. These measures are among the primaryrr measures used by management forff planning
and forff ecasting of futff urt e periods, and they are important indicators of our operational strength and business
perforff mance. In addition, we use Adjusted OIBDA to, among other things, value prospective acquisitions. We
believe these measures are relevant and usefulff forff investors because they allow investors to view perforff mance in a
manner similar to the method used by our management; provide a clearer perspective on our underlying
perforff mance; and make it easier forff investors, analysts and peers to compare our operating perforff mance to other
companies in our industryrr and to compare our year-over-year results.

Because the adjusted measures are measures of perforff mance not calculated in accordance with GAAP, they
should not be considered in isolation of,ff or as a substitutt e forff , operating income, earnings frff om continuing
operations beforff e income taxes, provision forff income taxes, net earnings frff om continuing operations attributabla e
to Paramount or diluted EPS frff om continuing operations, as appla icabla e, as indicators of operating perforff mance.
These measures, as we calculate them, may not be comparabla e to similarly titled measures employed by other
companies.

The folff lowing tabla es reconcile the adjusted measures to their most directly comparabla e fiff nancial measures in
accordance with GAAP.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Operating income (GAAP) $ 2,342 $ 6,297 $ 4,139
Depreciation and amortization (a) 405 390 430
Restrucr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters (b) 585 100 618
Programming charges (b) — — 159
Net gain on dispositions (b) (56) (2,343) (214)

Adjusted OIBDA (Non-GAAP) $ 3,276 $ 4,444 $ 5,132

(a) 2022 and 2020 include impairment charges forff FCC licenses of $27 million and $25 million, respectively, and 2020 includes
accelerated depreciation of $12 million forff technology that was abaa ndoned in connection with synergy plans related to the merger of
Viacom Inc. (“Viacom”) with and into CBS Corporrr ation (“CBS”) (the “Merger”).

(b) See notes on the folff lowing tabla es forff additional inforff mation on items affff eff cting comparabia lity.
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Year Ended December 31, 2022
Earnings
frff om

Continuing
Operations
Beforff e

Income Taxes
Provision forff
Income Taxes

Net Earnings
frff om

Continuing
Operations

Attributable to
Paramount

Diluted EPS
frff om

Continuing
Operations

Reported (GAAP) $ 1,266 $ (227) $ 725 $ 1.03
Items affff eff cting comparabia lity:
Restrucr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters (a) 585 (137) 448 .69
Impairment charge (b) 27 (7) 20 .03
Gain on dispositions (c) (56) 14 (42) (.06)
Loss frff om investments (d) 9 (1) 8 .01
Loss on extinguishment of debt 120 (28) 92 .14
Discrete tax items (e) — (80) (80) (.13)

Adjusted (Non-GAAP) $ 1,951 $ (466) $ 1,171 $ 1.71

(a) Comprised of charges of $328 million forff restrucrr turt ing, as described under Restructuring and Other CorCC porr ate MatMM tersrr ,
consisting of severance costs and the impairment of lease assets; $211 million associated with litigation described under Legale
MatMM tersrr —St— ockholkk der MatMM tersrr ; and $46 million recorded folff lowing RusRR sia’s invasion of Ukraine in the fiff rst quarter of 2022,
principally to reserve against amounts due frff om counterparr rties in RusRR sia, Belarusrr and Ukraine.

(b) Reflff ects a charge to reduce the carryirr ng values of FCC licenses in two markets to their estimated faff ir values.
(c) Reflff ects a $41 million gain recognized upon the contribution of certain assets of Paramount+ in Denmark, Finland, Norway and
Sweden (the “Nordics”) to SkyShowtime, our streaming joint venturt e (“SkyShowtime”) as well as gains totaling $15 million
frff om the sale of international intangible assets and a working capia tal adjustment to the gain frff om the fourff th quarter 2021 sale of
CBS Studit o Center.

(d) Reflff ects a loss on the sale of a 37.5% interest in The CW and an impairment of an investment sold in the fourff th quarter of 2022.
(e) Primarily reflff ects a defeff rred tax benefiff t resulting frff om the transfeff r of intangible assets between our subsidiaries in connection
with a reorganization of our international operations.
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Year Ended December 31, 2021
Earnings
frff om

Continuing
Operations
Beforff e

Income Taxes
Provision forff
Income Taxes

Net Earnings
frff om

Continuing
Operations

Attributable to
Paramount

Diluted EPS
frff om

Continuing
Operations

Reported (GAAP) $ 5,206 $ (646) $ 4,381 $ 6.69
Items affff eff cting comparabia lity:
Restrucrr turt ing (a) 100 (25) 75 .11
Net gain on dispositions (b) (2,343) 592 (1,751) (2.67)
Gains frff om investments (c) (47) 11 (36) (.05)
Loss on extinguishment of debt 128 (30) 98 .15
Pension settlement charge (d) 10 (2) 8 .01
Discrete tax items (e) — (517) (517) (.79)
Impairment of equity-method investment,
net of tax — — 34 .05

Impact of antidilution of Mandatoryrr
Convertible Prefeff rred Stock (f)ff — — — (.02)

Adjusted (Non-GAAP) $ 3,054 $ (617) $ 2,292 $ 3.48

(a) Reflff ects severance costs and the impairment of lease assets.
(b) Primarily reflff ects gains on the sales of CBS Studit o Center, 51 West 52nd Street, an offff iff ce tower that was forff merly the headquarters
of CBS (“51 West 52nd Street”), and a noncore trademark licensing operation.

(c) Primarily reflff ects a gain of $37 million on the sale of an investment and a gain of $9 million frff om an increase in the faff ir value of an
investment that was sold during the third quarter of 2021.

(d) Reflff ects the accelerated recognition of a portion of the unamortized actuat rial losses due to the volume of lump sum benefiff t
payments in one of our pension plans.

(e) Primarily reflff ects a benefiff t of $260 million to remeasure our United Kingdom (“U.K.”) net defeff rred income tax asset as a result of
the enactment of an increase in the U.K. corporrr ate income tax rate frff om 19% to 25% beginning April 1, 2023, a benefiff t of $229
million frff om the recognition of a capia tal loss associated with a change in the tax entity classififf cation of a forff eign subsidiary,r as
well as a net tax benefiff t in connection with the settlement of income tax audits.

(f)ff The weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in the calculation of reported diluted EPS frff om continuing
operations was 655 million and in the calculation of adjusted diluted EPS frff om continuing operations was 646 million. These
amounts diffff eff r because adjusted diluted EPS excludes the effff eff ct of the assumed conversion of our Mandatoryr Convertible
Prefeff rred Stock into shares of common stock since the impact would have been antidilutive. As a result, in the calculation of
adjusted diluted EPS, the weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding does not include the assumed issuance of shares
upon conversion of prefeff rred stock, and prefeff rred stock dividends recorded during the year ended December 31, 2021 of $44
million are deducted frff om net earnings frff om continuing operations.
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Year Ended December 31, 2020
Earnings
frff om

Continuing
Operations
Beforff e

Income Taxes
Provision forff
Income Taxes

Net Earnings
frff om

Continuing
Operations

Attributable to
Paramount

Diluted EPS
frff om

Continuing
Operations

Reported (GAAP) $ 3,147 $ (535) $ 2,305 $ 3.73
Items affff eff cting comparabia lity:
Restrucrr turt ing and other corporr ate matters (a) 618 (133) 485 .79
Impairment charge (b) 25 (6) 19 .03
Depreciation of abaa ndoned technology (c) 12 (3) 9 .01
Programming charges (d) 159 (39) 120 .20
Gain on dispositions (e) (214) 31 (183) (.30)
Net gains frff om investments (f)ff (206) 50 (156) (.25)
Loss on extinguishment of debt 126 (29) 97 .16
Discrete tax items (g) — (110) (110) (.18)
Impairment of equity-method investment,
net of tax — — 9 .01

Adjusted (Non-GAAP) $ 3,667 $ (774) $ 2,595 $ 4.20

(a) Comprised of charges of $542 million forff restrucrr turt ing, consisting of severance costs, the impairment of lease assets and other
exit costs; costs of $56 million incurred in connection with the Merger; and charges of $15 million to write down property and
equipment that was classififf ed as held forff sale and $5 million forff other corporrr ate matters.

(b) Reflff ects a charge to reduce the carryirr ng values of FCC licenses in two markets to their estimated faff ir values.
(c) Reflff ects accelerated depreciation forff technology that was abaa ndoned in connection with synergy plans related to the Merger.
(d) Primarily related to the abaa ndonment of certain incomplete programs resulting frff om production shutdowns related to the
coronavirusrr pandemic (“COVID-19”).

(e) Reflff ects a gain on the sale of CNET Media Group (“CMG”).
(f)ff Primarily reflff ects an increase in the value of our investment in fuboTff V, Inc. (“fuboTff V”), which was sold in the fourff th quarter of
2020.

(g) Primarily reflff ects a benefiff t frff om the remeasurement of our U.K. net defeff rred income tax asset as a result of an increase in the
U.K. corporrr ate income tax rate frff om 17% to 19% enacted during the third quarter of 2020.

Consolidated Results of Operations - 2022 vs. 2021

Revenues

Revenues by Type % of Total % of Total Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 Revenues 2021 Revenues $ %
Advertising $10,890 36 % $11,412 40 % $ (522) (5)%
Affff iff liate and subscription 11,551 38 10,442 36 1,109 11
Theatrical 1,223 4 241 1 982 407
Licensing and other 6,490 22 6,491 23 (1) —
Total Revenues $30,154 100 % $28,586 100 % $ 1,568 5 %

Advertisii ing

Advertising revenues are generated primarily frff om the sale of advertising spots on our global broadcast and cabla e
networks, television stations, and streaming services. For 2022, the 5% decrease in advertising revenues
principally reflff ects the rotational naturt e of the rights to broadcast the Super Bowl, which aired on CBS in 2021
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but another network in 2022, resulting in a negative impact on the advertising comparison of 4 percentage points.
The advertising revenue comparison also includes a negative impact of 2 percentage points frff om unfaff vorabla e
forff eign exchange rate changes.

AfA fff iff liate and Subscripti ion

Affff iff liate and subscription revenues are principally comprised of feff es received frff om multichannel video
programming distributors (“MVPDs”) and third-party live television streaming services (“virtuat l MVPDs” or
“vMVPDs”) forff carriage of our cabla e networks (cabla e affff iff liate feff es) and our owned television stations
(retransmission feff es), feff es received frff om television stations forff their affff iff liation with the CBS Television Network
(“reverse compensation”), and subscription feff es forff our streaming services. For 2022, affff iff liate and subscription
revenues increased 11% driven by growth in subscribers forff our streaming services of 21.2 million, or 38%, to
77.3 million at December 31, 2022 frff om 56.1 million at December 31, 2021, led by an increase of 23.1 million forff
Paramount+ to 55.9 million at December 31, 2022. The increase was partially offff sff et by lower affff iff liate feff es forff our
linear networks.

TheTT atrical

Theatrical revenues are principally earned frff om the worldwide theatrical distribution of fiff lms through audience
ticket sales. For 2022, theatrical revenues increased $982 million driven by the success of our 2022 releases, led
by TopTT Gun: MavMM erick, as well as Sonic the HeHH dgehog 2, Smile and TheTT Lost Cityt . We had feff wer theatrical
releases in 2021, due to the impacts frff om COVID-19 on movie theaters and fiff lm production. Releases in 2021
included A Quiet Place Part IIII and PAPP W Patrol: TheTT MovMM ie.

Licensing and Other

Licensing and other revenues are principally comprised of feff es frff om the licensing of the rights to exhibit our
internally-produced television and fiff lm programming on various platforff ms in the secondaryrr market aftff er its initial
exhibition on our owned or third-party platforff ms; license feff es frff om content produced or distributed forff third
parties; home entertainment revenues, which include the viewing of our content on a transactional basis through
transactional video-on-demand (TVOD) and electronic sell-through services and the sale and distribution of our
content through DVDs and Blu-ray discs to wholesale and retail partners; feff es frff om the use of our trademarks and
brands forff consumer products, recreation and live events; and revenues frff om the rental of production faff cilities.
Licensing and other revenues forff 2022 of $6.49 billion remained flff at compared with 2021.

OpeO rating ExEE pex nses

% of % of
Operating Expenses by Type Operating Operating Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 Expenses 2021 Expenses $ %
Content costs $15,980 81 % $14,703 83 % $ 1,277 9 %
Distribution and other 3,865 19 3,041 17 824 27
Total Operating Expenses $19,845 100 % $17,744 100 % $ 2,101 12 %

ContCC ent CosCC tstt

Content costs include the amortization of costs of internally-produced television and theatrical fiff lm content;
amortization of acquired program rights; other television production costs, including on-air talent; and
participation and residuals expenses, which reflff ect amounts owed to talent and other participants in our content
pursuant to contractuat l and collective bargaining arrangements.
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For 2022, content costs increased 9% reflff ecting investment in content forff our streaming services and higher costs
associated with theatrical releases, partially offff sff et by costs in 2021 frff om CBS’ broadcast of the Super Bowl.

In Januaryrr 2023, we announced that we will be fulff ly integrating Showtime into Paramount+ across both streaming
and linear platforff ms later in 2023. In connection with this plan, we have undertaken a comprehensive strategic
review of the combined content portfolff io of Showtime and Paramount+. At the same time, we are rationalizing
and right-sizing our international operations to align with our streaming strategy, and closing or globalizing
certain of our international channels. We plan to complete this review in the fiff rst quarter of 2023 and abaa ndon or
remove frff om our platforff ms certain content, which will result in charges forff the impairment or abaa ndonment of the
affff eff cted content, which we estimate will be appra oximately $1.3 billion to $1.5 billion.

Disii tribution and Other

Distribution and other operating expenses primarily include costs relating to the distribution of our content,
including print and advertising forff theatrical releases and costs forff third-party distribution; compensation;
revenue-sharing costs to television stations affff iff liated with the CBS Television Network; and other ancillaryrr and
overhead costs associated with our operations.

For 2022, distribution and other expenses increased 27% primarily reflff ecting higher costs associated with
theatrical content as well as the growth of our streaming services, including costs forff third-party distribution and
to support the international expansion of our streaming services.

SeSS lling, General and Adminisii trative ExEE pex nses

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 7,033 $ 6,398 $ 635 10 %

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses include costs incurred forff advertising, marketing,
occupancy, profeff ssional service feff es, and back offff iff ce support, including employee compensation and technology.
The 10% increase in SG&A expenses in 2022 was driven by advertising, marketing and other cost increases to
support the growth and expansion of our streaming services.

Depre eciation and Amortizii ation

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
Depreciation and amortization $ 405 $ 390 $ 15 4 %

Depreciation and amortization expense reflff ects depreciation of fiff xed assets, including equipment under fiff nance
leases, amortization of fiff nite-lived intangible assets, and impairment of fiff xed and intangible assets, when
appla icabla e. For 2022, amortization expense included an impairment charge of $27 million in the TV MeMM dia
segment to write down the carryirr ng values of FCC licenses in two markets to their estimated faff ir values. The
impairment charge was the result of a higher discount rate utilized in our annual impairment tests, reflff ecting the
impacts of market volatility and higher interest rates.
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Restructuring and Other CorCC porrr ate MatMM tersrr

During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, we recorded the folff lowing costs associated with
restrucrr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Severance (a) $ 260 $ 65
Lease impairments and other exit costs 68 35
Restrucr turt ing charges 328 100
Other corporr ate matters 257 —
Restrucr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters $ 585 $ 100

(a) Severance costs include the accelerated vesting of stock-based compensation.

Since the Merger, we have implemented a series of initiatives designed to integrate and transforff m our operations,
including changes in our management strucrr turt e, some of which resulted in changes to our operating segments (see
Segme entstt ). These initiatives led to restrucrr turt ing actions, and as a result, we recorded restrucrr turt ing charges of $260
million and $65 million during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, forff severance
associated with the elimination of positions and changes in management. In 2022, the actions giving rise to the
restrucrr turt ing charges are primarily associated with our segment realignment, our plan to integrate Showtime into
Paramount+ across both streaming and linear platforff ms, and restrucrr turt ing of our international operations. In
addition, since the Merger we have been consolidating our real estate portfolff io to reduce our real estate footff prt int
and create cost synergies. In connection with this consolidation, we identififf ed lease assets that we determined we
would not use and instead sublease or terminate early, which resulted in lease impairment charges of $68 million
and $35 million forff the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Additionally, in 2022, we recorded charges forff other corporrr ate matters of $257 million, consisting of $211 million
associated with litigation described under Legale MatMM tersrr —St— ockholkk del r MatMM tersrr and $46 million recorded
folff lowing RusRR sia’s invasion of Ukraine in the fiff rst quarter of 2022, principally to reserve against amounts due
frff om counterparr rties in RusRR sia, Belarusrr and Ukraine.

NeNN t Gain on Disii poss itions

During 2022, we recorded a gain of $41 million relating to the contribution of certain assets of Paramount+ in the
Nordics to SkyShowtime. Also in 2022, we recorded gains on dispositions totaling $15 million, comprised of a
gain frff om the sale of international intangible assets and a working capia tal adjustment to the gain frff om the fourff th
quarter 2021 sale of CBS Studit o Center.

During 2021, we completed the sale of 51 West 52nd Street to Harborr Group International, LLC, forff $760
million. This transaction resulted in a gain during the fourff th quarter of 2021 of $523 million.

Also in 2021, we completed the sale of CBS Studit o Center to Hackman Capia tal Partners, LLC and Square Mile
Capia tal Management, LLC forff $1.85 billion. This transaction resulted in a gain during the fourff th quarter of 2021
of $1.70 billion.

In addition, during 2021 we recognized a net gain of $117 million, principally relating to the sale of a noncore
trademark licensing operation.
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IntII erest ExEE pex nse and IntII erest IncII ome

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
Interest expense $ 931 $ 986 $ (55) (6)%
Interest income $ 108 $ 53 $ 55 104 %

The folff lowing tabla e presents our outstanding debt balances, excluding fiff nance leases, and the weighted average
interest rate as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Weighted Average Weighted Average
At December 31, 2022 Interest Rate 2021 Interest Rate
Total long-term debt $15,781 5.13 % $17,658 4.93 %
Other bank borrowings $ 55 7.09 % $ 35 3.50 %

NeNN t Gains (L(( osses)s frff om InvII estmtt entstt

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
Net gains (losses) frff om investments $ (9) $ 47 $ (56) (119)%

Net gains (losses) frff om investment forff 2022 includes a loss of $4 million on the sale of a 37.5% interest in The
CW, which is principally comprised of transaction costs, and a $5 million impairment of an investment that was
sold during the fourff th quarter of 2022. Net gains (losses) frff om investments forff 2021 primarily includes a gain of
$37 million on the sale of an investment and a gain of $9 million frff om an increase in the faff ir value of a
marketabla e security that was sold during the third quarter of 2021.

Loss on ExEE tinguisii hment of Debt

For 2022 and 2021, we recorded losses on extinguishment of debt of $120 million and $128 million, respectively,
associated with the early redemption of long-term debt of $2.91 billion in 2022 and $1.99 billion in 2021.

Other ItII ems, NeNN t

The folff lowing tabla e presents the components of Other items, net.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Pension and postretirement benefiff t costs $ (65) $ (43)
Foreign exchange losses (58) (26)
Pension settlement charge (a) — (10)
Other (1) 2
Other items, net $ (124) $ (77)

(a) Reflff ects the accelerated recognition of a portion of the unamortized actuat rial losses due to the
volume of lump sum benefiff t payments in one of our pension plans.

Provisii ion forff IncII ome TaxTT es

The provision forff income taxes represents feff deral, state and local, and forff eign taxes on earnings frff om continuing
operations beforff e income taxes and equity in loss of investee companies. For 2022, we recorded a provision forff
income taxes of $227 million, reflff ecting an effff eff ctive income tax rate of 17.9%. Included in the provision forff
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income taxes was a net discrete tax benefiff t of $80 million, primarily resulting frff om the transfeff r of intangible
assets between our subsidiaries in connection with a reorganization of our international operations. This net
discrete tax benefiff t, together with a net tax benefiff t of $159 million on the items identififf ed as affff eff cting
comparabia lity in Reconciliation of Non-NN GAGG AP MeMM asures, which primarily consist of restrucrr turt ing and other
corporrr ate matters, reduced our effff eff ctive income tax rate by 6.0 percentage points.

For 2021, we recorded a provision forff income taxes of $646 million, reflff ecting an effff eff ctive income tax rate of
12.4%. Included in the provision forff income taxes was a net discrete tax benefiff t of $517 million, which includes a
benefiff t of $260 million to remeasure our U.K. net defeff rred income tax asset as a result of the enactment during the
second quarter of 2021 of an increase in the U.K. corporrr ate income tax rate frff om 19% to 25% beginning April 1,
2023, a benefiff t of $229 million frff om the recognition of a capia tal loss associated with a change in the tax entity
classififf cation of a forff eign subsidiary,rr as well as a net tax benefiff t in connection with the settlement of income tax
audits. The net discrete tax benefiff t of $517 million, together with a net tax provision of $546 million on the items
identififf ed as affff eff cting comparabia lity in Reconciliation of Non-NN GAGG AP MeMM asures, which principally include net
gains on dispositions, reduced our effff eff ctive income tax rate by 7.8 percentage points.

Equitytt in Loss of InvII estee ComCC panim es, NeNN t of TaxTT

The folff lowing tabla e presents equity in loss of investee companies forff our equity-method investments.

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
Equity in loss of investee companies $ (237) $ (140) $ (97) (69)%
Tax benefiff t 33 49 (16) (33)
Equity in loss of investee companies, net of tax $ (204) $ (91) $ (113) (124)%

For 2022, the increase in equity in loss of investee companies, net of tax was driven by our investment in
SkyShowtime.

For 2021, equity in loss of investee companies, net of tax includes an impairment charge of $34 million relating to
a television joint venturt e.

NeNN t Earnings frff om ContCC inuing OpeO rations Attrt ibutable to Paramount and Diluted EPEE SP frff om ContCC inuing
OpeO rations Attributable to Paramount

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
Net earnings frff om continuing operations attributabla e to
Paramount $ 725 $ 4,381 $ (3,656) (83)%

Diluted EPS frff om continuing operations attributabla e to
Paramount $ 1.03 $ 6.69 $ (5.66) (85)%

For 2022, net earnings frff om continuing operations attributabla e to Paramount and diluted EPS frff om continuing
operations decreased 83% and 85%, respectively, driven by the decrease in operating income, including the
comparison to net gains on dispositions totaling $2.34 billion in 2021.
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NeNN t Earnings frff om Disii continued OpeO rations

In November 2020, we entered into an agreement to sell our publishing business, Simon & Schuster, which was
previously reported as the Publisii hing segment, to Penguin Random House LLC (“Penguin Random House”), a
wholly owned subsidiaryrr of Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA. As a result, we began presenting Simon & Schuster as
a discontinued operation in our consolidated fiff nancial statements forff the fourff th quarter of 2020. In November
2021, the U.S. Department of Justice (the “DOJ”) fiff led suit in the United States District Court forff the District of
Columbia to block the sale and in October 2022 the Court rulrr ed in faff vor of the DOJ. In November 2022, we
terminated the agreement and in accordance with its terms, subsequently received a $200 million termination feff e
(see Legale MatMM tersrr ). Simon & Schuster remains a noncore asset as it does not fiff t strategically within our video-
based portfolff io. We expect to enter into a new agreement to sell Simon & Schuster in 2023. Assuming that we do
so, closing would be subject to closing conditions that would include regulatoryrr appra oval. Simon & Schuster
continues to be presented as a discontinued operation forff all periods presented.

The folff lowing tabla es set forff th details of net earnings frff om discontinued operations forff the years ended December
31, 2022 and 2021.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 Simon & Schuster Other (a) Total
Revenues $ 1,177 $ — $ 1,177
Costs and expenses:
Operating 746 (30) 716
Selling, general and administrative 180 — 180
Restrucr turt ing charges 3 — 3
Total costs and expenses 929 (30) 899

Operating income 248 30 278
Termination feff e, net of advisoryrr feff es 190 — 190
Other items, net (12) — (12)
Earnings frff om discontinued operations 426 30 456
Income tax provision (70) (7) (77)
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax $ 356 $ 23 $ 379

Year Ended December 31, 2021 Simon & Schuster Other (a) Total
Revenues $ 993 $ — $ 993
Costs and expenses:
Operating 618 (16) 602
Selling, general and administrative 158 — 158
Depreciation and amortization 3 — 3
Restrucr turt ing charges 1 — 1
Total costs and expenses 780 (16) 764

Operating income 213 16 229
Other items, net (10) — (10)
Earnings frff om discontinued operations 203 16 219
Income tax provision (46) (11) (57)
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax $ 157 $ 5 $ 162

(a) Primarily relates to indemnififf cation obligations forff leases associated with the previously discontinued operations of Famous
Players Inc. (“Famous Players”).

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition (Continued)
(Tabular dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

II-14



Consolidated Results of Operations— 2021 vs. 2020

Revenues

Revenues by Type % of Total % of Total Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 Revenues 2020 Revenues $ %
Advertising $11,412 40 % $ 9,751 39 % $ 1,661 17 %
Affff iff liate and subscription 10,442 36 9,166 36 1,276 14
Theatrical 241 1 180 1 61 34
Licensing and other 6,491 23 6,188 24 303 5
Total Revenues $28,586 100 % $25,285 100 % $ 3,301 13 %

Advertisii ing

For 2021, the 17% increase in advertising revenues was driven by the benefiff t in 2021 frff om CBS’ broadcasts of
Super Bowl LV and NCNN ACC A Divisii ion I MeMM n’s Baskekk tball ChamCC pim onshipi (the “NCAA Tournament”) games forff
which there were no comparabla e broadcasts on CBS in 2020 and higher advertising forff Pluto TV and Paramount+.
We have the rights to broadcast the Super Bowl and the national semi-fiff nals and championship games of the
NCAA Tournament on a rotational basis with other networks, including in 2021. Additionally, while we share the
games in the preceding rounds of the NCAA Tournament with Turner Broadcasting System, Inc. (“Turner”) each
year, COVID-19 caused the cancellation of the NCAA Tournament in 2020. These noncomparabla e sporting
events contributed 8 percentage points of the advertising revenue increase forff 2021. The advertising revenue
growth also reflff ected higher pricing and demand compared with 2020, which was negatively impacted by
COVID-19. These increases were partially offff sff et by lower linear impressions forff our domestic networks and
lower political advertising sales, reflff ecting the benefiff t to 2020 frff om the U.S. Presidential election.

AfA fff iff liate and Subscripti ion

For 2021, affff iff liate and subscription revenues increased 14% driven by growth in subscribers forff our streaming
services of 26.2 million to 56.1 million at December 31, 2021 frff om 29.9 million at December 31, 2020, led by an
increase of 21.1 million forff Paramount+ to 32.8 million at December 31, 2021. The increase also reflff ects higher
affff iff liate feff es forff our linear networks, driven by rate increases, the launch of our basic cabla e networks in June 2020
and April 2021 on two vMVPDs, growth in reverse compensation, and higher revenues frff om pay-per-view boxing
events, partially offff sff et by the impact frff om subscriber declines.

TheTT atrical

For 2021, the 34% increase in theatrical revenues reflff ects the benefiff t frff om 2021 releases including A Quiet Place
Part IIII and PAPP W Patrol: TheTT MovMM ie, while 2020 was impacted by the closure or reduced capaa city of movie
theaters in response to COVID-19, folff lowing the release of Sonic the HeHH dgehog in the fiff rst quarter of 2020, and
throughout the remainder of the year.

Licensing and Other

For 2021, licensing and other revenues increased 5%, reflff ecting a higher volume of licensing, including frff om the
timing of program availabia lities as a result of production shutdowns in 2020 because of COVID-19, and increased
licensing forff consumer products. These increases were partially offff sff et by the benefiff t to 2020 frff om the licensing of
the domestic streaming rights to South Parkrr .
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OpeO rating ExEE pex nses

% of % of
Operating Expenses by Type Operating Operating Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 Expense 2020 Expense $ %
Content costs $14,703 83 % $11,933 80 % $ 2,770 23 %
Programming charges — — 159 1 (159) n/m
Distribution and other 3,041 17 2,900 19 141 5
Total Operating Expenses $17,744 100 % $14,992 100 % $ 2,752 18 %
n/m - not meaningfulff

ContCC ent CosCC tstt

For 2021, the 23% increase in production expenses was primarily a result of an increased investment in content
forff our streaming services; the timing of production, as 2020 was impacted by shutdowns as a result of
COVID-19; higher sports programming costs, principally associated with noncomparabla e sporting events; and
higher costs associated with increased licensing revenues and the mix of titles licensed in each year.

Programming CharCC ger s

During 2020, we recorded programming charges of $159 million primarily related to the abaa ndonment of certain
incomplete programs resulting frff om production shutdowns related to COVID-19.

Disii tribution and Other

For 2021, the 5% increase was a result of cost increases associated with the growth of our streaming services.

SeSS lling, General and Adminisii trative ExEE pex nses

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 $ %
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 6,398 $ 5,320 $ 1,078 20 %

For 2021, the 20% increase in SG&A expenses was driven by advertising, marketing and other cost increases to
support the growth and expansion of our streaming services, including the March 2021 launch of Paramount+.
The increase also reflff ects higher advertising and marketing costs to promote the increased level of original
programming in 2021.

Depre eciation and Amortizii ation

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 $ %
Depreciation and amortization $ 390 $ 430 $ (40) (9)%

For 2020, amortization expense included an impairment charge of $25 million in the TV MeMM dia segment to write
down the carryirr ng values of FCC licenses in two markets to their estimated faff ir values and accelerated
depreciation of $12 million resulting frff om the abaa ndonment of technology in connection with synergy plans
related to the Merger.
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Restructuring and Other CorCC porrr ate MatMM tersrr

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, we recorded the folff lowing costs associated with
restrucrr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters.

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Severance (a) $ 65 $ 472
Lease impairments and other exit costs 35 70
Restrucr turt ing charges 100 542
Merger-related costs — 56
Other corporr ate matters — 20
Restrucr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters $ 100 $ 618

(a) Severance costs include the accelerated vesting of stock-based compensation.

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, we recorded restrucrr turt ing charges of $65
million and $472 million forff severance associated with the elimination of positions and changes in management,
as well as lease impairment charges of $35 million and $42 million. For the year ended December 31, 2020, we
also recorded other exit costs of $28 million resulting frff om the termination of contractuat l obligations.

Additionally, in 2020, we incurred costs of $56 million in connection with the Merger, consisting of profeff ssional
feff es mainly associated with integration activities, as well as transaction-related bonuses. We also incurred costs of
$5 million forff profeff ssional feff es associated with dispositions and other corporrr ate matters, and we recorded a
charge of $15 million to write down property and equipment, which was classififf ed as held forff sale in 2020, to its
faff ir value less costs to sell.

NeNN t Gain on Disii poss itions

During 2021, we completed the sale of 51 West 52nd Street to Harborr Group International, LLC, forff $760
million. This transaction resulted in a gain during the fourff th quarter of 2021 of $523 million.

Also in 2021, we completed the sale of CBS Studit o Center to Hackman Capia tal Partners, LLC and Square Mile
Capia tal Management, LLC forff $1.85 billion. This transaction resulted in a gain during the fourff th quarter of 2021
of $1.70 billion.

In addition, during 2021 we recognized a net gain of $117 million, principally relating to the sale of a noncore
trademark licensing operation.

In October 2020, we completed the sale of CMG to Red Venturt es forff $484 million. This transaction resulted in a
gain of $214 million.

IntII erest ExEE pex nse and IntII erest IncII ome

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 $ %
Interest expense $ 986 $ 1,031 $ (45) (4)%
Interest income $ 53 $ 60 $ (7) (12)%
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The folff lowing tabla e presents our outstanding debt balances, excluding fiff nance leases, and the weighted average
interest rate as of December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Weighted Average Weighted Average
At December 31, 2021 Interest Rate 2020 Interest Rate
Total long-term debt $17,658 4.93 % $19,612 4.80 %
Other bank borrowings $ 35 3.50 % $ 95 3.50 %

NeNN t Gains frff om InvII estmtt entstt

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 $ %
Net gains frff om investments $ 47 $ 206 $ (159) (77)%

For 2021, net gains frff om investments primarily include a gain of $37 million on the sale of an investment and a
gain of $9 million frff om an increase in the faff ir value of a marketabla e security that was sold during the third quarter
of 2021. For 2020, net gains frff om investments primarily reflff ect an increase of $213 million in the faff ir value of our
investment in fuboTff V, which was sold in the fourff th quarter of 2020.

Loss on Earlyll ExEE tinguisii hment of Debt

For 2021 and 2020, we recorded losses on extinguishment of debt of $128 million and $126 million, respectively,
associated with the early redemption of long-term debt of $1.99 billion in 2021 and $2.77 billion in 2020.

Other ItII ems, NeNN t

The folff lowing tabla e presents the components of Other items, net.

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Pension and postretirement benefiff t costs $ (43) $ (69)
Foreign exchange losses (26) (35)
Pension settlement charge (a) (10) —
Other 2 3
Other items, net $ (77) $ (101)

(a) Reflff ects the accelerated recognition of a portion of the unamortized actuat rial losses due to
the volume of lump sum benefiff t payments in one of our pension plans.

Provisii ion forff IncII ome TaxTT es

For 2021, we recorded a provision forff income taxes of $646 million, reflff ecting an effff eff ctive income tax rate of
12.4%. Included in the provision forff income taxes was a net discrete tax benefiff t of $517 million, which includes a
benefiff t of $260 million to remeasure our U.K. net defeff rred income tax asset as a result of the enactment during the
second quarter of 2021 of an increase in the U.K. corporrr ate income tax rate frff om 19% to 25% beginning April 1,
2023, a benefiff t of $229 million frff om the recognition of a capia tal loss associated with a change in the tax entity
classififf cation of a forff eign subsidiary,rr as well as a net tax benefiff t in connection with the settlement of income tax
audits. The net discrete tax benefiff t of $517 million, together with a net tax provision of $546 million on the items
identififf ed as affff eff cting comparabia lity in Reconciliation of Non-NN GAGG AP MeMM asures, which principally include net
gains on dispositions, reduced our effff eff ctive income tax rate by 7.8 percentage points.
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For 2020, the provision forff income taxes was $535 million, reflff ecting an effff eff ctive income tax rate of 17.0%.
Included in the provision forff income taxes was a net discrete tax benefiff t of $110 million, primarily consisting of a
benefiff t of $100 million to remeasure our U.K. net defeff rred income tax asset as a result of an increase in the UK
corporrr ate income tax rate frff om 17% to 19% enacted during the third quarter of 2020, as well as a tax benefiff t of
$13 million realized in connection with the preparation of the 2019 tax returt ns. These items, together with a net
tax benefiff t of $129 million on the items identififf ed as affff eff cting comparabia lity in Reconciliation of Non-NN GAGG AP
MeMM asures, including restrucrr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters, programming charges, loss on extinguishment of
debt and net gains frff om dispositions and investments, reduced our effff eff ctive income tax rate by 4.1 percentage
points.

Equitytt in Loss of InvII estee ComCC panim es, NeNN t of TaxTT

The folff lowing tabla e presents equity in loss of investee companies forff our equity-method investments.

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 $ %
Equity in loss of investee companies $ (140) $ (47) $ (93) (198)%
Tax benefiff t 49 19 30 158
Equity in loss of investee companies, net of tax $ (91) $ (28) $ (63) (225)%

For 2021 and 2020, equity in loss of investee companies, net of tax includes impairment charges of $34 million
and $9 million, respectively, relating to television joint venturt es.

NeNN t Earnings Attributable to NoncNN ontrolling IntII ereststt

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Net earnings attributabla e to noncontrolling interests $ (88) $ (279)

For 2020, net earnings attributabla e to noncontrolling interests primarily reflff ects our joint venturt e partners’ share
of profiff t frff om the licensing of the domestic streaming rights to South Parkrr to a streaming service.

NeNN t Earnings frff om ContCC inuing OpeO rations Attributable to Paramount and Diluted EPEE SP frff om ContCC inuing
OpeO rations Attributable to Paramount

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 $ %
Net earnings frff om continuing operations attributabla e to
Paramount $ 4,381 $ 2,305 $ 2,076 90 %
Diluted EPS frff om continuing operations attributabla e to
Paramount $ 6.69 $ 3.73 $ 2.96 79 %

For 2021, net earnings frff om continuing operations attributabla e to Paramount and diluted EPS frff om continuing
operations increased 90% and 79%, respectively, primarily driven by the abovea -mentioned gains on dispositions
of $1.75 billion, net of tax and higher discrete tax benefiff ts in 2021. The diluted EPS comparison also includes the
effff eff ct of higher weighted average shares outstanding as a result of stock issuances in the fiff rst quarter of 2021,
which negatively impacted EPS forff 2021 by $.26.
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NeNN t Earnings frff om Disii continued OpeO rations

The folff lowing tabla es set forff th details of net earnings frff om discontinued operations forff the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020.

Year Ended December 31, 2021 Simon & Schuster Other (a) Total
Revenues $ 993 $ — $ 993
Costs and expenses:
Operating 618 (16) 602
Selling, general and administrative 158 — 158
Depreciation and amortization 3 — 3
Restrucr turt ing charges 1 — 1
Total costs and expenses 780 (16) 764

Operating income 213 16 229
Other items, net (10) — (10)
Earnings frff om discontinued operations 203 16 219
Income tax provision (46) (11) (57)
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax $ 157 $ 5 $ 162

Year Ended December 31, 2020 Simon & Schuster Other (a) Total
Revenues $ 901 $ — $ 901
Costs and expenses:
Operating 573 (19) 554
Selling, general and administrative 172 — 172
Depreciation and amortization 5 — 5
Restrucr turt ing charges 10 — 10
Total costs and expenses 760 (19) 741

Operating income 141 19 160
Other items, net (5) — (5)
Earnings frff om discontinued operations 136 19 155
Income tax provision (34) (4) (38)
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax $ 102 $ 15 $ 117

(a) Primarily relates to indemnififf cation obligations forff leases associated with the previously discontinued operations of Famous
Players.
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Segments

Beginning in the fiff rst quarter of 2022, primarily as a result of our increased strategic focff us on our direct-to-
consumer streaming businesses, we made certain changes to how we manage our businesses and allocate
resources that resulted in a change to our operating segments. Our management strucrr turt e was reorganized to focff us
on managing our business as the combination of three parts: a traditional media business, a portfolff io of domestic
and international streaming services, and a fiff lm studit o. Accordingly, beginning in 2022, and forff all periods
presented we are reporting results based on the folff lowing segments:

TV MeMM dia—Our TV MeMM dia segment consists of our (1) broadcast operations — the CBS Television Network, our
domestic broadcast television network; CBS Stations, our owned television stations; and our international frff ee-to-
air networks, Network 10, Channel 5, Telefeff , and Chilevisión; (2) premium and basic cabla e networks, including
Showtime, MTV, Comedy Central, Paramount Network, The Smithsonian Channel, Nickelodeon, BET Media
Group, CBS Sports Network, and international extensions of certain of these brands; (3) domestic and
international television studit o operations, including CBS Studit os, Paramount Television Studit os and MTV
Entertainment Studit os as well as CBS Media Venturt es, which produces and distributes fiff rst-runrr syndicated
programming. TV MeMM dia also includes a number of digital properties such as CBS News Streaming and CBS
Sports HQ.

DDirect-to-ConsCC umerr—rrrr Our Direct-to-ConsCC umer segment consists of our pportf lolff iio of ddomestiic a dnd iinternatiionall
ppayy a dnd ffrff ee streamii gng ser ivices, iincll diudi gng Paramount+, Plluto TV, Shhowtiime Networkks’ premiium s bubscriiptiion
streamii gng ser ivice ((“Shhowtiime OTT”)), BET+ a dnd Noggioggin.

FFiFF llml edd EntEE ertainme tnt—tttt Our FiFF lml ed EntEE ertainment segment consiists of Paramount Piicturt es, Paramount Pllayyers,
Paramount A inimatiion, Niickkell dodeon St diudit o, Awesomeness a dnd Miiramaxx.

In Januaryrr 2023, we announced that we will be fulff ly integrating Showtime into Paramount+ across both streaming
and linear platforff ms later in 2023.

We present operating income excluding depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation, costs forff
restrucrr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters, programming charges and net gain on dispositions, each where
appla icabla e (“Adjusted OIBDA”), as the primaryrr measure of profiff t and loss forff our operating segments in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board guidance forff segment reporting since it is the primaryrr
method used by our management. Stock-based compensation is excluded frff om our segment measure of profiff t and
loss because it is set and appra oved by our Board of Directors in consultation with corporrr ate executive
management. Stock-based compensation is included as a component of our consolidated Adjusted OIBDA. See
Reconciliation of Non-NN GAGG AP MeMM asures forff a reconciliation of total Adjusted OIBDA to Operating Income, the
most directly comparabla e fiff nancial measure in accordance with GAAP.
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Segment Results of Operations - 2022 vs. 2021

% of Total % of Total Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 Revenues 2021 Revenues $ %
Revenues:
TV Media $ 21,732 72 % $ 22,734 80 % $ (1,002) (4)%
Direct-to-Consumer 4,904 16 3,327 12 1,577 47
Filmed Entertainment 3,706 13 2,687 9 1,019 38
Eliminations (188) (1) (162) (1) (26) (16)
Total Revenues $ 30,154 100 % $ 28,586 100 % $ 1,568 5 %

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
Adjd usted OIBDA:
TV Media $ 5,451 $ 5,892 $ (441) (7)%
Direct-to-Consumer (1,819) (992) (827) (83)
Filmed Entertainment 272 207 65 31
Corporrr ate/Eliminations (470) (491) 21 4
Stock-based compensation (158) (172) 14 8
Total Adjd usted OIBDA 3,276 4,444 (1,168) (26)

Depreciation and amortization (405) (390) (15) (4)
Restrucrr turt ing and other corporr ate matters (585) (100) (485) (485)
Net gain on dispositions 56 2,343 (2,287) (98)
Total Operating Income $ 2,342 $ 6,297 $ (3,955) (63)%
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TV MeMM dia

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
Advertising $ 9,350 $ 10,105 $ (755) (7)%
Affff iff liate and subscription 8,180 8,413 (233) (3)
Licensing and other 4,202 4,216 (14) —
Revenues $ 21,732 $ 22,734 $ (1,002) (4)%

Adjusted OIBDA $ 5,451 $ 5,892 $ (441) (7)%

Revenues

For 2022, revenues decreased 4%, primarily reflff ecting lower advertising revenues, driven by the comparison
against CBS’ broadcast of the Super Bowl in 2021, which negatively impacted the total revenue comparison by 2
percentage points.

Advertisii ing

The 7% decrease in advertising revenues was driven by the rotational naturt e of the rights to broadcast the Super
Bowl, which aired on CBS in 2021 but another network in 2022, resulting in a negative impact on the advertising
revenue comparison of 4 percentage points. Additionally, declines forff our domestic networks frff om lower
impressions were only partially offff sff et by higher pricing, reflff ecting softff ness in the advertising market. The decline
also reflff ects unfaff vorabla e forff eign exchange rate changes, which negatively impacted the total advertising revenue
comparison by 1 percentage point. These decreases were partially offff sff et by higher advertising forff our local
televisions stations, which benefiff ted the total advertising revenue comparison by 1 percentage point, driven by
higher political advertising sales. The total advertising revenue comparison also includes the benefiff t frff om the
acquisition of Chilevisión in the third quarter of 2021.

AfA fff iff liate and Subscripti ion

The 3% decrease in affff iff liate and subscription revenues mainly reflff ects lower international affff iff liate revenues,
driven by the restrucrr turt ing of certain affff iff liate agreements, resulting in a shiftff of revenue frff om our pay television
services to our streaming services; unfaff vorabla e forff eign exchange rate changes, which negatively impacted the
total affff iff liate and subscription revenue comparison by 1 percentage point; and the absa ence of revenues in RusRR sia
aftff er we suspended our operations folff lowing RusRR sia’s invasion of Ukraine in the fiff rst quarter of 2022. Domestic
affff iff liate revenues contributed 1% of the decline, primarily reflff ecting lower revenues frff om pay-per-view boxing
events, as the impact frff om lower domestic subscribers was substantially offff sff et by rate increases, growth in reverse
compensation, and the launch of our basic cabla e networks on a vMVPD in April 2021.

Licensing and Other

Licensing and other revenues forff 2022 of $4.20 billion were essentially flff at compared with 2021.

Adjustett d OIOO BII DBB ADD

Adjusted OIBDA decreased 7%, primarily reflff ecting the benefiff t to 2021 frff om the broadcast of the Super Bowl as
well as declines in other advertising revenues and affff iff liate revenues.
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Dirii ect-tt to-tt ConCC sumer

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 Increase/(Decrease)
Advertising $ 1,533 $ 1,298 $ 235 18 %
Subscription 3,371 2,029 1,342 66
Revenues $ 4,904 $ 3,327 $ 1,577 47 %

Adjusted OIBDA $ (1,819) $ (992) $ (827) (83)%

Global Streaming Subscribers (a) 77.3 56.1 21.2 38 %

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 Increase/(Decrease)
Paramount+ (Global)( )
Subscribers (a) 55.9 32.8 23.1 70 %

Revenues $ 2,767 $ 1,347 $ 1,420 105 %

Pluto TV (Global)( )
MAUs (b) 78.5 64.4 14.1 22 %

Revenues $ 1,112 $ 1,059 $ 53 5 %

(a) Our streaming subscribers include customers with access to our domestic or international streaming services, either directly
through our owned and operated appsa and websites, or through third-party distributors. Our subscribers include paid
subscriptions and those customers registered in a frff ee trial, and subscribers are considered unique to each of our services,
whether offff eff red individually or as part of a bundle. For the periods abovea , subscriber counts reflff ect the number of
subscribers as of the appla icabla e period-end date. Global streaming subscribers include subscribers forff Paramount+,
Showtime OTT and all other subscription streaming services.

(b) The Monthly Active Users (“MAUs”) count reflff ects the number of unique devices interacting with the Pluto TV service in
a calendar month, and forff the periods abovea reflff ects the MAU count forff the last month of the appla icabla e period.

Revenues

For 2022, revenues increased 47%, led by growth frff om Paramount+.

Advertisii ing

The 18% increase in advertising revenues was driven by higher impressions, reflff ecting the benefiff t frff om growth in
Paramount+ subscribers.

Pluto TV global MAUs were 78.5 million forff December 2022, reflff ecting growth of 14.1 million, or 22%, frff om
64.4 million forff December 2021, and 6.5 million, or 9%, frff om 72.0 million forff September 2022.

SubsSS cripti ion

The 66% increase in subscription revenues was driven by growth frff om Paramount+, Showtime OTT, and BET+.
Global streaming subscribers grew 21.2 million, or 38%, compared with December 31, 2021, led by an increase of
23.1 million, or 70%, forff Paramount+, reflff ecting signififf cant growth in U.S. subscribers and the impact frff om
launches in international markets. Subscriber growth was impacted by the removal of 1.9 million Paramount+
subscribers folff lowing the September 2022 launch of the SkyShowtime streaming service in the Nordics, where it
replaced Paramount+ in the market. Growth in subscribers was also impacted by the removal of 3.9 million global
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streaming subscribers (including 1.2 million forff Paramount+) in RusRR sia, where we suspended our operations
folff lowing RusRR sia’s invasion of Ukraine in the fiff rst quarter of 2022.

During the fourff th quarter, global streaming subscribers increased 10.8 million, or 16%, to 77.3 million at
December 31, 2022 frff om 66.5 million at September 30, 2022, and Paramount+ subscribers grew 9.9 million, or
22%, to 55.9 million, driven by launches in international markets as well as growth in U.S. subscribers, reflff ecting
the strength of content premieres in the quarter, including TulTT sll a KiKK ng, 1923 and TopTT Gun: MavMM erick.

Adjustett d OIOO BII DBB ADD

Adjusted OIBDA decreased $827 million, as revenue growth was more than offff sff et by higher costs to support
growth in our streaming services including content, marketing, distribution, employee and technology costs.

FiFF lii mll ed EnE tett rtaitt nii ment

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 $ %
Advertising $ 23 $ 18 $ 5 28 %
Theatrical 1,223 241 982 407
Licensing and other 2,460 2,428 32 1
Revenues $ 3,706 $ 2,687 $ 1,019 38 %

Adjusted OIBDA $ 272 $ 207 $ 65 31 %

Revenues

For 2022, the 38% increase in revenues was primarily driven by the success of TopTT Gun: MavMM erick.

TheTT atrical

The $982 million increase in theatrical revenues was driven by the success of our 2022 releases, led by TopTT Gun:
MavMM erick. We released eight fiff lms in 2022, including TopTT Gun: MavMM erick,kk as well as Sonic the HeHH dgehog 2,
Smile, and TheTT Lost Citytt , compared with fourff fiff lms in 2021, including A Quiet Place Part IIII and PAPP W Patrol: TheTT
MovMM ie. The lower number of theatrical releases in 2021 was due to the impacts frff om COVID-19 on movie theaters
and fiff lm production.

Licensing and Other

The 1% increase in licensing and other revenues primarily reflff ects higher licensing of recent theatrical releases in
2022 compared with 2021, driven by the success of TopTT Gun: MavMM erick in the digital home entertainment market,
partially offff sff et by the licensing of ComCC ing 2 America and TomTT Clancyc ’s WiWW thout Remorsrr e in 2021 and lower
revenues frff om the licensing of libraryrr titles.

Adjustett d OIOO BII DBB ADD

Adjusted OIBDA increased 31%, mainly reflff ecting higher profiff ts frff om 2022 releases, partially offff sff et by lower
profiff ts frff om the licensing of libraryrr titles.

Fluctuat tions in results forff the FiFF lml ed EntEE ertainment segment may occur as a result of the timing of the recognition
of distribution costs, including print and advertising, which are generally incurred beforff e and throughout the
theatrical release of a fiff lm, while the revenues forff the respective fiff lm are recognized as earned through the fiff lm’s
theatrical exhibition and distribution to other platforff ms.
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Segment Results of Operations - 2021 vs. 2020

% of Total % of Total Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 Revenues 2020 Revenues $ %
Revenues:
TV Media $ 22,734 80 % $ 21,120 83 % $ 1,614 8 %
Direct-to-Consumer 3,327 12 1,815 7 1,512 83
Filmed Entertainment 2,687 9 2,470 10 217 9
Corporrr ate/Eliminations (162) (1) (120) — (42) (35)
Total Revenues $ 28,586 100 % $ 25,285 100 % $ 3,301 13 %

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 $ %
Adjd usted OIBDA:
TV Media $ 5,892 $ 5,816 $ 76 1 %
Direct-to-Consumer (992) (171) (821) (480)
Filmed Entertainment 207 158 49 31
Corporrr ate/Eliminations (491) (485) (6) (1)
Stock-based compensation (172) (186) 14 8
Total Adjd usted OIBDA 4,444 5,132 (688) (13)

Depreciation and amortization (390) (430) 40 9
Restrucrr turt ing and other corporr ate matters (100) (618) 518 84
Programming charges — (159) 159 n/m
Net gain on dispositions 2,343 214 2,129 n/m
Total Operating Income $ 6,297 $ 4,139 $ 2,158 52 %

n/m - not meaningfulff
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TV MeMM dia

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 $ %
Advertising $ 10,105 $ 9,062 $ 1,043 12 %
Affff iff liate and subscription 8,413 8,037 376 5
Licensing and other 4,216 4,021 195 5
Revenues $ 22,734 $ 21,120 $ 1,614 8 %

Adjusted OIBDA $ 5,892 $ 5,816 $ 76 1 %

Revenues

For 2021, revenues increased 8%, reflff ecting growth across all revenue streams, led by increased advertising
revenues, including frff om CBS’ broadcasts of tentpolt e sporting events forff which there were no comparabla e
broadcasts on CBS in 2020.

Advertisii ing

The 12% increase in advertising revenues was driven by CBS’ broadcasts in 2021 of sporting events forff which
there were no comparabla e broadcasts on CBS in 2020, including Super Bowl LV and NCAA Tournament games.
We have the rights to broadcast the Super Bowl and the national semi-fiff nals and championship games of the
NCAA Tournament on a rotational basis. The Super Bowl aired on CBS in 2021 but another network in 2020.
The national semi-fiff nals and championship games of the NCAA Tournament also aired on CBS in 2021, but
COVID-19 caused the cancellation of the NCAA Tournament in 2020, including the games in the preceding
rounds of the NCAA Tournament that we share with Turner each year. The advertising revenue growth also
reflff ected higher pricing and demand compared with 2020, which was negatively impacted by COVID-19, as well
as a higher level of original programming broadcast in 2021. These increases were partially offff sff et by lower linear
impressions forff our domestic networks and lower political advertising sales.

AfA fff iff liate and Subscripti ion

The 5% increase in affff iff liate and subscription revenues was driven by rate increases, the launch of our basic cabla e
networks in June 2020 and April 2021 on two vMVPDs, growth in reverse compensation, and higher revenues
frff om pay-per-view boxing events, partially offff sff et by the impact frff om subscriber declines.

Licensing and Other

Licensing and other revenues increased 5%, driven by the timing of program availabia lities, primarily frff om the
impact of production shutdowns in 2020 due to COVID-19, as well as higher domestic licensing in the secondaryrr
market, reflff ecting the benefiff t frff om several signififf cant licensing arrangements in 2021, including forff NCNN ICC SII and
Bull. The increase was partially offff sff et by the comparison against the licensing of the domestic streaming rights to
South Parkrr in 2020.

Adjustett d OIOO BII DBB ADD

Adjusted OIBDA increased 1% as the higher revenues were substantially offff sff et by higher costs associated with
sports broadcasts, more original programming and higher licensing revenues in 2021.
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Dirii ect-tt to-tt ConCC sumer

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 Increase/(Decrease)
Advertising $ 1,298 $ 686 $ 612 89 %
Subscription 2,029 1,129 900 80
Revenues $ 3,327 $ 1,815 $ 1,512 83 %

Adjusted OIBDA $ (992) $ (171) $ (821) (480)%

Global Streaming Subscribers 56.1 29.9 26.2 88 %

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 Increase/(Decrease)
Paramount+ (Global)( ) (a)

Subscribers 32.8 11.7 21.1 180 %

Revenues $ 1,347 $ 627 $ 720 115 %

Pluto TV (Global)( )
MAUs 64.4 43.1 21.3 49 %

Revenues $ 1,059 $ 562 $ 497 88 %

(a) Prior to its rebranding in March 2021 Paramount+ was named CBS All Access.

Revenues

For 2021, revenues increased 83% reflff ecting growth across our streaming services.

Advertisii ing

The 89% increase in advertising revenues reflff ects growth frff om Pluto TV and Paramount+. Pluto TV global
MAUs were 64.4 million forff December 2021, reflff ecting growth of 21.3 million, or 49%, frff om 43.1 million forff
December 2020.

Subscripti ion

The 80% increase in subscription revenues reflff ects growth across our subscription streaming services. Global
streaming subscribers grew 26.2 million, or 88%, compared with December 31, 2020, led by growth frff om
Paramount+, reflff ecting signififf cant growth in U.S. subscribers and the impact frff om launches in international
markets, as well as subscriber growth forff Showtime OTT and BET+.

Adjustett d OIOO BII DBB ADD

Adjusted OIBDA decreased $821 million, as the revenue growth was more than offff sff et by higher content,
marketing, distribution, and other cost increases to support growth in our streaming services, including forff the
launch of Paramount+ in 2021.
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FiFF lii mll ed EnE tett rtaitt nii ment

Increase/(Decrease)
Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 $ %
Advertising $ 18 $ 18 $ — — %
Theatrical 241 180 61 34
Licensing and other 2,428 2,272 156 7
Revenues $ 2,687 $ 2,470 $ 217 9 %

Adjusted OIBDA $ 207 $ 158 $ 49 31 %

Revenues

For 2021, the 9% increase in revenues reflff ected growth in licensing and theatrical revenues.

TheTT atrical

The 34% increase in theatrical revenues was driven by 2021 releases including A Quiet Place Part IIII and PAPP W
Patrol: TheTT MovMM ie, while 2020 was impacted by the closure or reduced capaa city of movie theaters in response to
COVID-19, folff lowing the release of Sonic the HeHH dgehog in the fiff rst quarter of 2020, and throughout the
remainder of the year.

Licensing and Other

The 7% increase in licensing and other revenues was driven by the licensing of ComCC ing 2 America, TomTT Clancyc ’s
WiWW thout Remorsrr e and HalHH loween KiKK llsll while 2020 included licensing of the fiff rst quarter 2020 theatrical release
SoniSS c the HeHH dgehog, but was also impacted by the abovea -mentioned impact frff om COVID-19.

Adjustett d OIOO BII DBB ADD

Adjusted OIBDA increased 31%, primarily the result of higher profiff ts frff om licensing.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources and UsUU es of CasCC h

We project anticipated cash requirements forff our operating, investing and fiff nancing needs as well as cash flff ows
expected to be generated and availabla e to meet these needs. Our operating needs include, among other items,
expenditurt es forff content forff our broadcast and cabla e networks and streaming services, including television and
fiff lm programming, sports rights, and talent contracts, as well as advertising and marketing costs to promote our
content and platforff ms; payments forff leases, interest, and income taxes; and pension fundiff ng obligations. Our
investing and fiff nancing spending includes capia tal expenditurt es; acquisitions; fundiff ng relating to new and existing
investments, including SkyShowtime, our streaming joint venturt e with Comcast, under which both parent
companies have committed to support initial operations over a multiyear period; discretionaryrr share repurchases,
dividends and principal payments on our outstanding indebtedness. Our planned spending in 2023 includes
continued increased investment in our streaming services. We believe that our operating cash flff ows, cash and cash
equivalents, which were $2.89 billion as of December 31, 2022, borrowing capaa city under our $3.50 billion Credit
Facility described below, as well as access to capia tal markets are suffff iff cient to fundff our operating, investing and
fiff nancing requirements forff the next twelve months.

Our fundiff ng forff long-term obligations, including our long-term debt (see Note 10), and the long-term portion of
the other cash requirements discussed abovea , including contractuat l commitments forff programming and talent (see
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Note 20) and lease obligations (see Note 11), as well as those not yet committed to, will come frff om cash flff ows
frff om operating activities, proceeds frff om noncore asset sales, including the planned sale of Simon & Schuster (see
ConsCC olidated Resultstt of OpeO rations - 2022 vsvv . 2021, NeNN t Earnings frff om Disii continued OpeO rations)s , and our abia lity
to refiff nance our debt. Any additional cash fundiff ng requirements are fiff nanced with short-term borrowings,
including commercial papea r, and long-term debt. To the extent that commercial papea r is not availabla e to us, the
Credit Facility provides suffff iff cient capaa city to satisfyff short-term borrowing needs. In addition, if necessary,rr we
could increase our liquidity position by reducing non-committed spending. We routinely assess our capia tal
strucrr turt e and opportunit stically enter into transactions to manage our outstanding debt maturt ities, which could
result in a charge frff om the early extinguishment of debt.

Our access to capia tal markets can be impacted by faff ctors outside our control, including economic conditions;
however, we believe that our strong balance sheet, cash flff ows, credit faff cility and credit ratings will provide us
with adequate access to fundiff ng forff our expected cash needs. The cost of any new borrowings is affff eff cted by
market conditions and short- and long-term debt ratings assigned by independent rating agencies, and there can be
no assurance that we will be abla e to access capia tal markets on terms and conditions that will be faff vorabla e to us.

Cash Flows

The changes in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash were as folff lows:

Increase/
(Decrease)

Increase/
(Decrease)

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2022 vs. 2021 2020 2021 vs. 2020
Net cash flff ow (used forff ) provided by
operating activities:
Continuing operations $ (142) $ 835 $ (977) $ 2,215 $ (1,380)
Discontinued operations 361 118 243 79 39
Net cash flff ow provided by operating activities 219 953 (734) 2,294 (1,341)
Net cash flff ow (used forff ) provided by
investing activities:
Continuing operations (518) 2,402 (2,920) 63 2,339
Discontinued operations (8) (7) (1) (7) —
Net cash flff ow (used forff ) provided by investing
activities (526) 2,395 (2,921) 56 2,339
Net cash flff ow used forff fiff nancing activities (2,981) (152) (2,829) (90) (62)
Effff eff ct of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents (94) (48) (46) 25 (73)
Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash $ (3,382) $ 3,148 $ (6,530) $ 2,285 $ 863

OpeO rating Activities. Operating cash flff ow frff om continuing operations forff 2022 was a net use of cash of $142
million compared to a net source of cash of $835 million forff 2021. The use of cash in 2022 was mainly the result
of signififf cant investment in our streaming services, including spending forff content, marketing and distribution
costs. The decrease in operating cash flff ow frff om continuing operations in 2022 compared to 2021 is primarily
driven by the decline in Adjusted OIBDA, partially offff sff et by lower payments forff income taxes. Cash paid forff
income taxes frff om continuing operations decreased to $61 million forff 2022 frff om $291 million forff 2021, primarily
resulting frff om lower earnings frff om continuing operations beforff e income taxes, partially offff sff et by the impact of
the timing of production tax incentive receipts.
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The decrease in cash flff ow provided by operating activities frff om continuing operations forff 2021 compared to 2020
was mainly driven by our increased investment in our streaming services, including spending forff content,
advertising and marketing, and a higher level of production in 2021 as a result of production shutdowns in 2020
due to COVID-19. The decrease was partially offff sff et by higher collections and lower payments forff restrucrr turt ing,
merger-related costs and transforff mation initiatives, as well as lower payments forff income taxes. Cash paid forff
income taxes frff om continuing operations decreased to $291 million forff 2021 frff om $411 million forff 2020,
primarily due to a higher volume of production incentives received, lower adjusted earnings frff om continuing
operations beforff e income taxes and a higher deduction associated with the exercise and vesting of stock-based
compensation, partially offff sff et by higher payments associated with gains frff om dispositions, primarily frff om the sale
of CBS Studit o Center in 2021.

Net cash flff ow provided by operating activities included payments forff restrucrr turt ing, merger-related costs and
transforff mation initiatives of $244 million, $294 million and $584 million forff 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively.
Since the Merger, we have invested in a number of transforff mation initiatives. Initially, these were undertaken to
realize synergies related to the Merger. Beginning in 2022, our transforff mation initiatives are related to futff urt e-state
technology, including the unififf cation and evolution of systems and platforff ms, and migration to the cloud. In
addition, we are investing in futff urt e-state workspaces, including adapta ing our faff cilities to accommodate our hybrid
and agile work model.

Cash flff ow provided by operating activities frff om discontinued operations reflff ects the operating activities of Simon
& Schuster, and forff 2022 also includes the receipt of the $200 million termination feff e described under Legale
MatMM tersrr -Litigati ion Related to the Proposed Sale of Simon & Schuster.

InvII esting Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Investments (a) $ (254) $ (193) $ (59)
Capia tal expenditurt es (b) (358) (354) (324)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (c) — (54) (147)
Proceeds frff om dispositions (d) 95 3,028 593
Other investing activities (1) (25) —
Net cash flff ow (used forff ) provided by investing activities frff om continuing operations (518) 2,402 63
Net cash flff ow used forff investing activities frff om discontinued operations (8) (7) (7)
Net cash flff ow (used forff ) provided by investing activities $ (526) $ 2,395 $ 56

(a) Primarily includes investment in The CW in all three years. 2022 also includes investment in SkyShowtime.
(b) Includes payments associated with the implementation of our transforff mation initiatives of $45 million, $68 million, and $40 million forff
2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively.

(c) 2021 reflff ects the acquisitions of Chilevisión, a frff ee-to-air television channel, and a controlling interest in Fox TeleColombia & Estudit os
TeleMexico, a Spanish language content producer. 2020 primarily reflff ects the acquisition of Miramax, a global fiff lm and television
studit o.

(d) 2022 primarily reflff ects proceeds related to the sale of investments and frff om the disposition of international intangible assets. 2021
primarily reflff ects proceeds received frff om the sales of CBS Studit o Center and 51 West 52nd Street. 2021 also includes proceeds
received frff om the sale of our investment in fuboTff V during the fourff th quarter of 2020, and proceeds received frff om the sales of a
noncore trademark licensing operation and other investments. 2020 reflff ects the sales of CMG and marketabla e securities.
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FiFF nancing Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Repayments of commercial papea r borrowings, net $ — $ — $ (698)
Proceeds frff om issuance of debt 1,138 58 4,375
Repayment of debt (3,140) (2,230) (2,909)
Dividends paid on prefeff rred stock (58) (30) —
Dividends paid on common stock (631) (617) (600)
Proceeds frff om issuance of prefeff rred stock — 983 —
Proceeds frff om issuance of common stock — 1,672 —
Purchase of Company common stock — — (58)
Payment of payroll taxes in lieu of issuing shares forff stock-based compensation (31) (110) (93)
Proceeds frff om exercise of stock options — 408 5
Payments to noncontrolling interests (218) (235) (59)
Other fiff nancing activities (41) (51) (53)
Net cash flff ow used forff fiff nancing activities $ (2,981) $ (152) $ (90)

Dividends

We declared a quarterly cash dividend on our Class A and Class B Common Stock during each of the quarters of
2022, 2021, and 2020. During each of the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, we declared total per
share dividends of $.96, resulting in total annual dividends of $635 million, $625 million and $601 million,
respectively.

During each of the quarters of 2022, we declared a quarterly cash dividend of $1.4375 per share on our 5.75%
Series A Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock (“Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock”), resulting in total
annual dividends of $58 million forff the year ended December 31, 2022. For the year ended December 31, 2021,
we recorded total annual dividends on our Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock of $44 million. During each of
the third and fourff th quarters of 2021, we declared a quarterly cash dividend on our Mandatoryrr Convertible
Prefeff rred Stock of $1.4375 per share. During the second quarter of 2021, we declared a quarterly cash dividend
on our Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock of $1.5493 per share, representing a dividend period frff om March
26, 2021 through July 1, 2021.

Capital Structure

The folff lowing tabla e sets forff th our debt.

At December 31, 2022 2021
Senior debt (2.90%-7.875% due 2023-2050) $ 14,149 $ 16,501
Junior debt (5.875%-6.375% due 2057 and 2062) 1,632 1,157
Other bank borrowings 55 35
Obligations under fiff nance leases 10 16
Total debt (a) 15,846 17,709
Less current portion of long-term debt 239 11

Total long-term debt, net of current portion $ 15,607 $ 17,698

(a) At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the senior and junior subordinated debt balances included (i) a net unamortized discount
of $442 million and $466 million, respectively, and (ii) unamortized defeff rred fiff nancing costs of $89 million and $95
million, respectively. The faff ce value of our total debt was $16.38 billion at December 31, 2022 and $18.27 billion at
December 31, 2021.
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During the year ended December 31, 2022, we redeemed senior notes totaling $2.39 billion, prior to maturt ity, forff
an aggregate redemption price of $2.49 billion and redeemed, at par, our $520 million of 5.875% junior
subordinated debenturt es due Februarr ryrr 2057. These redemptions resulted in a total pre-tax loss on extinguishment
of debt of $120 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, we issued $1.00 billion of 6.375% junior subordinated debenturt es due
2062. The interest rate on these debenturt es will reset on March 30, 2027, and everyrr fiff ve years thereaftff er to a fiff xed
rate equal to the 5-year Treasuryrr Rate (as defiff ned pursuant to the terms of the debenturt es) plus a spread of 3.999%
frff om March 30, 2027, 4.249% frff om March 30, 2032 and 4.999% frff om March 30, 2047. These debenturt es can be
called by us at par plus a make whole premium any time beforff e March 30, 2027, or at par on March 30, 2027 or
on any interest payment date thereaftff er.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, we redeemed senior notes totaling $1.99 billion, prior to maturt ity, forff
an aggregate redemption price of $2.11 billion resulting in a pre-tax loss on extinguishment of debt of $128
million.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, we issued $4.50 billion of senior notes and redeemed long-term debt
totaling $2.77 billion, prior to maturt ity, forff an aggregate redemption price of $2.88 billion resulting in a pre-tax
loss on extinguishment of debt of $126 million.

Our 6.25% junior subordinated debenturt es due Februarr ryrr 2057 accruerr interest at the stated fiff xed rate until
Februarr ryrr 28, 2027, on which date the rate will switch to a flff oating rate. Under the terms of the debenturt es the
flff oating rate is based on three-month LIBOR plus 3.899%, reset quarterly, however, with the phasing out of
LIBOR and the passage of the Adjustabla e Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act, signed into law on March 15, 2022, it is
expected that the 6.25% junior subordinated debenturt es due 2057 will, upon switching to a flff oating rate, bear
interest at a replacement rate based on three-month CME Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR). These
debenturt es can be called by us at par at any time aftff er the expiration of the fiff xed-rate period.

The subordination, interest defeff rral option and extended term of the junior subordinated debenturt es provide
signififf cant credit protection measures forff senior creditors and, as a result of these feff aturt es, the debenturt es received
a 50% equity credit by Standard & Poor’s Rating Services and Fitch Ratings Inc., and a 25% equity credit by
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.

The interest rate payabla e on our 3.45% senior notes due October 2026, will be subject to adjustment frff om time to
time if Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. or S&P Global Ratings downgrades (or downgrades and subsequently
upgrades) the credit rating assigned to these senior notes. The interest rate on these senior notes would increase by
0.25% upon each credit agency downgrade, up to a maximum of 2.00%, and would similarly be decreased forff
subsequent upgrades. At December 31, 2022, the outstanding principal amount of these senior notes was $124
million.

Some of our outstanding notes and debenturt es provide foff r certain covenant packages typical forff an investment
grade company. There is an acceleration trigger forff the maja ority of the notes and debenturt es in the event of a
change in control under specififf ed circumstances coupled with ratings downgrades due to the change in control, as
well as certain optional redemption provisions forff our junior debenturt es.

ComCC mercial PapePP r

At both December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had no outstanding commercial papea r borrowings.
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CrCC editii FacFF ilii ill tii ytt

At December 31, 2022, we had a $3.50 billion revolving credit faff cility with a maturt ity in Januaryrr 2025 (the
“Credit Facility”). The Credit Facility is used forff general corporrr ate purposrr es and to support commercial papea r
borrowings, if any. We may, at our option, also borrow in certain forff eign currencies up to specififf ed limits under
the Credit Facility. Borrowing rates under the Credit Facility are determined at the time of each borrowing and are
generally based on either the prime rate in the U.S. or an appla icabla e benchmark rate plus a margin (based on our
senior unsecured debt rating), depending on the type and tenor of the loans entered. The benchmark rate forff loans
denominated in euros, sterling and yen is based on EURIBOR, SONIA and TIBOR rates, respectively. The Credit
Facility has one principal fiff nancial covenant that requires our Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio to be less than
4.5x (which we may elect to increase to 5.0x forff up to fourff consecutive quarters folff lowing a qualififf ed acquisition)
at the end of each quarter. The Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio reflff ects the ratio of our Consolidated
Indebtedness at the end of a quarter, to our Consolidated EBITDA (each as defiff ned in the amended credit
agreement) forff the trailing twelve-month period. On Februrr aryrr 14, 2022, we amended our Credit Facility to modifyff
the defiff nition of the Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio in the amended credit agreement to allow unrestricted
cash and cash equivalents to be netted against Consolidated Indebtedness through June 2024. We met the
covenant as of December 31, 2022.

At December 31, 2022, we had no borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility and the remaining availabia lity
under the Credit Facility, net of outstanding letters of credit, was $3.50 billion.

Othtt er Bank Borrowinii gs

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had bank borrowings under Miramax’s $300 million credit faff cility, which
maturt es in April 2023, of $55 million and $35 million, respectively, with weighted average interest rates of 7.09%
and 3.50%, respectively.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our fiff nancial statements in conforff mity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affff eff ct the reported amounts of assets and
liabia lities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabia lities as of the date of the fiff nancial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate these estimates,
which are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonabla e
under the circumstances. The result of these evaluations foff rms the basis forff making judgments abouta the carryirr ng
values of assets and liabia lities and the reported amount of revenues and expenses that are not readily appaa rent
frff om other sources. Actuat l results may diffff eff r frff om these estimates under diffff eff rent assumptions.

We consider the folff lowing accounting policies to be the most critical as they are important to our fiff nancial
condition and results of operations, and require signififf cant judgment and estimates on the part of management in
their appla ication. The risks and uncertainties involved in appla ying our critical accounting policies are provided
below. Unless otherwise noted, we appla ied our critical accounting policies and estimation methods consistently in
all material respects and forff all periods presented, and have discussed such policies with our Audit Committee.
For a summaryrr of our signififf cant accounting policies, see the accompanying notes to the consolidated fiff nancial
statements.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when control of a good or service is transfeff rred to a customer in an amount that reflff ects the
consideration we expect to be entitled to in exchange forff those goods or services. Signififf cant judgments used in
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the determination of the amount and timing of revenue recognition include the identififf cation of distinct
perforff mance obligations in contracts containing bundled advertising sales or bundled content licenses, and the
allocation of consideration among individual perforff mance obligations within these arrangements based on their
relative standalone selling prices.

Advertisii ing Revenues—Advertising revenues are recognized when the advertising spots are aired on television or
streamed or displayed on digital platforff ms. If a contract includes a guarantee to deliver a targeted audience rating
or number of impressions, the deliveryrr of the advertising spots that achieve the guarantee represents the
perforff mance obligation to be satisfiff ed over time and revenues are recognized based on the proportion of the
audience rating or impressions delivered to the total guaranteed in the contract. To the extent the amounts billed
exceed the amount of revenue recognized, such excess is defeff rred until the guaranteed audience ratings or
impressions are delivered. For contracts that do not include impressions guarantees, the individual advertising
spots are the perforff mance obligation and consideration is allocated among the individual advertising spots based
on relative standalone selling price.

AfA fff iff liate Revenues—The perforff mance obligation forff our affff iff liate agreements is a license to our programming
provided through the continuous deliveryrr of live linear feff eds and, forff agreements with MVPDs and vMVPDs, also
includes a license to programming forff video-on-demand viewing. Affff iff liate revenues are recognized over the term
of the agreement as we satisfyff our perforff mance obligation by continuously providing our customer with the right
to use our programming. For agreements that provide forff a variabla e feff e, revenues are determined each month
based on an agreed upon contractuat l rate appla ied to the number of subscribers to our customer’s service. For
agreements that provide forff a fiff xed feff e, revenues are recognized based on the relative faff ir value of the content
provided over the term of the agreement. These agreements primarily include agreements with television stations
affff iff liated with the CBS Television Network (“network affff iff liates”) forff which faff ir value is determined based on the
faff ir value of the network affff iff liate’s service and the value of our programming.

ContCC ent Licensing Revenues—For licenses of exhibition rights forff internally-produced programming, each
individual episode or fiff lm delivered represents a separate perforff mance obligation and revenues are recognized
when the episode or fiff lm is made availabla e to the licensee forff exhibition and the license period has begun. For
license agreements that include deliveryrr of content on one or more dates forff a fiff xed feff e, consideration is allocated
based on the relative standalone selling price of each episode or fiff lm, which is based on licenses forff comparabla e
content within the marketplt ace. Estimation of standalone selling prices requires judgment, which can impact the
timing of recognizing revenues.

FiFF lmll and TeTT levisii ion Production and Programming CosCC tstt

Costs incurred to produce television programs and feff aturt e fiff lms are capia talized when incurred and amortized over
the projected lifeff of each television program or feff aturt e fiff lm. The costs incurred to acquire television series and
feff aturt e fiff lm programming rights, including advances, are capia talized when the license period has begun and the
program is accepted and availabla e forff airing. The costs of programming rights licensed under multi-year sports
programming agreements are capia talized if the rights payments are made beforff e the related economic benefiff t has
been received. Acquired programming rights, including rights forff sports programming, are expensed over the
shorter of the license period or the period in which an economic benefiff t is expected to be derived.

We categorize our capia talized production and programming costs based on the expected predominant
monetization strategy throughout the lifeff of the content. Our programming that is expected to be predominantly
monetized through licensing and distribution on third-party platforff ms is considered individually monetized and
our programming that is expected to be predominantly monetized on our networks and streaming services
together with other programming is considered to be monetized as part of a fiff lm group. The predominant
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monetization strategy is determined when capia talization of production costs commences and is reassessed if there
is a signififf cant change to the expected futff urt e monetization strategy. This reassessment will include an assessment
of the monetization strategy throughout the entire lifeff of the programming.

For internally-produced television programs and feff aturt e fiff lms that are predominantly monetized on an individual
basis, we use an individual-fiff lm-forff ecast computation method to amortize capia talized production costs and to
accruerr estimated liabia lities forff participations and residuals over the appla icabla e title’s lifeff cycle based upon the
ratio of current period revenues to estimated remaining total gross revenues to be earned (“Ultimate Revenues”)
forff each title. Management’s judgment is required in estimating Ultimate Revenues and the costs to be incurred
throughout the lifeff of each television program or feff aturt e fiff lm. These estimates are used to determine the timing of
amortization of capia talized production costs and expensing of participation and residual costs.

For television programming, our estimate of Ultimate Revenues includes revenues to be earned within 10 years
frff om the deliveryrr of the fiff rst episode, or, if still in production, fiff ve years frff om the deliveryrr of the most recent
episode, if later. These estimates are based on the past perforff mance of similar television programs in a market, the
perforff mance in the initial markets and futff urt e fiff rm commitments to license programs.

For feff aturt e fiff lms, our estimate of Ultimate Revenues includes revenues frff om all sources that are estimated to be
earned within 10 years frff om the date of a fiff lm’s initial release. Prior to the release of feff aturt e fiff lms, we estimate
Ultimate Revenues based on the historical perforff mance of similar content and pre-release market research
(including test market screenings), as well as faff ctors relating to the specififf c fiff lm, including the expected number
of theaters and markets in which the original content will be released, the genre of the original content and the
past box offff iff ce perforff mance of the lead actors and actresses. For fiff lms intended forff theatrical release, we believe
the perforff mance during the theatrical exhibition is the most sensitive faff ctor affff eff cting our estimate of Ultimate
Revenues as subsu equent markets have historically exhibited a high correlation to theatrical perforff mance. Upon a
fiff lm’s initial release, we update our estimate of Ultimate Revenues based on actuat l and expected futff urt e
perforff mance. Our estimates of revenues frff om succeeding windows and markets are revised based on historical
relationships to theatrical perforff mance and an analysis of current market trends. We also review and revise
estimates of Ultimate Revenue and participation costs as of each reporting date to reflff ect the most current
availabla e inforff mation.

For acquired fiff lm libraries, our estimate of Ultimate Revenues is forff a period within 20 years frff om the date of
acquisition.

For programming that is predominantly monetized as part of a fiff lm group, capia talized costs are amortized based
on an estimate of the timing of our usage of and benefiff t frff om such programming. Such estimates require
management’s judgment and include consideration of faff ctors such as expected revenues to be derived frff om the
programming, the expected number of futff urt e airings, and, forff acquired programming, the length of the license
period. If initial airings are expected to generate higher revenues, an accelerated method of amortization is used.
These estimates are periodically reviewed and updated based on inforff mation availabla e throughout the contractuat l
term or lifeff of each program.

For content that is predominantly monetized on an individual basis, a television program or feff aturt e fiff lm is tested
forff impairment when events or circumstances indicate that its faff ir value may be less than its unamortized cost. If
the result of the impairment test indicates that the carryirr ng value exceeds the estimated faff ir value, an impairment
charge will then be recorded forff the amount of the diffff eff rence. Content that is predominantly monetized within a
fiff lm group is assessed forff impairment at the fiff lm group level and would similarly be tested forff impairment if
circumstances indicate that the faff ir value of the fiff lm group is less than its unamortized costs. A change in the
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monetization strategy of content, whether monetized individually or as part of a fiff lm group, will result in a
reassessment of the predominant monetization strategy and may trigger an assessment of the content forff
impairment. Any resulting impairment test will be perforff med either at the individual level, if the predominant
monetization strategy is determined to be individual, or at the fiff lm group level where the futff urt e cash flff ows will be
generated. In addition, unamortized costs forff internally-produced or acquired programming that has been
abaa ndoned are written offff .ff

Goodwill and IntII angible Assetstt ImII paim rment TeTT ststt

We perforff m faff ir value-based impairment tests of goodwill and intangible assets with indefiff nite lives, comprised
primarily of television FCC licenses, annually during the fourff th quarter and also between annual tests if an event
occurs or if circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the faff ir value of a reporting unit or an
indefiff nite-lived intangible asset below its carryirr ng value.

FCC Licenses—FCC licenses are tested forff impairment at the geographia c market level. We consider each
geographia c market, which is comprised of all of our television stations within that geographia c market, to be a
single unit of accounting because the FCC licenses at this level represent their highest and best use. At December
31, 2022, we had 14 television markets with FCC license book values.

For our annual impairment test, we perforff m qualitative assessments forff each television market that we estimate
has an aggregate faff ir value of FCC licenses that signififf cantly exceeds its respective carryirr ng value. For the 2022
annual impairment test, we perforff med qualitative assessments forff nine of our television markets. For each market,
we weighed the relative impact of market-specififf c and macroeconomic faff ctors. The market-specififf c faff ctors
considered include recent projections by geographia c market frff om both independent and internal sources forff
revenue and operating costs, as well as average market share. We also considered the macroeconomic impact on
discount rates and growth rates. Based on the qualitative assessments, considering the aggregation of the relevant
faff ctors, we concluded that it is not more likely than not that the faff ir values of the FCC licenses in each of these
television markets are less than their respective carryirr ng values. Thereforff e, perforff ming a quantitative impairment
test on these markets was unnecessary.rr

We perforff med a quantitative impairment test forff the FCC licenses in the remaining fiff ve markets. The quantitative
impairment test of FCC licenses calculates an estimated faff ir value using the Greenfiff eld Discounted Cash Flow
Method, which values a hypothetical start-up station in the relevant market by adding discounted cash flff ows over
a fiff ve-year build-up period to a residual value. The assumptions forff the build-up period include industryrr
projections of overall market revenues; the start-up station’s operating costs and capia tal expenditurt es, which are
based on both industryrr and internal data; and average market share. The discount rate is determined based on the
industryrr and market-based risk of achieving the projected cash flff ows, and the residual value is calculated using a
long-term growth rate, which is based on projected long-range inflff ation and industryrr projections. The discount
rate and the long-term growth rate were 8% and 1%, respectively.

The impairment tests indicated that the estimated faff ir values of FCC licenses in two of the markets were below
their respective carryirr ng values. Accordingly, we recorded an impairment charge of $27 million to write down the
carryirr ng values of these FCC licenses to their aggregate estimated faff ir value of $184 million. The impairment
charge, which is included within “Depreciation and amortization” in the Consolidated Statement of Operations
and recorded within the TV MeMM dia segment, was the result of a higher discount rate utilized in our annual
impairment tests, reflff ecting the impacts of market volatility and higher interest rates. Additionally, the estimated
faff ir values of FCC licenses in the three remaining markets, which had an aggregate carryirr ng value of $787
million, were each within 10% of their respective carryirr ng values. An increase to the discount rate of 15 basis
points, or a decrease to the long-term growth rate of 20 basis points, assuming no changes to other faff ctors, would
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cause the faff ir value of FCC licenses in two of the markets to faff ll below their carryirr ng values. For the third market,
an increase to the discount rate of 26 basis points, or a decrease to the long-term rate of 36 basis points, assuming
no changes to other faff ctors, would cause the faff ir value to faff ll below its carryirr ng value.

The estimated faff ir values of FCC licenses are highly dependent on the assumptions of futff urt e economic conditions
in the individual geographia c markets in which we own and operate television stations. Certain futff urt e events and
circumstances, including continued market volatility and increases in interest rates, or a decline in the local
television advertising marketplt ace could result in a downward revision to our current assumptions and
judgments. Various faff ctors may contribute to a futff urt e decline in an advertising marketplt ace including declines in
economic conditions; an other-than-temporaryrr decrease in spending by advertisers in certain industries that have
historically represented a signififf cant portion of television advertising revenues in that market; a shiftff by
advertisers to competing advertising platforff ms; changes in consumer behavior; and/or a change in population size.
A furff ther downward revision to the present value of futff urt e cash flff ows could result in an additional impairment
and a noncash charge would be required. Such a charge could have a material effff eff ct on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations and Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Goodwill—Gll oodwill is tested forff impairment at the reporting unit level, which is an operating segment, or one
level below. For our annual impairment test, we perforff m a qualitative assessment forff each reporting unit that we
estimate has a faff ir value that signififf cantly exceeds its respective carryirr ng value. Additionally, we consider the
durdd ation of time since a quantitative test was perforff med. For the 2022 annual impairment test, we perforff med
qualitative assessments forff all reporting units. For each reporting unit, we weighed the relative impact of faff ctors
that are specififf c to the reporting unit as well as industryrr and macroeconomic faff ctors. The reporting unit specififf c
faff ctors that were considered included actuat l and expected fiff nancial perforff mance and changes to the reporting
units’ carryirr ng amounts since the most recent impairment tests. For each industryrr in which the reporting units
operate, we considered growth projections frff om independent sources and signififf cant developments within the
industry.rr Our assessment indicated that macroeconomic faff ctors have negatively impacted inputs used in our most
recent impairment tests, including discount rates, certain industryrr growth rates, and comparabla e company trading
multiples. While this indicates that the estimated faff ir values of our reporting units have declined, considering the
aggregation of all relevant faff ctors, including the signififf cant headroom in our most recent test perforff med in
Januaryrr 2022, which is described below, we concluded that it is more likely than not that the faff ir value of our
reporting units continues to be higher than their respective carryirr ng amounts. Thereforff e, perforff ming quantitative
impairment tests was unnecessary.rr

Certain futff urt e events and circumstances, including deterioration of market conditions, furff ther increases in interest
rates, prolonged weakness in the advertising market, a shiftff by advertisers to competing advertising platforff ms,
changes in consumer behavior and/or a decrease in audience acceptance of our content and platforff ms could result
in changes to our assumptions and judgments used in the goodwill impairment tests. A signififf cant adverse change
in these assumptions could cause the faff ir values of the reporting units to faff ll below their respective carryirr ng
values and a noncash impairment charge would be required. Such a charge could have a material effff eff ct on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The annual test was perforff med on the six reporting units in place at October 31, 2022. In the fourff th quarter of
2022, as a result of a management reorganization, the reporting units within our TV MeMM dia segment changed frff om
three to two reporting units. Accordingly, we reallocated goodwill using a relative faff ir value appra oach and
perforff med furff ther qualitative goodwill impairment assessments on the two reporting units subsequent to the
reallocation of goodwill, and concluded that the faff ir values of these reporting units continued to exceed their
respective carryirr ng values.
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In the fiff rst quarter of 2022, in connection with changes to our management strucrr turt e and the resulting change in
operating segments, we reassessed our reporting units and reallocated goodwill frff om the fourff reporting units in
place prior to the realignment to six reporting units, using a relative faff ir value appra oach. We perforff med goodwill
impairment tests as of Januaryrr 1, 2022 on the reporting units in place beforff e and aftff er the change.

For these impairment tests, we perforff med quantitative tests forff three of the reporting units that existed prior to the
change and fiff ve of the reporting units in place subsequent to the change. For the quantitative goodwill impairment
test we calculate an estimated faff ir value to determine whether it exceeds the carryirr ng value of the respective
reporting unit. For one of the quantitative tests, we estimated faff ir value based on the traded and transaction values
of comparabla e businesses, and forff the remaining quantitative tests, we estimated the faff ir value based on both the
present value of futff urt e cash flff ows (“Discounted Cash Flow Method”) and the traded and transaction values of
comparabla e businesses. The Discounted Cash Flow Method requires us to make various assumptions regarding
the timing and amount of futff urt e cash flff ows, including growth rates, operating margins and capia tal expenditurt es
forff a projection period, plus the terminal value of the business at the end of the projection period. The
assumptions abouta futff urt e cash flff ows are based on our internal forff ecasts of the reporting unit, which incorporrr ates
our long-term business plans and historical trends. The terminal value is estimated based on a perperr tuat l nominal
growth rate, which is based on historical and projected inflff ation and economic indicators, as well as industryrr
growth projections. A discount rate is determined forff the reporting unit based on the risks of achieving the futff urt e
cash flff ows, including risks appla icabla e to the industryrr and market as a whole, as well as the capia tal strucrr turt e of
comparabla e entities. We utilized discount rates ranging frff om 9% to 13.5% and terminal values that were based on
either growth rates ranging frff om 1% to 2% or revenue multiples ranging frff om 1.5x to 2.7x. Traded and
transaction values were determined using revenue and earnings multiples frff om publicly traded companies with
operations and other characteristics similar to the respective reporting unit as well as revenue and earnings
multiples frff om recent transactions of these companies. The selected multiples consider each reporting unit’s
relative growth, profiff tabia lity, size, and risk relative to the selected publicly traded companies. Based on the results
of these impairment tests, we concluded that the estimated faff ir values of the reporting units signififf cantly exceeded
their respective carryirr ng values and, thereforff e, no impairment charge was required.

For one of the reporting units, we perforff med a qualitative assessment beforff e and aftff er the reporting unit change
and concluded that it is more likely than not that the faff ir value of the reporting unit was higher than its carryirr ng
amount.

Legale MatMM tersrr

Estimates of liabia lities related to legal issues and predecessor operations, including asbestos and environmental
matters, require signififf cant judgments by management. We record an accruarr l forff a loss contingency when it is
both probabla e that a liabia lity has been incurred and when the amount of the loss can be reasonabla y estimated. We
continually evaluate these estimates based on changes in the relevant faff cts and circumstances and events that may
impact estimates. It is diffff iff cult to predict futff urt e asbestos liabia lities as events and circumstances may impact the
estimate of our liabia lities. Our liabia lity estimate is based upon many faff ctors, including the number of outstanding
claims, estimated average cost per claim, the breakdown of claims by disease type, historic claim fiff lings, costs per
claim of resolution and the fiff ling of new claims, as well as consultation with a third party fiff rm on trends that may
impact our futff urt e asbestos liabia lity. While we believe that our accruarr l forff matters related to our predecessor
operations, including environmental and asbestos, are adequate, there can be no assurance that circumstances will
not change in futff urt e periods, and as a result our actuat l liabia lities may be higher or lower than our accruarr l.
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Pensions

Pension benefiff t obligations and net periodic pension costs are calculated using many actuat rial assumptions. Two
key assumptions used in accounting forff pension liabia lities and expenses are the discount rate and expected rate of
returt n on plan assets. The discount rate is determined based on the yield on a portfolff io of high quality bonds,
construcrr ted to provide cash flff ows necessaryrr to meet our pension plans’ expected futff urt e benefiff t payments, as
determined forff the accumulated benefiff t obligation. The expected returt n on plan assets assumption is derived using
the current and expected asset allocation of the pension plan assets and considering historical as well as expected
returt ns on various classes of plan assets. As of December 31, 2022, changes in actuat rial assumptions resulted in a
decrease to accumulated other comprehensive loss compared with the prior year-end due to an increase in the
discount rate, which was partially offff sff et by the unfaff vorabla e perforff mance of pension plan assets. A 25 basis point
change in the discount rate would result in an estimated change to the accumulated benefiff t obligation of
appra oximately $80 million and would have an insignififf cant impact on 2023 pension expense. A decrease in the
expected rate of returt n on plan assets would increase pension expense. The estimated impact of a 25 basis point
change in the expected rate of returt n on plan assets is a change of appra oximately $6 million to 2023 pension
expense.

IncII ome TaxTT es

We are subject to income taxes in both the U.S. and numerous forff eign jurisdictions. Signififf cant judgment is
required in determining the worldwide provision forff income taxes and evaluating our income tax positions. When
recording an interim worldwide provision forff income taxes, an estimated effff eff ctive tax rate forff the year is appla ied
to interim operating results. In the event there is a signififf cant or unusual item recognized in the quarterly
operating results, the tax attributabla e to that item is separately calculated and recorded in the same quarter.
Defeff rred tax assets and liabia lities are recognized forff the estimated futff urt e tax effff eff cts of temporaryrr diffff eff rences
between the fiff nancial statement carryirr ng amounts and their respective tax basis. Defeff rred tax assets and liabia lities
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to appla y to taxabla e income in the year in which the temporaryrr
diffff eff rences are expected to be reversed. We evaluate the realizabia lity of defeff rred tax assets and establa ish a
valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of defeff rred tax assets will not be realized.
While valuation allowances can require signififf cant judgment, we believe the valuation allowance of $488 million
at December 31, 2022 properly reduces our defeff rred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be
realized.

A number of years may elapsa e beforff e a tax returt n containing tax matters forff which a reserve has been establa ished
is audited and fiff nally resolved. For positions taken in a previously fiff led tax returt n or expected to be taken in a
futff urt e tax returt n, we evaluate each position to determine whether it is more likely than not that the tax position
will be sustained upon examination, based on the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is subject to a measurement assessment to determine the amount of
benefiff t to recognize in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and the appra opriate reserve to establa ish, if any. If
a tax position does not meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, a tax reserve is establa ished and no
benefiff t is recognized. We evaluate our uncertain tax positions quarterly based on many faff ctors, including, changes
in tax laws and interprrr etations, inforff mation received frff om tax authorities, and other changes in faff cts and
circumstances. Our income tax returt ns are routinely audited by U.S. feff deral and state as well as forff eign tax
authorities. While it is oftff en diffff iff cult to predict the fiff nal outcome or the timing of resolution of any particular tax
matter, we believe that the reserve forff uncertain tax positions of $303 million at December 31, 2022 is properly
recorded.
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Legal Matters

General

On an ongoing basis, we vigorously defeff nd ourselves in numerous lawsuits and proceedings and respond to
various investigations and inquiries frff om feff deral, state, local and international authorities (collectively,
“Litigation’’). Litigation may be brought against us without merit, is inherently uncertain and always diffff iff cult to
predict. However, based on our understanding and evaluation of the relevant faff cts and circumstances, we believe
that the folff lowing matters are not likely, in the aggregate, to result in a material adverse effff eff ct on our business,
fiff nancial condition and results of operations.

StSS octt kholdell r MatMM ttt ett rsrr

Litigati ion Relating to the MeMM rger r

Beginning in Februarr ryrr 2020, three purporrr ted CBS stockholders fiff led separate derivative and/or putative class
action lawsuits in the Court of Chanceryrr of the State of Delaware. In March 2020, the Court consolidated the
three lawsuits and appoia nted Bucks County Employees’ Retirement Fund and International Union of Operating
Engineers of Eastern Pennsylvania and Delaware as co-lead plaintiffff sff forff the consolidated action. In April 2020,
the lead plaintiffff sff fiff led a Verififf ed Consolidated Class Action and Derivative Complaint (as used in this paragraph,a
the “Complaint”) against Shari E. Redstone, NAI, Sumner M. Redstone National Amusements Trusrr t, members of
the CBS Board of Directors (comprised of Candace K. Beinecke, Barbar ra M. Byrne, Garyrr L. Countrymrr an, Brian
Goldner, Linda M. Griego, Robert N. Klieger, Martha L. Minow, Susan Schuman, Frederick O. Terrell and
Strauss Zelnick), forff mer CBS President and Acting Chief Executive Offff iff cer Joseph Ianniello and the Company as
nominal defeff ndant. The Complaint alleges breaches of fiff duciaryrr duties to CBS stockholders in connection with
the negotiation and appra oval of an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 13, 2019, between CBS and
Viacom (as amended, the “Merger Agreement”). The Complaint also alleges waste and unjust enrichment in
connection with Mr. Ianniello’s compensation. The Complaint seeks unspecififf ed damages, costs and expenses, as
well as other relief.ff In June 2020, the defeff ndants fiff led motions to dismiss. In Januaryrr 2021, the Court dismissed
one disclosure claim, while allowing all other claims against the defeff ndants to proceed. In December 2022, the
Court dismissed the fiff duciaryrr duty claim against Mr. Klieger. Discoveryrr on the surviving claims is proceeding. A
six-day trial is scheduled to begin in June 2023. We believe that the remaining claims are without merit and we
intend to defeff nd against them vigorously.

Beginning in November 2019, fourff purporrr ted Viacom stockholders fiff led separate putative class action lawsuits in
the Court of Chanceryrr of the State of Delaware. In Januaryrr 2020, the Court consolidated the fourff lawsuits. In
Februarr ryrr 2020, the Court appoia nted Califorff nia Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”) as lead
plaintiffff forff the consolidated action. Subsequently, in Februarr ryrr 2020, CalPERS, together with Park Employees’
and Retirement Board Employees’ Annuity and Benefiff t Fund of Chicago and Louis M. Wilen, fiff led a First
Amended Verififf ed Class Action Complaint (as used in this paragraph,a the “Complaint”) against NAI, NAI
Entertainment Holdings LLC, Shari E. Redstone, the members of the special transaction committee of the Viacom
Board of Directors (comprised of Thomas J. May, Judith A. McHale, Ronald L. Nelson and Nicole Seligman) and
our President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer and director, Robert M. Bakish. The Complaint alleges breaches of
fiff duciaryrr duties to Viacom stockholders in connection with the negotiation and appra oval of the Merger
Agreement. The Complaint seeks unspecififf ed damages, costs and expenses, as well as other relief.ff In May 2020,
the defeff ndants fiff led motions to dismiss. In December 2020, the Court dismissed the claims against Mr. Bakish,
while allowing the claims against the remaining defeff ndants to proceed. Discoveryrr on the surviving claims is
proceeding. A six-day trial is scheduled to begin in July 2023. We believe that the remaining claims are without
merit and we intend to defeff nd against them vigorously.
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InvII estigati ion-Related MatMM tersrr

As announced in August 2018, the CBS Board of Directors retained two law fiff rms to conduct a fulff l investigation
of the allegations in press reports abouta CBS’ forff mer Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Offff iff cer, Leslie Moonves, CBS News and culturt al issues at CBS. In December 2018, the CBS Board of Directors
announced the completion of its investigation, certain fiff ndings of the investigation and the CBS Board of
Directors’ determination with respect to the termination of Mr. Moonves’ employment.

In August 2018 and in October 2018, Gene Samit and John Lantz, respectively, fiff led putative class action lawsuits
in the U.S District Court forff the Southern District of New York, individually and on behalf of others similarly
situat ted, forff claims that are similar to those alleged in the amended complaint described below. In November
2018, the Court entered an order consolidating the two actions. Subsequently, in November 2018, the Court
appoia nted Construcrr tion Labora ers Pension Trusrr t forff Southern Califorff nia as the lead plaintiffff of the consolidated
action. In Februarr ryrr 2019, the lead plaintiffff fiff led a consolidated amended putative class action complaint against
CBS, certain current and forff mer senior executives and members of the CBS Board of Directors. The consolidated
action is stated to be on behalf of purchasers of CBS Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock
between September 26, 2016 and December 4, 2018. This action seeks to recover damages arising during this
time period allegedly caused by the defeff ndants’ purporrr ted violations of the feff deral securities laws, including by
allegedly making materially faff lse and misleading statements or faff iling to disclose material inforff mation, and seeks
costs and expenses as well as remedies under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and RulRR e 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. In April 2019, the defeff ndants fiff led motions to dismiss this action, which
the Court granted in part and denied in part in Januaryrr 2020. With the exception of one statement made by Mr.
Moonves at an industryrr event in November 2017, in which he allegedly was acting as the agent of CBS, all claims
as to all other allegedly faff lse and misleading statements were dismissed. We reached an agreement with the
plaintiffff sff to settle the lawsuit forff $14.75 million, which was paid by our insurers. The settlement, which includes
no admission of liabia lity or wrongdoing by the Company, was granted fiff nal appra oval by the Court in November
2022.

We also received subpoenas or requests forff inforff mation frff om the New York County District Attorney’s Offff iff ce,
the New York City Commission on Human Rights, the New York State Attorney General’s Offff iff ce and the United
States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) regarding the subject matter of the CBS Board of
Directors’ investigation and related matters, including with respect to CBS’ related public disclosures. In
November 2022, we entered into an Assurance of Discontinuance with the Investor Protection Bureau of the New
York State Attorney General’s Offff iff ce to resolve that matter. Aftff er credits forff the settlement amount to be paid in
the consolidated feff deral securities class action discussed abovea , and certain fiff nancial commitments to human
resources-related programs made by CBS in connection with an earlier resolution with the Civil Rights Bureau of
the New York State Attorney General’s Offff iff ce, the Company has made a payment of $7.25 million, which by
agreement with the Investor Protection Bureau will be distributed in connection with the feff deral securities class
action settlement discussed abovea . The resolution with the Investor Protection Bureau includes no admission of
liabia lity or wrongdoing by the Company. In December 2022, we received a termination letter frff om the SEC,
indicating that it does not intend to recommend an enforff cement action against the Company. We may continue to
receive additional related regulatoryrr and investigative inquiries frff om these and other entities in the futff urt e.

Litigati ion Related to Stock OfO fff eff rings

In August 2021, Camelot Event Driven Fund fiff led a putative securities class action lawsuit in New York Supreme
Court, County of New York, and in November 2021, an amended complaint was fiff led that, among other changes,
added an additional named plaintiffff (as used in this paragraph,a the “Complaint”). The Complaint is purportedly on
behalf of investors who purchased shares of the Company’s Class B Common Stock and 5.75% Series A
Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock pursuant to public securities offff eff rings completed in March 2021, and was
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fiff led against the Company, certain senior executives, members of our Board of Directors, and the underwriters
involved in the offff eff rings. The Complaint asserts violations of feff deral securities law and alleges that the offff eff ring
documents contained material misstatements and omissions, including through an alleged faff ilure to adequately
disclose certain total returt n swapa transactions involving Archegos Capia tal Management refeff renced to our
securities and related alleged risks to the Company’s stock price. In December 2021, the plaintiffff sff fiff led a
stipulation seeking the voluntaryrr dismissal without preje udice of the outside director defeff ndants frff om the lawsuit,
which the Court subsequently ordered. On the same date, the defeff ndants fiff led motions to dismiss the lawsuit,
which were heard in Januaryrr 2023. On Februarr ryrr 7, 2023, the Court dismissed all claims against the Company
while allowing the claims against the underwriters to proceed.

Liti itt gati itt on Relatll ett d tott TeTT lell visii ion StSS attt itt on Ownersrr

In September 2019, the Company was added as a defeff ndant in a multi-district putative class action lawsuit fiff led in
the United States District Court forff the Northern District of Illinois. The lawsuit was fiff led by parties that claim to
have purchased broadcast television spot advertising beginning abouta Januaryrr 2014 on television stations owned
by one or more of the defeff ndant television station owners and alleges the sharing of allegedly competitively
sensitive inforff mation among such television stations in alleged violation of the Sherman Antitrusrr t Act. The action,
which names the Company among fourff teen total defeff ndants, seeks monetaryrr damages, attorneys’ feff es, costs and
interest as well as injunctions against the allegedly unlawfulff conduct. In October 2019, the Company and other
defeff ndants fiff led a motion to dismiss the matter, which was denied by the Court in November 2020. We have
reached an agreement in principle with the plaintiffff sff to settle the lawsuit. The settlement, which will include no
admission of liabia lity or wrongdoing by the Company, will be subject to Court appra oval.

Liti itt gati itt on Relatll ett d tott thtt e PrPP oposed SalSS ell of SiSS mii on & ScSS hustett r

In November 2021, the U.S. Department of Justice fiff led suit in the U.S. District Court forff the District of Columbia
to block our sale of the Simon & Schuster business to Penguin Random House pursuant to a Share Purchase
Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”), dated November 24, 2020, between the Company, certain of its
subsidiaries, Penguin Random House and Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA. In October 2022, folff lowing a bench trial,
the Court blocked the sale. In November 2022, we terminated the Purchase Agreement and subsequently received
a $200 million termination feff e.

ClCC aill mii s Relatll ett d tott ForFF mrr er Businii esses

Asbestos

We are a defeff ndant in lawsuits claiming various personal injuries related to asbestos and other materials, which
allegedly occurred as a result of exposure caused by various products manufaff cturt ed by Westinghouse, a
predecessor, generally prior to the early 1970s. Westinghouse was neither a producer nor a manufaff cturt er of
asbestos. We are typically named as one of a large number of defeff ndants in both state and feff deral cases. In the
maja ority of asbestos lawsuits, the plaintiffff sff have not identififf ed which of our products is the basis of a claim.
Claims against us in which a product has been identififf ed most commonly relate to allegations of exposure to
asbestos-containing insulating material used in conjunction with turt bir nes and electrical equipment.

Claims are frff equently fiff led and/or settled in groups, which may make the amount and timing of settlements, and
the number of pending claims, subject to signififf cant flff uctuat tion frff om period to period. We do not report as
pending those claims on inactive, stayed, defeff rred or similar dockets that some jurisdictions have establa ished forff
claimants who allege minimal or no impairment. As of December 31, 2022, we had pending appra oximately
21,580 asbestos claims, as compared with appra oximately 27,770 as of December 31, 2021 and 30,710 as of
December 31, 2020. During 2022, we received appra oximately 2,840 new claims and closed or moved to an
inactive docket appra oximately 9,030 claims. We report claims as closed when we become aware that a dismissal
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order has been entered by a court or when we have reached agreement with the claimants on the material terms of
a settlement. Settlement costs depend on the seriousness of the injuries that forff m the basis of the claims, the
quality of evidence supporting the claims and other faff ctors. Our total costs forff the years 2022 and 2021 forff
settlement and defeff nse of asbestos claims aftff er insurance recoveries and net of tax were appra oximately $57
million and $63 million, respectively. Our costs forff settlement and defeff nse of asbestos claims may varyrr year to
year and insurance proceeds are not always recovered in the same period as the insured portion of the expenses.

Filings include claims forff individuals suffff eff ring frff om mesothelioma, a rare cancer, the risk of which is allegedly
increased by exposure to asbestos; lung cancer, a cancer which may be caused by various faff ctors, one of which is
alleged to be asbestos exposure; other cancers, and conditions that are substantially less serious, including claims
brought on behalf of individuals who are asymptomatic as to an allegedly asbestos-related disease. The
predominant number of pending claims against us are non-cancer claims. It is diffff iff cult to predict futff urt e asbestos
liabia lities, as events and circumstances may impact the estimate of our asbestos liabia lities, including, among
others, the number and types of claims and average cost to resolve such claims. We record an accruarr l forff a loss
contingency when it is both probabla e that a liabia lity has been incurred and when the amount of the loss can be
reasonabla y estimated. Our liabia lity estimate is based upon many faff ctors, including the number of outstanding
claims, estimated average cost per claim, the breakdown of claims by disease type, historic claim fiff lings, costs per
claim of resolution and the fiff ling of new claims, as well as consultation with a third party fiff rm on trends that may
impact our futff urt e asbestos liabia lity. While we believe that our accruarr l forff matters related to our predecessor
operations, including environmental and asbestos, are adequate, there can be no assurance that circumstances will
not change in futff urt e periods, and as a result our actuat l liabia lities may be higher or lower than our accruarr l.

Other

From time to time, we receive claims frff om feff deral and state environmental regulatoryrr agencies and other entities
asserting that we are or may be liabla e forff environmental cleanup costs and related damages principally relating to
our historical and predecessor operations. In addition, frff om time to time we receive personal injuryrr claims
including toxic tort and product liabia lity claims (other than asbestos) arising frff om our historical operations and
predecessors.

Market Risk

We are exposed to flff uctuat tions in forff eign currency exchange rates and interest rates and use derivative fiff nancial
instrumrr ents to manage this exposure. In accordance with our policy, we do not use derivative instrumrr ents unless
there is an underlying exposure and, thereforff e, we do not hold or enter into derivative fiff nancial instrumrr ents forff
speculative trading purposrr es.

ForFF eigni ExEE change Risii k

We conduct business in various countries outside the U.S., resulting in exposure to movements in forff eign
exchange rates when translating frff om the forff eign local currency to the U.S. dollar. In order to hedge anticipated
cash flff ows in currencies such as the British Pound, the Euro, the Canadian Dollar and the Australian Dollar,
forff eign currency forff ward contracts, forff periods generally up to 24 months, are used. Additionally, we designate
forff ward contracts used to hedge committed and forff ecasted forff eign currency transactions, including futff urt e
production costs and programming obligations, as cash flff ow hedges. Gains or losses on the effff eff ctive portion of
designated cash flff ow hedges are initially recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) and reclassififf ed to the
statement of operations when the hedged item is recognized. Additionally, we enter into non-designated forff ward
contracts to hedge non-U.S. dollar denominated cash flff ows. The change in faff ir value of the non-designated
contracts is included in “Other items, net” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. We manage the use of
forff eign exchange derivatives centrally.
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At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the notional amount of all forff eign currency contracts was $3.06 billion and
$1.94 billion, respectively. For 2022, $2.40 billion related to futff urt e production costs and $655 million related to
our forff eign currency balances and other expected forff eign currency cash flff ows. For 2021, $1.38 billion related to
futff urt e production costs and $564 million related to our forff eign currency balances and other expected forff eign
currency cash flff ows.

IntII erest Risii k

Interest rates on futff urt e long-term debt issuances are exposed to risk related to movements in long-term interest
rates. Interest rate hedges may be used to modifyff this exposure at our discretion. There were no interest rate
hedges outstanding at December 31, 2022 or 2021 but in the futff urt e we may use derivatives to manage our
exposure to interest rates.

At December 31, 2022, the carryirr ng value of our outstanding notes and debenturt es was $15.78 billion and the
estimated faff ir value was $13.9 billion. A 1% increase or decrease in interest rates would decrease or increase the
faff ir value of our notes and debenturt es by appra oximately $1.48 billion and $634 million, respectively.

CrCC edit Risii k

We continually monitor our positions with, and credit quality of,ff the fiff nancial institutt ions that are counterparr rties
to our fiff nancial instrumrr ents. We are exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperforff mance by the counterparr rties to
the agreements. However, we do not anticipate nonperforff mance by the counterparr rties.

Our receivabla es do not represent signififf cant concentrations of credit risk at December 31, 2022 or 2021, due to the
wide variety of customers, markets and geographia c areas to which our products and services are sold.

Related Parties

See Note 8 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements and Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

See Note 1 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitt ti attt itt ve and Qualill tii attt itt ve Disii closll ures About MarMM kerr t Risii k.

Inforff mation required by this item is presented in “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Condition—Market Risk.”
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Item 8. FiFF nii ancial StSS att tett mentstt and Supu ppp lell mentatt ryr Datatt .
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATT TAA EMENTSAND SCHEDULE

The foff llowing Consolidated Financial Statements and schedud le of the registrant and its subu sidiaries are subu mitted
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MANAGEMENT’ S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible forff establa ishing and maintaining adequate internal control over fiff nancial reporting and
forff the effff eff ctiveness of internal control over fiff nancial reporting, as such term is defiff ned in RulRR e 13a-15(f)ff or
RulRR e 15d-15(f)ff of the Exchange Act. Paramount Global and its subsidiaries’ (the “Company”) internal control
over fiff nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (a) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonabla e detail, accurately and faff irly reflff ect the transactions and disposition of assets; (b) provide reasonabla e
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaryrr to permit preparation of fiff nancial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditurt es are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the Company; and (c) provide reasonabla e
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effff eff ct on the fiff nancial statements.

Internal control over fiff nancial reporting is designed to provide reasonabla e assurance regarding the reliabia lity of
fiff nancial reporting and the preparation of fiff nancial statements prepared forff external purposrr es in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over fiff nancial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effff eff ctiveness to futff urt e
periods are subjb ect to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effff eff ctiveness of the Company’s internal control over fiff nancial
reporting as of December 31, 2022 based on the frff amework set forff th in IntII ernal ContCC rol—ll I— ntII egre ated FrFF ameworkrr
(2013)(( issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this
evaluation, management concluded that the Company’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting was effff eff ctive as
of December 31, 2022.

The effff eff ctiveness of our internal control over fiff nancial reporting as of December 31, 2022 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting fiff rm, as stated in their report which is
included herein.

PARAR MOUNT GLOBAL

By: /s/ Robert M. Bakish
Robert M. Bakish
President and

ChiCC efe ExEE ecutive OfO fff iff cer

By: /s/ Naveen Chopra
Naveen Chopra

ExEE ecutive ViVV ce President,t
ChiCC efe FiFF nancial OfO fff iff cer

By: /s/ Katherine Gill-Charest
Katherine Gill-Charest

ExEE ecutive ViVV ce President,t ContCC roller and
ChiCC efe Accounting OfO fff iff cer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Paramount Global

OpiOO nii ions on thtt e FiFF nii ancial StSS attt ett mentstt and InII tett rnrr al ConCC trtt ol over FiFF nii anciali Reporee titt nii g

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Paramount Global and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and the related consolidated statements of operations, of
comprehensive income, of stockholders’ equity, and of cash flff ows forff each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2022, including the related notes and fiff nancial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index
(collectively refeff rred to as the “consolidated fiff nancial statements”). We also have audited the Company's internal
control over fiff nancial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria establa ished in IntII ernal ContCC rol -
IntII egre ated FrFF ameworkrr (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated fiff nancial statements refeff rred to abovea present faff irly, in all material respects, the
fiff nancial position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash
flff ows forff each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022 in conforff mity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effff eff ctive internal control over fiff nancial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria establa ished
in IntII ernal ContCC rol - IntII egre ated FrFF ameworkrr (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basisii forff OpiOO nii ions

The Company's management is responsible forff these consolidated fiff nancial statements, forff maintaining effff eff ctive
internal control over fiff nancial reporting, and forff its assessment of the effff eff ctiveness of internal control over
fiff nancial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the Company’s consolidated fiff nancial statements and on
the Company's internal control over fiff nancial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting fiff rm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. feff deral securities laws and the appla icabla e
rulrr es and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan
and perforff m the audits to obtain reasonabla e assurance abouta whether the consolidated fiff nancial statements are frff ee
of material misstatement, whether due to error or frff aud, and whether effff eff ctive internal control over fiff nancial
reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated fiff nancial statements included perforff ming procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated fiff nancial statements, whether due to error or frff aud, and perforff ming procedures
that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated fiff nancial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and signififf cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated fiff nancial statements. Our audit of internal control over fiff nancial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over fiff nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effff eff ctiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included perforff ming such other procedures as we considered necessaryrr in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonabla e basis forff our opinions.
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Defe iff nii itii itt on and Limii iti attt itt ons of InII tett rnal ConCC trtt ol over FiFF nii anciali Reporee titt nii g

A company’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabla e assurance
regarding the reliabia lity of fiff nancial reporting and the preparation of fiff nancial statements forff external purposrr es in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabla e detail,
accurately and faff irly reflff ect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonabla e
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaryrr to permit preparation of fiff nancial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditurt es of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonabla e
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effff eff ct on the fiff nancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over fiff nancial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effff eff ctiveness to futff urt e periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

CrCC iti itt cal Auditii MatMM ttt ett rsrr

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising frff om the current period audit of the consolidated
fiff nancial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i)
relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated fiff nancial statements and (ii) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not
alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated fiff nancial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Amortizii ation of IntII ernallyl -Produced TeTT levisii ion Programming InvII entoryr thatt isii Predominantlyll MoneMM tizii ed on an
IndiII vidual Basisii

As described in Notes 1 and 5 to the consolidated fiff nancial statements, the Company’s internally-produced
television programming inventoryrr that is predominantly monetized on an individual basis was $1.4 billion as of
December 31, 2022. For internally-produced television programs that are predominantly monetized on an
individual basis, management uses an individual-fiff lm-forff ecast computation method to amortize capia talized
production costs over the appla icabla e title’s lifeff cycle based upon the ratio of current period revenues to estimated
remaining total gross revenues to be earned (“Ultimate Revenues”) forff each title. The estimate of Ultimate
Revenues includes revenues to be earned within 10 years frff om the deliveryrr of the fiff rst episode, or, if still in
production, 5 years frff om the deliveryrr of the most recent episode, if later. These estimates are based on the past
perforff mance of similar television programs in a market, the perforff mance in the initial markets, and futff urt e fiff rm
commitments to license programs.

The principal considerations forff our determination that perforff ming procedures relating to amortization of
internally-produced television programming inventoryrr that is predominantly monetized on an individual basis is a
critical audit matter are the signififf cant judgment by management when estimating Ultimate Revenues; this led to a
high degree of auditor judgment, effff orff t and subjectivity in perforff ming procedures and evaluating management’s
estimate of Ultimate Revenues and the signififf cant assumptions that are based on the past perforff mance of similar
television programs in a market, the perforff mance in the initial markets, and futff urt e fiff rm commitments to license
programs.

Addressing the matter involved perforff ming procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forff ming
our overall opinion on the consolidated fiff nancial statements. These procedures included testing the effff eff ctiveness
of controls relating to amortization of internally-produced television programming inventoryrr that is predominantly
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monetized on an individual basis, including the controls over the estimation of Ultimate Revenues. These
procedures also included, among others, (i) testing management’s process forff estimating Ultimate Revenues, and
(ii) evaluating whether the signififf cant assumptions were reasonabla e considering inforff mation related to the past
perforff mance of similar television programs in a market, the perforff mance in the initial markets and futff urt e fiff rm
commitments to license programs. Procedures were also perforff med to test the completeness and accuracy of
management's data used in these estimates.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
Februarr ryrr 16, 2023

We have served as the Company’s or its predecessor’s auditor since 1970.

II-50



PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERARR TIONS
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Revenues $ 30,154 $ 28,586 $ 25,285
Costs and expenses:
Operating 19,845 17,744 14,992
Selling, general and administrative 7,033 6,398 5,320
Depreciation and amortization 405 390 430
Restrucrr turt ing and other corporr ate matters 585 100 618
Total costs and expenses 27,868 24,632 21,360

Net gain on dispositions 56 2,343 214
Operating income 2,342 6,297 4,139
Interest expense (931) (986) (1,031)
Interest income 108 53 60
Net gains (losses) frff om investments (9) 47 206
Loss on extinguishment of debt (120) (128) (126)
Other items, net (124) (77) (101)
Earnings frff om continuing operations beforff e income taxes
and equity in loss of investee companies 1,266 5,206 3,147

Provision forff income taxes (227) (646) (535)
Equity in loss of investee companies, net of tax (204) (91) (28)
Net earnings frff om continuing operations 835 4,469 2,584
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax 379 162 117
Net earnings (Paramount and noncontrolling interests) 1,214 4,631 2,701
Net earnings attributabla e to noncontrolling interests (110) (88) (279)
Net earnings attributabla e to Paramount $ 1,104 $ 4,543 $ 2,422

Amounts attributabla e to Paramount:
Net earnings frff om continuing operations $ 725 $ 4,381 $ 2,305
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax 379 162 117
Net earnings attributabla e to Paramount $ 1,104 $ 4,543 $ 2,422

Basic net earnings per common share attributabla e to Paramount:
Net earnings frff om continuing operations $ 1.03 $ 6.77 $ 3.74
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations $ .58 $ .25 $ .19
Net earnings $ 1.61 $ 7.02 $ 3.93

Diluted net earnings per common share attributabla e to Paramount:
Net earnings frff om continuing operations $ 1.03 $ 6.69 $ 3.73
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations $ .58 $ .25 $ .19
Net earnings $ 1.61 $ 6.94 $ 3.92

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 649 641 616
Diluted 650 655 618

See notes to consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In millions)

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Net earnings (Paramount and noncontrolling interests) $ 1,214 $ 4,631 $ 2,701
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustments (240) (143) 134
Decrease (increase) to net actuat rial loss and prior service costs 337 75 (2)
Other comprehensive income (loss) frff om continuing operations, net of tax
(Paramount and noncontrolling interests) 97 (68) 132
Other comprehensive income (loss) frff om discontinued operations (7) (3) 5
Comprehensive income 1,304 4,560 2,838
Less: Comprehensive income attributabla e to noncontrolling interests 105 87 278
Comprehensive income attributabla e to Paramount $ 1,199 $ 4,473 $ 2,560

See notes to consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except per share amounts)

At December 31,
2022 2021

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,885 $ 6,267
Receivabla es, net 7,412 6,984
Programming and other inventoryrr 1,342 1,504
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,308 1,176
Current assets of discontinued operations 787 745
Total current assets 13,734 16,676

Property and equipment, net 1,762 1,736
Programming and other inventoryrr 16,278 13,358
Goodwill 16,499 16,584
Intangible assets, net 2,694 2,772
Operating lease assets 1,391 1,630
Defeff rred income tax assets, net 1,242 1,206
Other assets 3,991 3,824
Assets held forff sale — 19
Assets of discontinued operations 802 815
Total Assets $ 58,393 $ 58,620
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabia lities:
Accounts payabla e $ 1,403 $ 800
Accruerr d expenses 2,071 2,323
Participants’ share and royalties payabla e 2,416 2,159
Accruerr d programming and production costs 2,063 1,342
Defeff rred revenues 973 1,091
Debt 239 11
Other current liabia lities 1,477 1,182
Current liabia lities of discontinued operations 549 571
Total current liabia lities 11,191 9,479

Long-term debt 15,607 17,698
Participants’ share and royalties payabla e 1,744 1,244
Pension and postretirement benefiff t obligations 1,458 1,946
Defeff rred income tax liabia lities, net 1,077 1,063
Operating lease liabia lities 1,428 1,598
Program rights obligations 367 404
Other liabia lities 1,715 1,898
Liabia lities of discontinued operations 200 213
Redeemabla e noncontrolling interest — 107
Commitments and contingencies (Note 20)
Paramount stockholders’ equity:
5.75% Series A Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock, par value $.001 per share;
25 shares authorized and 10 shares issued (2022 and 2021) — —

Class A Common Stock, par value $.001 per share; 55 shares authorized;
41 (2022 and 2021) shares issued — —

Class B Common Stock, par value $.001 per share; 5,000 shares authorized;
1,112 (2022) and 1,110 (2021) shares issued 1 1

Additional paid-in capia tal 33,063 32,918
Treasuryr stock, at cost; 503 (2022 and 2021) shares of Class B Common Stock (22,958) (22,958)
Retained earnings 14,737 14,343
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,807) (1,902)
Total Paramount stockholders’ equity 23,036 22,402

Noncontrolling interests 570 568
Total Equity 23,606 22,970
Total Liabia lities and Equity $ 58,393 $ 58,620

See notes to consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions)

Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Operating Activities:
Net earnings (Paramount and noncontrolling interests) $ 1,214 $ 4,631 $ 2,701
Less: Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax 379 162 117
Net earnings frff om continuing operations 835 4,469 2,584
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings frff om continuing operations to net cash flff ow

(used forff ) provided by operating activities frff om continuing operations:
Depreciation and amortization 405 390 430
Amortization of content costs and participation and residuals expense 14,951 13,649 11,286
Defeff rred tax provision (benefiff t) (106) 90 122
Stock-based compensation 172 192 274
Net gain on dispositions (56) (2,343) (214)
Net (gains) losses frff om investments 9 (47) (206)
Loss on extinguishment of debt 120 128 126
Equity in loss of investee companies, net of tax and distributions 207 96 34
Change in assets and liabia lities
(Increase) decrease in receivabla es (180) 179 (68)
Increase in inventoryrr and related program, participation, and residuals liabia lities (17,164) (16,763) (12,283)
Increase in accounts payabla e and other liabia lities 596 642 60
Decrease in pension and postretirement benefiff t obligations (44) (61) (20)
Increase in income taxes 272 265 2
Other, net (159) (51) 88

Net cash flff ow (used forff ) provided by operating activities frff om continuing operations (142) 835 2,215
Net cash flff ow provided by operating activities frff om discontinued operations 361 118 79
Net cash flff ow provided by operating activities 219 953 2,294
Investing Activities:
Investments (254) (193) (59)
Capia tal expenditurt es (358) (354) (324)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (54) (147)
Proceeds frff om dispositions 95 3,028 593
Other investing activities (1) (25) —
Net cash flff ow (used forff ) provided by investing activities frff om continuing operations (518) 2,402 63
Net cash flff ow used forff investing activities frff om discontinued operations (8) (7) (7)
Net cash flff ow (used forff ) provided by investing activities (526) 2,395 56
Financing Activities:
Repayments of commercial papea r borrowings, net — — (698)
Proceeds frff om issuance of debt 1,138 58 4,375
Repayment of debt (3,140) (2,230) (2,909)
Dividends paid on prefeff rred stock (58) (30) —
Dividends paid on common stock (631) (617) (600)
Proceeds frff om issuance of prefeff rred stock — 983 —
Proceeds frff om issuance of common stock — 1,672 —
Purchase of Company common stock — — (58)
Payment of payroll taxes in lieu of issuing shares forff stock-based compensation (31) (110) (93)
Proceeds frff om exercise of stock options — 408 5
Payments to noncontrolling interests (218) (235) (59)
Other fiff nancing activities (41) (51) (53)
Net cash flff ow used forff fiff nancing activities (2,981) (152) (90)
Effff eff ct of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (94) (48) 25
Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (3,382) 3,148 2,285
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year
(includes $135 (2021) and $202 (2020) of restricted cash) 6,267 3,119 834

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of year
(includes $135 (2020) of restricted cash) $ 2,885 $ 6,267 $ 3,119

See notes to consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In millions)

Prefeff rred Stock
Class A and B
Common Stock

Treasury
Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Total
Paramount
Stockholders’
Equity

Non-
Controlling
Interests

Total
Equity

(Shar(( es)s (Shar(( es)s
December 31, 2019 — $ — 615 $ 1 $ (22,908) $ 29,590 $ 8,494 $ (1,970) $ 13,207 $ 82 $ 13,289
Stock-based
compensation
activity — — 3 — — 195 — — 195 — 195
Class B Common
Stock purchased — — (1) — (50) — — — (50) — (50)
Common stock
dividends — — — — — — (601) — (601) — (601)
Noncontrolling
interests — — — — — — 60 — 60 325 (a) 385
Net earnings — — — — — — 2,422 — 2,422 279 2,701
Other
comprehensive
income (loss) — — — — — — — 138 138 (1) 137
December 31, 2020 — — 617 1 (22,958) 29,785 10,375 (1,832) 15,371 685 16,056
Stock-based
compensation
activity — — 11 — — 493 — — 493 — 493
Stock issuances 10 — 20 — — 2,655 — — 2,655 — 2,655
Prefeff rred stock
dividends — — — — — — (44) — (44) — (44)
Common stock
dividends — — — — — — (625) — (625) — (625)
Noncontrolling
interests — — — — — (15) 94 — 79 (204) (125)
Net earnings — — — — — — 4,543 — 4,543 88 4,631
Other
comprehensive
loss — — — — — — — (70) (70) (1) (71)
December 31, 2021 10 — 648 1 (22,958) 32,918 14,343 (1,902) 22,402 568 22,970
Stock-based
compensation
activity — — 2 — — 145 — — 145 — 145
Prefeff rred stock
dividends — — — — — — (58) — (58) — (58)
Common stock
dividends — — — — — — (635) — (635) — (635)
Noncontrolling
interests — — — — — (17) — (17) (103) (120)
Net earnings — — — — — — 1,104 — 1,104 110 1,214
Other
comprehensive
loss — — — — — — — 95 95 (5) 90
December 31, 2022 10 $ — 650 $ 1 $ (22,958) $ 33,063 $ 14,737 $ (1,807) $ 23,036 $ 570 $ 23,606

(a) Primarily reflff ects the acquisition of Miramax (see Note 2).

See notes to consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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1) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARYRR OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Descripti ion of Business—Effff eff ctive Februarr ryrr 16, 2022, we changed our name frff om ViacomCBS Inc. to
Paramount Global, and effff eff ctive at the open of market trading on Februarr ryrr 17, 2022, our Class A Common Stock,
Class B Common Stock and 5.75% Series A Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock (“Mandatoryrr Convertible
Prefeff rred Stock”) ceased trading under the ticker symbols “VIACA,” “VIAC” and “VIACP” and began trading
under the ticker symbols “PARARR A,” “PARARR ” and “PARARR P,” respectively, on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC.
Refeff rences to “Paramount,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refeff r to Paramount Global and its consolidated
subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires.

Beginning in the fiff rst quarter of 2022, primarily as a result of our increased strategic focff us on our direct-to-
consumer streaming businesses, we made certain changes to how we manage our businesses and allocate
resources that resulted in a change to our operating segments. Our management strucrr turt e was reorganized to focff us
on managing our business as the combination of three parts: a traditional media business, a portfolff io of domestic
and international streaming services, and a fiff lm studit o. Accordingly, forff all periods presented we are reporting
results based on the folff lowing segments:

• TV MeMM dia—Our TV MeMM dia segment consists of our (1) broadcast operations — the CBS Television
Network, our domestic broadcast television network; CBS Stations, our owned television stations; and
our international frff ee-to-air networks, Network 10, Channel 5, Telefeff , and Chilevisión; (2) premium and
basic cabla e networks, including Showtime, MTV, Comedy Central, Paramount Network, The
Smithsonian Channel, Nickelodeon, BET Media Group, CBS Sports Network, and international
extensions of certain of these brands; (3) domestic and international television studit o operations,
including CBS Studit os, Paramount Television Studit os and MTV Entertainment Studit os, as well as CBS
Media Venturt es, which produces and distributes fiff rst-runrr syndicated programming. TV MeMM dia also
includes a number of digital properties such as CBS News Streaming and CBS Sports HQ

• DDirect-to-ConsCC umerr—rrrr Our DDirect-to-ConsCC umer segment consists of our portfolff io of domestic and
international pay and frff ee streaming services, including Paramount+, Pluto TV, Showtime Networks’
ppremium subscription streaming service (Showtime OTT), BET+ and Noggin.

• FFiFF lml ed EntEE ertainme tnt—tttt Our FFiFF lmll ed EntEE ertainment segment consists of Paramount Picturt es, Paramount
Players, Paramount Animation, Nickelodeon Studit o, Awesomeness and Miramax.

In Januaryrr 2023, we announced that we will be fulff ly integrating Showtime into Paramount+ across both streaming
and linear platforff ms later in 2023.

Disii continued OpeO rations—In November 2020, we entered into an agreement to sell our publishing business,
Simon & Schuster, which was previously reported as the Publisii hing segment, to Penguin Random House LLC
(“Penguin Random House”), a wholly owned subsidiaryrr of Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA. As a result, we began
presenting Simon & Schuster as a discontinued operation in our consolidated fiff nancial statements forff the fourff th
quarter of 2020. In November 2021, the U.S. Department of Justice (the “DOJ”) fiff led suit in the United States
District Court forff the District of Columbia to block the sale and in October 2022 the Court rulrr ed in faff vor of the
DOJ. In November 2022, we terminated the agreement and in accordance with its terms, subsequently received a
$200 million termination feff e. Simon & Schuster remains a noncore asset as it does not fiff t strategically within our
video-based portfolff io. We expect to enter into a new agreement to sell Simon & Schuster in 2023. Assuming that
we do so, closing would be subject to closing conditions that would include regulatoryrr appra oval. Simon &
Schuster continues to be presented as a discontinued operation forff all periods presented (see Note 3).
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Principli es of ConsCC olidation—The consolidated fiff nancial statements include the accounts of Paramount, its
subsidiaries in which a controlling interest is maintained and variabla e interest entities (“VIEs”) where we are
considered the primaryrr benefiff ciary,rr aftff er the elimination of intercompany transactions. Controlling interest is
determined by maja ority ownership interest and the absa ence of substantive third party participating rights.
Investments over which we have a signififf cant inflff uence, without a controlling interest, are accounted forff under the
equity method. Our proportionate share of net earnings or loss of the entity is recorded in “Equity in loss of
investee companies, net of tax” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Reclassifi iff cations—Certain amounts reported forff prior years have been reclassififf ed to conforff m to the current
year’s presentation.

UsUU e of EsEE timates—The preparation of our fiff nancial statements in conforff mity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that
affff eff ct the reported amounts of assets and liabia lities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabia lities as of the
date of the fiff nancial statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the periods presented.
We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonabla e under the circumstances, the results of which forff m the basis forff making judgments abouta the carryirr ng
values of assets and liabia lities that are not readily appaa rent frff om other sources. Actuat l results may varyrr frff om these
estimates under diffff eff rent assumptions or conditions.

Business ComCC binations—We generally account forff business combinations using the acquisition method of
accounting. Under the acquisition method, once control is obtained of a business, 100% of the assets, liabia lities
and certain contingent liabia lities acquired, as well as amounts attributed to noncontrolling interests, are recorded
at faff ir value. Any transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

CasCC h and CasCC h Equivalentstt —Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and highly liquid investments
with maturt ities of three months or less at the date of purchase, including money market fundsff , commercial papea r
and bank time deposits.

Programming InvII entoryr —Wyy e produce and acquire rights to programming to exhibit on our broadcast and cabla e
networks, direct to consumers through our streaming services, on our broadcast television stations, and in theaters.
We also produce programming forff third parties. Costs forff internally-produced and acquired programming
inventory,rr including prepayments forff such costs, are recorded within the non-current portion of “Programming
and other inventory”rr on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Prepayments forff the rights to air sporting and other live
events that are expected to be expensed over the next 12 months are classififf ed within the current portion of
“Programming and other inventory”rr on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Costs incurred to produce television programs and feff aturt e fiff lms (which include direct production costs,
production overhead, acquisition costs and development costs) are capia talized when incurred and amortized over
the projected lifeff of each television program or feff aturt e fiff lm. Costs incurred to acquire television series and feff aturt e
fiff lm programming rights, including advances, are capia talized when the license period has begun and the program
is accepted and availabla e forff airing and amortized over the shorter of the license period or the period in which an
economic benefiff t is expected to be derived.

In addition, production inventoryrr is reduced by contributions frff om co-production partners, as appla icabla e, and tax
incentives earned forff qualififf ed production spending in certain U.S. states and international locations. As a result,
the benefiff t of these items will be recognized through reduced amortization over the lifeff of the related content.
Included in “Other current assets” and “Other assets” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2022
were receivabla es forff production tax incentives of $0.3 billion and $1.4 billion, respectively.
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We categorize our capia talized production and programming costs based on the expected predominant
monetization strategy throughout the lifeff of the content. Our programming that is expected to be predominantly
monetized through licensing and distribution on third-party platforff ms is considered individually monetized and
our programming that is expected to be predominantly monetized on our networks and streaming services
together with other programming, is considered to be monetized as part of a fiff lm group. The predominant
monetization strategy is determined when capia talization of production costs commences and is reassessed if there
is a signififf cant change to the expected futff urt e monetization strategy. This reassessment will include an assessment
of the monetization strategy throughout the entire lifeff of the programming.

For internally-produced television programs and feff aturt e fiff lms that are predominantly monetized on an individual
basis, we use an individual-fiff lm-forff ecast computation method to amortize capia talized production costs and to
accruerr estimated liabia lities forff participations and residuals over the appla icabla e title’s lifeff cycle based upon the
ratio of current period revenues to estimated remaining total gross revenues to be earned (“Ultimate Revenues”)
forff each title. The estimate of Ultimate Revenues impacts the timing of amortization of capia talized production
costs and expensing of participations and residual costs. For television programming, our estimate of Ultimate
Revenues includes revenues to be earned within 10 years frff om the deliveryrr of the fiff rst episode, or, if still in
production, fiff ve years frff om the deliveryrr of the most recent episode, if later. These estimates are based on the past
perforff mance of similar television programs in a market, the perforff mance in the initial markets and futff urt e fiff rm
commitments to license programs.

For feff aturt e fiff lms, our estimate of Ultimate Revenues includes revenues frff om all sources that are estimated to be
earned within 10 years frff om the date of a fiff lm’s initial release. Prior to the release of feff aturt e fiff lms, we estimate
Ultimate Revenues based on the historical perforff mance of similar content and pre-release market research
(including test market screenings), as well as faff ctors relating to the specififf c fiff lm, including the expected number
of theaters and markets in which the original content will be released, the genre of the original content and the
past box offff iff ce perforff mance of the lead actors and actresses. Upon a fiff lm’s initial release, we update our estimate
of Ultimate Revenues based on actuat l and expected futff urt e perforff mance. Our estimates of revenues frff om
succeeding windows and markets are revised based on historical relationships to theatrical perforff mance and an
analysis of current market trends. For acquired television and fiff lm libraries, our estimate of Ultimate Revenues is
forff a period within 20 years frff om the date of acquisition. Ultimate Revenue estimates are periodically reviewed
and adjustments, if any, will result in changes to inventoryrr amortization rates and estimated accruarr ls forff residuals
and participations.

Film development costs that have not been set forff production are expensed within three years unless they are
abaa ndoned earlier, in which case these projects are written down to their estimated faff ir value in the period the
decision to abaa ndon the project is determined.

For programming that is predominantly monetized as part of a fiff lm group, capia talized costs are amortized based
on an estimate of the timing of our usage of and benefiff t frff om such programming. The costs of programming rights
licensed under multi-year sports programming agreements are capia talized if the rights payments are made beforff e
the related economic benefiff t has been received and amortized over the period in which an economic benefiff t is
expected to be derived based on the relative value of the events broadcast by us during a period in relation to the
estimated total value of the events over the term of the sports programming agreement.

For content that is predominantly monetized on an individual basis, a television program or feff aturt e fiff lm is tested
forff impairment when events or circumstances indicate that its faff ir value may be less than its unamortized cost.
Content that is predominantly monetized within a fiff lm group is assessed forff impairment at the fiff lm group level
and would similarly be tested forff impairment if circumstances indicate that the faff ir value of the fiff lm group is less
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than its unamortized costs. If the carryirr ng value of a fiff lm group or individual television program or feff aturt e fiff lm
exceeds the estimated faff ir value, an impairment charge will then be recorded in the amount of the diffff eff rence. A
change in the monetization strategy of content, whether monetized individually or as part of a fiff lm group, will
result in a reassessment of the predominant monetization strategy and may trigger an assessment of the content forff
impairment. Any resulting impairment test will be perforff med either at the individual level, if the predominant
monetization strategy is determined to be individual, or at the fiff lm group level where the futff urt e cash flff ows will be
generated. In addition, unamortized costs forff internally-produced or acquired programming that has been
abaa ndoned are written offff .ff

Television and feff aturt e fiff lm programming and production costs, including inventoryrr amortization, development
costs, residuals and participations and impairment charges, if any, are included within “Operating expenses” on
the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Propertytt and Equipmi ent—Ptt roperty and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method over estimated usefulff lives as folff lows:

Buildings and building improvements 10 to 40 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or usefulff lifeff
Equipment and other (including fiff nance leases) 3 to 20 years

Costs associated with repairs and maintenance of property and equipment are expensed as incurred.

ImII paim rment of Long-Lived Assetstt —The Company assesses long-lived assets and intangible assets, other than
goodwill and intangible assets with indefiff nite lives, forff impairment whenever there is an indication that the
carryirr ng amount of the asset group may not be recoverabla e. Recoverabia lity of these asset groups is determined by
comparing the forff ecasted undiscounted cash flff ows expected to be generated by these asset groups to their net
carryirr ng value. If the carryirr ng value is not recoverabla e, the amount of impairment charge, if any, is measured by
the diffff eff rence between the net carryirr ng value and the estimated faff ir value of the assets.

InvII estmt entstt —Investments over which we have a signififf cant inflff uence, without a controlling interest, are
accounted forff under the equity method. Equity investments forff which we have no signififf cant inflff uence are
measured at faff ir value where a readily determinabla e faff ir value exists. Equity investments that do not have a
readily determinabla e faff ir value are measured at cost less impairment, if any, and adjusted forff observabla e price
changes. Gains and losses resulting frff om changes in the faff ir value of equity investments are recorded in “Net
gains (losses) frff om investments” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. We monitor our investments forff
impairment and reduce the carryirr ng value of the investment if we determine that an impairment charge is required
based on qualitative and quantitative inforff mation. Our investments are included in “Other assets” on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Goodwill and IntII angible Assetstt —Goodwill is allocated to various reporting units, which are at or one level below
our operating segments. Intangible assets with fiff nite lives, which primarily consist of trade names, licenses, and
customer agreements are generally amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated usefulff lives,
which range frff om 5 to 40 years. Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefiff nite lives, which consist primarily
of FCC licenses, are not amortized but are tested forff impairment on an annual basis and between annual tests if
events occur or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the faff ir value below its carryirr ng
amount. If the carryirr ng value of goodwill or the indefiff nite-lived intangible asset exceeds its faff ir value, an
impairment charge is recognized (see Note 6).

PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Tabular dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

II-59



Guarantees—At the inception of a guarantee, we recognize a liabia lity forff the faff ir value of an obligation assumed
by issuing the guarantee. The related liabia lity is subsequently reduced as utilized or extinguished and increased if
there is a probabla e loss associated with the guarantee which exceeds the value of the recorded liabia lity.

TrTT easuryr Stock—Tkk reasuryrr stock is accounted forff using the cost method. Retirements of treasuryrr stock are
reflff ected as a reduction to additional paid-in capia tal.

FaiFF r ValVV ue MeMM asurementstt —Fair value is defiff ned as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfeff r a liabia lity in an orderly transaction between market participants. The frff amework forff measuring faff ir value
provides a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used in measuring faff ir value. Level 1 is
based on publicly quoted prices forff the asset or liabia lity in active markets. Level 2 is based on inputs that are
observabla e other than quoted market prices in active markets, such as quoted prices forff the asset or liabia lity in
inactive markets or quoted prices forff similar assets or liabia lities. Level 3 is based on unobservabla e inputs
reflff ecting our own assumptions abouta the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liabia lity. Certain assets and liabia lities, including forff eign currency hedges and defeff rred compensation liabia lities, are
measured and recorded at faff ir value on a recurring basis. Other assets and liabia lities, including television and fiff lm
production costs, lease assets, goodwill, intangible assets, and equity-method investments are recorded at faff ir
value only if an impairment charge is recognized. Impairment charges, if appla icabla e, are generally determined
using discounted cash flff ows, which is a Level 3 valuation technique.

Derivative FiFF nancial InsII trumentstt —Derivative fiff nancial instrumrr ents are recorded on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets as assets or liabia lities and measured at faff ir value. For derivatives designated as hedges of the faff ir value of
assets or liabia lities, the changes in faff ir value of both the derivatives and the hedged items are recorded in “Other
items, net” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. For derivatives designated as cash flff ow hedges, the
effff eff ctive portion of the changes in faff ir value of the derivatives is recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive
loss” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and subsequently recognized in net earnings when the hedged items are
recognized.

Pension and Postretirement Benefe iff tstt —The service cost component of net benefiff t cost forff our pension and
postretirement benefiff ts is recorded on the same line items on the Consolidated Statements of Operations as other
compensation costs of the related employees. All of the other components of net benefiff t cost are presented
separately frff om the service cost component and below the subtotal of operating income in “Other items, net” on
the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Other Liabilities—Other liabia lities consist primarily of the noncurrent portion of residual liabia lities of previously
disposed businesses, long-term income tax liabia lities, defeff rred compensation and other employee benefiff t accruarr ls.

Revenues

Revenue is recognized when control of a good or service is transfeff rred to a customer. Control is considered to be
transfeff rred when the customer has the abia lity to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefiff ts of that good or service.

Advertisii ing Revenues—Advertising revenues are recognized when the advertising spots are aired on television or
streamed or displayed on digital platforff ms. Advertising spots are typically sold as part of advertising campaigns
consisting of multiple commercial units. If a contract includes a guarantee to deliver a targeted audience rating or
number of impressions, the deliveryrr of the advertising spots that achieve the guarantee represents the perforff mance
obligation to be satisfiff ed over time and revenues are recognized based on the proportion of the audience rating or
impressions delivered to the total guaranteed in the contract. Audience ratings and impressions are determined
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based on data provided by independent third-party companies. To the extent the amounts billed exceed the
amount of revenue recognized, such excess is defeff rred until the guaranteed audience ratings or impressions are
delivered. For contracts that do not include impressions guarantees, the individual advertising spots are the
perforff mance obligation and consideration is allocated among the individual advertising spots based on relative
standalone selling price. Advertising contracts, which are generally short-term, are billed monthly, with payments
duedd shortly aftff er the invoice date.

AfA fff iff liate and Subscripti ion Revenues—Affff iff liate and subscription revenues are principally comprised of feff es
received frff om multichannel video programming distributors (“MVPDs”) and third-party live television streaming
services (“virtuat l MVPDs”, or “vMVPDs”) forff carriage of our cabla e networks (“cabla e affff iff liate feff es”) and our
owned television stations (“retransmission feff es”); feff es received frff om television stations forff their affff iff liation with
the CBS Television Network (“reverse compensation”); and subscription feff es forff our subscription streaming
services. Costs incurred forff advertising, marketing and other services provided to us by cabla e, satellite and other
distributors that are in exchange forff a distinct service are recorded as expenses. If a distinct service is not
received, such costs are recorded as a reduction to revenues.

The perforff mance obligation forff our affff iff liate agreements is a license to our programming provided through the
continuous deliveryrr of live linear feff eds and, forff agreements with MVPDs and vMVPDs, also includes a license to
programming forff video-on-demand viewing. Affff iff liate revenues are recognized over the term of the agreement as
we satisfyff our perforff mance obligation by continuously providing our customer with the right to use our
programming. For agreements that provide forff a variabla e feff e, revenues are determined each month based on an
agreed upon contractuat l rate appla ied to the number of subscribers to our customer’s service. For agreements that
provide forff a fiff xed feff e, revenues are recognized based on the relative faff ir value of the content provided over the
term of the agreement. These agreements primarily include agreements with television stations affff iff liated with the
CBS Television Network (“network affff iff liates”) forff which faff ir value is determined based on the faff ir value of the
network affff iff liate’s service and the value of our programming. For affff iff liate revenues, payments are generally due
monthly. Subscription revenues to our streaming services are recognized evenly over the subscription period.

TheTT atrical Revenues—Theatrical revenue is earned frff om the theatrical distribution of our fiff lms during the
exhibition period. Under these arrangements, revenues are recognized based on sales to the end customer.

Licensing and Other Revenues—Licensing and other revenues are principally comprised of feff es frff om the
licensing of the rights to exhibit our internally-produced television and fiff lm programming on various platforff ms in
the secondaryrr market aftff er its initial exhibition on our owned or third-party platforff ms; license feff es frff om content
produced or distributed forff third parties; home entertainment revenues, which include revenues frff om the viewing
of our content on a transactional basis through transactional video-on-demand (TVOD) and electronic sell-
through services, and the sale and distribution of our content through DVDs and Blu-ray discs to wholesale and
retail partners; feff es frff om the use of our trademarks and brands forff consumer products, recreation and live events;
and revenues frff om the rental of production faff cilities.

For licenses of exhibition rights forff internally-produced programming, each individual episode or fiff lm delivered
represents a separate perforff mance obligation and revenues are recognized when the episode or fiff lm is made
availabla e to the licensee forff exhibition and the license period has begun. For license agreements that include
deliveryrr of content on one or more dates forff a fiff xed feff e, consideration is allocated based on the relative standalone
selling price of each episode or fiff lm. Estimation of standalone selling prices requires judgment, which can impact
the timing of recognizing revenues. Agreements to license programming are oftff en long term, with collection
terms ranging frff om one to fiff ve years.
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When payment is due frff om a customer more than one year beforff e or aftff er revenue is recognized, we consider the
contract to contain a signififf cant fiff nancing component and the transaction price is adjusted forff the effff eff cts of the
time value of money. We do not adjust the transaction price forff the time value of money if payment is expected
within one year of recognizing revenues.

We also license our programming to distributors of transactional video-on-demand and similar services. Under
these arrangements, our perforff mance obligation is the deliveryrr of our content to such distributors who then license
our content to the end customer. Our revenues are determined each month based on a contractuat l rate appla ied to
the number of licenses to the distributors’ end customers. Similarly, revenues earned frff om electronic sell-through
services are recognized as each program is downloaded by the end customer.

Revenues associated with the licensing of our brands forff consumer products, recreation and live events are
generally determined based on contractuat l royalty rates appla ied to sales reported by the licensees. For consumer
products and recreation arrangements that include minimum guaranteed consideration, revenue is recognized as
sales occur by the licensee, if the sales-based consideration is expected to exceed the minimum guarantee, or
ratabla y if it is not expected to exceed the minimum guarantee. For live events, we recognize revenue when the
event is held.

Revenues frff om the sales of DVDs and Blu-ray discs to wholesalers and retailers are recognized upon the later of
the physical deliveryrr to the customer or the date that any sales restrictions on the retailers are liftff ed.

We earn revenues frff om the distribution of content on behalf of third parties. We also have arrangements forff the
distribution or sale of our content by third parties. Under such arrangements, we determine whether revenues
should be recognized based on the gross amount of consideration received frff om the customer or the net amount of
revenue we retain aftff er payment to the third party producer or distributor, based on an assessment of which party
controls the good or service being transfeff rred.

Revenue Allowances—DVDs and Blu-ray discs are generally sold with a right of returt n. We record a provision forff
sales returt ns and allowances at the time of sale based upon an estimate of futff urt e returt ns, rebates and other
incentives. In determining this provision, we consider sources of qualitative and quantitative evidence including
forff ecast sales data, customers’ rights of returt n, sales levels forff units already shipped, historical returt n rates forff
similar products, current economic trends, the competitive environment, promotions and our sales strategies.
Reserves forff sales returt ns and allowances of $70 million and $36 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, are recorded in “Other current liabia lities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Reserves forff accounts receivabla e reflff ect our expected credit losses, which are estimated based on historical
experience, as well as current and expected economic conditions and industryrr trends. Our allowance forff credit
losses was $111 million and $80 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The provision forff doubtfulff
accounts charged to expense was $40 million in 2022, $8 million in 2021 and $32 million in 2020. The expense in
2022 principally includes a charge forff amounts due frff om customers in RusRR sia, Belarusrr and Ukraine folff lowing
RusRR sia’s invasion of Ukraine in the fiff rst quarter of 2022 (see Note 7).
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ContCC ract Liabilities—A contract liabia lity is recorded when consideration is received frff om a customer prior to
fulff ly satisfyiff ng a perforff mance obligation in a contract. Our contract liabia lities primarily consist of cash received
related to advertising arrangements forff which the required audience rating or impressions have not been delivered;
consumer products arrangements with minimum guarantees; and content licensing arrangements under which the
content has not yet been made availabla e to the customer. These contract liabia lities will be recognized as revenues
when control of the related product or service is transfeff rred to the customer. Contract liabia lities are included
within “Defeff rred revenues” and “Other liabia lities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

ColCC laborative Arrangementstt —Collabora ative arrangements primarily consist of joint effff orff ts with third parties to
produce and distribute programming such as television series and live sporting events, including the agreement
between us and Turner Broadcasting System, Inc. to telecast the NCNN ACC A Divisii ion I MeMM n’s Baskekk tball
ChamCC pim onshipi (the “NCAA Tournament”), which runsrr through 2032. In connection with this agreement forff the
NCAA Tournament, advertisements aired on the CBS Television Network are recorded as revenues and our share
of the program rights feff es and other operating costs are recorded as operating expenses.

We also enter into collabora ative arrangements with other studit os to jointly fiff nance and distribute fiff lm and
television programming, under which each partner is responsible forff distribution of the program in specififf c
territories or distribution windows. Under these arrangements, our share of costs forff co-productions are initially
capia talized as programming inventoryrr and amortized over the estimated economic lifeff of the program. In such
arrangements where we have distribution rights, all proceeds generated frff om such distribution are recorded as
revenues and any participation profiff ts due to third party collabora ators are recorded as participation expenses. In
co-production arrangements where third party collabora ators have distribution rights, our net participating profiff ts
are recorded as revenues.

Amounts attributabla e to transactions arising frff om collabora ative arrangements between participants were not
material to the consolidated fiff nancial statements forff any period presented.

Leases—Our leases are principally comprised of operating leases forff offff iff ce space, equipment, satellite
transponders and studit o faff cilities. We determine that a contract contains a lease if we obtain substantially all of
the economic benefiff ts of,ff and the right to direct the use of,ff an asset identififf ed in the contract. For leases with terms
greater than 12 months, we record a right-of-ff use asset and a lease liabia lity representing the present value of futff urt e
lease payments. The discount rate used to measure the lease asset and liabia lity is determined at the beginning of
the lease term using the rate implicit in the lease, if readily determinabla e, or our collateralized incremental
borrowing rate. For those contracts that include fiff xed rental payments forff both the use of the asset (“lease costs”)
as well as forff other occupancy or service costs relating to the asset (“non-lease costs”), we generally include both
the lease costs and non-lease costs in the measurement of the lease asset and liabia lity. We also own buildings and
production faff cilities where we lease space to lessees.

Our leases generally have remaining terms of up to 14 years and oftff en contain renewal options to extend the lease
forff periods of generally up to 10 years. For leases that contain renewal options, we include the renewal period in
the lease term if it is reasonabla y certain that the option will be exercised. Lease expense and income forff our
operating leases are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term, with the exception of variabla e lease
costs, which are expensed as incurred, and leases of assets used in the production of programming, which are
capia talized in programming assets and amortized over the projected usefulff lifeff of the related programming.

Advertisii ing—Agg dvertising costs are expensed as incurred. We incurred total advertising expenses of $2.69 billion
in 2022, $2.14 billion in 2021 and $1.31 billion in 2020.
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IntII erest—Ctt osts associated with the refiff nancing or issuance of debt, as well as debt discounts or premiums, are
recorded as interest over the term of the related debt.

IncII ome TaxTT es—The provision forff income taxes includes feff deral, state, local, and forff eign taxes. We recognize the
tax on global intangible low-taxed income, a U.S. tax on certain income earned by our forff eign subsidiaries, as a
period cost when incurred within the provision forff income taxes. Defeff rred tax assets and liabia lities are recognized
forff the estimated futff urt e tax effff eff cts of temporaryrr diffff eff rences between the fiff nancial statement carryirr ng amounts and
their respective tax basis. Defeff rred tax assets and liabia lities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to appla y
to taxabla e income in the year in which the temporaryrr diffff eff rences are expected to be reversed. We evaluate the
realizabia lity of defeff rred tax assets and establa ish a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that all or a
portion of defeff rred tax assets will not be realized. Defeff rred tax assets and defeff rred tax liabia lities are classififf ed as
noncurrent on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

For tax positions taken in a previously fiff led tax returt n or expected to be taken in a futff urt e tax returt n, we evaluate
each position to determine whether it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon
examination, based on the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold is subject to a measurement assessment to determine the amount of benefiff t to be recognized
in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and the appra opriate reserve to establa ish, if any. If a tax position does
not meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, a tax reserve is establa ished and no benefiff t is recognized.
A number of years may elapsa e beforff e a tax returt n containing tax matters forff which a reserve has been establa ished
is audited and fiff nally resolved. We recognize interest and penalty charges related to the reserve forff uncertain tax
positions as income tax expense.

ForFF eigni CurCC rencyc TrTT anslation and TrTT ansactions—Assets and liabia lities of subsidiaries with a funcff tional currency
other than the United States (“U.S.”) Dollar are translated into U.S. Dollars at forff eign exchange rates in effff eff ct at
the balance sheet date, while results of operations are translated at average forff eign exchange rates forff the
respective periods. The resulting translation gains and losses are included as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity in “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Argentina
has been designated as a highly inflff ationaryrr economy during all periods presented. Transactions denominated in
currencies other than the funcff tional currency will result in remeasurement gains and losses, which are included in
“Other items, net” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

NeNN t Earnings per ComCC mon Share—Basic net earnings per share (“EPS”) is based upon net earnings availabla e to
common stockholders divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Net earnings availabla e to common stockholders is calculated as net earnings frff om continuing operations or net
earnings, as appla icabla e, adjusted to include dividends on our Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock, which was
issued in March 2021 (see Note 15).

Weighted average shares forff diluted EPS reflff ects the effff eff ct of the assumed exercise of stock options and vesting
of restricted share units (“RSUs”) or perforff mance share units (“PSUs”) only in the periods in which such effff eff ct
would have been dilutive. Diluted EPS also reflff ects the effff eff ct of the assumed conversion of prefeff rred stock, if
dilutive, which includes the issuance of common shares in the weighted average number of shares and excludes
the abovea -mentioned prefeff rred stock dividend adjustment to net earnings availabla e to common stockholders.

Excluded frff om the calculation of diluted EPS because their inclusion would have been antidilutive, were stock
options and RSUs of 11 million, 6 million and 22 million forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Also excluded frff om the calculation of diluted EPS forff the year ended December 31, 2022, was the
effff eff ct of the assumed conversion of 10 million shares of Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock into shares of
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common stock because the impact would have been antidilutive. The tabla e below presents a reconciliation of
weighted average shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted EPS.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
(in millions)
Weighted average shares forff basic EPS 649 641 616
Dilutive effff eff ct of shares issuabla e under stock-based compensation plans 1 5 2
Conversion of Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock — 9 —
Weighted average shares forff diluted EPS 650 655 618

Additionally, because the impact of the assumed conversion of the Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock would
have been antidilutive, net earnings frff om continuing operations and net earnings used in our calculation of diluted
EPS forff the year ended December 31, 2022 include the prefeff rred stock dividends recorded during the period. The
tabla e below presents a reconciliation of net earnings frff om continuing operations and net earnings to the amounts
used in the calculations of basic and diluted EPS.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Amounts attributable to Paramount:
Net earnings frff om continuing operations $ 725 $ 4,381
Prefeff rred stock dividends (58) (44)
Net earnings frff om continuing operations forff basic EPS calculation 667 4,337
Prefeff rred stock dividend adjustment — 44
Net earnings frff om continuing operations forff diluted EPS calculation $ 667 $ 4,381

Amounts attributable to Paramount:
Net earnings $ 1,104 $ 4,543
Prefeff rred stock dividends (58) (44)
Net earnings forff basic EPS calculation 1,046 4,499
Prefeff rred stock dividend adjustment — 44
Net earnings forff diluted EPS calculation $ 1,046 $ 4,543

Stock-kk based ComCC pem nsation—We measure the cost of employee services received in exchange forff an award of
equity instrumrr ents based on the grant date faff ir value of the award. The cost is recognized over the vesting period
durdd ing which an employee is required to provide service in exchange forff the award.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting forff ConvCC ertible InsII trumentstt and ContCC ractstt in an EntEE itytt ’s Own Equitytt

On Januaryrr 1, 2022, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) amended guidance to reduce
complexity associated with the accounting forff convertible instrumrr ents with characteristics of liabia lities and equity.
Under this guidance, embedded conversion feff aturt es associated with convertible instrumrr ents no longer need to be
separated frff om the host contracts unless they are required to be accounted forff as derivatives or have been issued at
a substantial premium. For contracts in an entity’s own equity, this guidance removes certain settlement
conditions that are required forff equity contracts to qualifyff forff the derivative scope exceptions. The adoption of
this guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated fiff nancial statements.
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2) ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Acquisii itions

During 2021, we made payments totaling $54 million, net of cash acquired, forff the acquisition of Chilevisión, a
frff ee-to-air television channel, and a controlling interest in Fox TeleColombia & Estudit os TeleMexico, a Spanish
language content producer. The results of these companies are included in the TV MeMM dia segment frff om the dates
of acquisition.

During 2020, we acquired a 49% interest in Miramax, a global fiff lm and television studit o, forff $375 million, which
included a cash payment at closing of appra oximately $150 million along with a commitment to invest $45 million
annually, beginning on the fiff rst anniversaryrr of the closing and continuing through 2025, to be used forff new fiff lm
and television productions and working capia tal. In conjunction with this acquisition, we entered into commercial
agreements with Miramax under which we have exclusive, long-term distribution rights to Miramax’s catalog,
which added more than 700 titles to our existing library.rr We also have certain rights to co-produce, co-fiff nance
and/or distribute new fiff lm and television projects. The investment is accounted forff as a consolidated VIE. We are
the primaryrr benefiff ciaryrr of the VIE due to our power to direct the distribution of Miramax’s fiff lms and television
series, which is considered the most signififf cant activity of the VIE. The results of Miramax are included in the
FiFF lmll ed EntEE ertainment segment frff om the date of acquisition.

The operating results of these acquisitions were not material to our consolidated fiff nancial statements in the year of
acquisition.

Disii poss itions

In September 2022, in connection with our fundiff ng commitments under our streaming joint venturt e,
SkyShowtime, we made a noncash contribution of certain assets of Paramount+ in Denmark, Finland, Norway
and Sweden (the “Nordics”) to the joint venturt e, which resulted in a gain of $41 million. Upon the transfeff r of
these assets, the SkyShowtime service was launched in the Nordics, where it replaced Paramount+.

Also in 2022, we recorded gains on dispositions totaling $15 million, comprised of a gain frff om the sale of
international intangible assets and a working capia tal adjustment to the gain frff om the fourff th quarter 2021 sale of
CBS Studit o Center, which is described below.

During October 2021, we completed the sale of 51 West 52nd Street, an offff iff ce tower that was forff merly the
headquarters of CBS, to Harborr Group International, LLC, forff $760 million, resulting in a gain of $523 million.
We have a lease forff a portion of the space we occupied with terms that end in 2023 and 2024.

In December 2021, we completed the sale of CBS Studit o Center to a partnership forff med by Hackman Capia tal
Partners, LLC and Square Mile Capia tal Management, LLC forff $1.85 billion. At closing, we executed a 10-year
lease-back of the portion of a building on the property that is used by our Los Angeles television stations. The
lease-back began at the time of the sale and includes an option to terminate one flff oor without penalty beginning
on the fiff ftff h anniversary.rr The sale resulted in a gain of $1.70 billion.

In addition, during 2021 we recognized a net gain of $117 million, principally relating to the sale of a noncore
trademark licensing operation.

In October 2020, we completed the sale of CNET Media Group to Red Venturt es forff $484 million. This
transaction resulted in a gain of $214 million.
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3) DISCONTINUED OPERARR TIONS

The folff lowing tabla es set forff th details of net earnings frff om discontinued operations forff the years ended December
31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, which primarily relates to Simon & Schuster (see Note 1).

Year Ended December 31, 2022 Simon & Schuster Other (a) Total
Revenues $ 1,177 $ — $ 1,177
Costs and expenses:
Operating 746 (30) 716
Selling, general and administrative 180 — 180
Restrucr turt ing charges 3 — 3
Total costs and expenses 929 (30) 899

Operating income 248 30 278
Termination feff e, net of advisoryrr feff es 190 — 190
Other items, net (12) — (12)
Earnings frff om discontinued operations 426 30 456
Income tax provision (70) (7) (77)
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax $ 356 $ 23 $ 379

Year Ended December 31, 2021 Simon & Schuster Other (a) Total
Revenues $ 993 $ — $ 993
Costs and expenses:
Operating 618 (16) 602
Selling, general and administrative 158 — 158
Depreciation and amortization 3 — 3
Restrucr turt ing charges 1 — 1
Total costs and expenses 780 (16) 764

Operating income 213 16 229
Other items, net (10) — (10)
Earnings frff om discontinued operations 203 16 219
Income tax provision (46) (11) (57)
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax $ 157 $ 5 $ 162

Year Ended December 31, 2020 Simon & Schuster Other (a) Total
Revenues $ 901 $ — $ 901
Costs and expenses:
Operating 573 (19) 554
Selling, general and administrative 172 — 172
Depreciation and amortization 5 — 5
Restrucr turt ing charges 10 — 10
Total costs and expenses 760 (19) 741

Operating income 141 19 160
Other items, net (5) — (5)
Earnings frff om discontinued operations 136 19 155
Income tax provision (34) (4) (38)
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax $ 102 $ 15 $ 117

(a) Primarily relates to indemnififf cation obligations forff leases associated with the previously discontinued operations of
Famous Players Inc. (“Famous Players”).
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The folff lowing tabla e presents the maja or classes of assets and liabia lities of our discontinued operations.

At December 31, 2022 2021
Receivabla es, net $ 558 $ 536
Other current assets 229 209
Goodwill 434 435
Property and equipment, net 53 46
Operating lease assets 204 203
Other assets 111 131
Total Assets $ 1,589 $ 1,560
Royalties payabla e $ 161 $ 155
Other current liabia lities 388 416
Operating lease liabia lities 182 194
Other liabia lities 18 19
Total Liabia lities $ 749 $ 784

4) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At December 31, 2022 2021
Land $ 371 $ 372
Buildings 863 842
Equipment and other 4,242 4,272

5,476 5,486
Less accumulated depreciation 3,714 3,750
Property and equipment, net $ 1,762 $ 1,736

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Depreciation expense (a) $ 337 $ 344 $ 345

(a) Included in depreciation expense forff 2020 is $12 million of accelerated depreciation resulting frff om the abaa ndonment of
technology in connection with synergy plans related to the merger of Viacom Inc. (“Viacom”) with and into CBS
Corporrr ation (“CBS”) (the “Merger”).

5) PROGRAR MMING AND OTHER INVENTORYRR

The folff lowing tabla e presents our programming and other inventoryrr at December 31, 2022 and 2021, grouped by
type and predominant monetization strategy. During the fiff rst quarter of 2022, in connection with our increased
strategic focff us on our streaming businesses, we reassessed our predominant monetization strategy forff certain of
our internally-produced content, and determined that it had shiftff ed frff om individual to fiff lm group as a result of
expected increased monetization of the content on our streaming services.
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At December 31, 2022 2021
Film Group Monetization:
Acquired program rights, including prepaid sports rights $ 3,238 $ 3,432
Internally-produced television and fiff lm programming:
Released 7,154 3,808
In process and other 3,299 2,609

Individual Monetization:
Acquired libraries 394 441
Film inventory:rr
Released 694 606
Completed, not yet released 129 253
In process and other 1,317 1,303
Internally-produced television programming:
Released 624 1,604
In process and other 726 769
Home entertainment 45 37
Total programming and other inventoryrr 17,620 14,862
Less current portion 1,342 1,504
Total noncurrent programming and other inventoryrr $ 16,278 $ 13,358

The folff lowing tabla e presents amortization of television and fiff lm programming and production costs, which is
included within “Operating expenses” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Programming costs, acquired programming $ 5,018 $ 5,143 $ 3,779

Production costs, internally-produced television and fiff lm programming:
Individual monetization $ 2,104 $ 3,245 $ 2,669
Film group monetization $ 5,187 $ 3,248 $ 3,133

Programming CharCC ger s

Included in the tabla e abovea forff the year ended December 31, 2020, are programming charges of $159 million
primarily related to the abaa ndonment of certain incomplete programs resulting frff om production shutdowns related
to the coronavirusrr pandemic (COVID-19). Programming charges of $154 million and $5 million are included
within the TV MeMM dia and FiFF lml ed EntEE ertainment segments, respectively.

In connection with our plan to integrate Showtime into Paramount+ across both streaming and linear platforff ms in
2023, we have undertaken a comprehensive strategic review of the combined content portfolff io of Showtime and
Paramount+. At the same time, we are rationalizing and right-sizing our international operations to align with our
streaming strategy, and closing or globalizing certain of our international channels. We plan to complete this
review in the fiff rst quarter of 2023 and abaa ndon or remove frff om our platforff ms certain content, which will result in
charges forff the impairment or abaa ndonment of the affff eff cted content, which we estimate will be appra oximately
$1.3 billion to $1.5 billion.
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The folff lowing tabla e presents the expected amortization over each of the next three years of released programming
inventoryrr on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2022. This inforff mation does not include the
expected effff eff cts of the 2023 programming charges discussed abovea .

2023 2024 2025
Programming costs, acquired programming $ 2,187 $ 593 $ 285

Production costs, internally-produced television and fiff lm programming:
Individual monetization $ 822 $ 248 $ 136
Film group monetization $ 3,175 $ 1,812 $ 1,147

During the year ending December 31, 2023, we expect to amortize appra oximately $63 million of our completed,
not yet released fiff lm inventory,rr which is monetized on an individual basis.

6) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

We perforff m faff ir value-based impairment tests of goodwill and intangible assets with indefiff nite lives, comprised
primarily of television FCC licenses, on an annual basis, and also between annual tests if an event occurs or if
circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the faff ir value of a reporting unit or an indefiff nite-
lived intangible asset below its carryirr ng value.

Goodwill is tested forff impairment at the reporting unit level, which is an operating segment, or one level below.
At December 31, 2022, we had fiff ve reporting units. FCC licenses are tested forff impairment at the geographia c
market level. We consider each geographia c market, which is comprised of all of our television stations within that
geographia c market, to be a single unit of accounting because the FCC licenses at this level represent their highest
and best use. At December 31, 2022, we had 14 television markets with FCC license book values.

For our annual impairment test, we perforff m qualitative assessments forff the reporting units and television markets
with FCC licenses that we estimate have faff ir values that signififf cantly exceed their respective carryirr ng values. In
making this determination, we also consider the duration of time since a quantitative test was perforff med. For the
2022 annual impairment test, we perforff med qualitative assessments forff nine of our television markets and all of
our reporting units. Considering the aggregation of all relevant faff ctors, including the signififf cant headroom in our
most recent tests, we concluded that it is not more likely than not that the faff ir values of our reporting units and the
faff ir value of FCC licenses within each of these markets are less than their respective carryirr ng values. Thereforff e,
perforff ming a quantitative impairment test forff these reporting units and FCC licenses was unnecessary.rr

For the 2022 annual test forff FCC licenses, we perforff med a quantitative impairment test forff the remaining fiff ve
markets. The quantitative impairment test of FCC licenses calculates an estimated faff ir value using the Greenfiff eld
Discounted Cash Flow Method, which values a hypothetical start-up station in the relevant market by adding
discounted cash flff ows over a fiff ve-year build-up period to a residual value. The assumptions forff the build-up
period include industryrr projections of overall market revenues; the start-up station’s operating costs and capia tal
expenditurt es, which are based on both industryrr and internal data; and average market share. The discount rate is
determined based on the indusdd tryrr and market-based risk of achieving the projected cash flff ows, and the residual
value is calculated using a long-term growth rate, which is based on projected long-range inflff ation and industryrr
projections. The discount rate and the long-term growth rate were 8% and 1%, respectively. The impairment tests
indicated that the estimated faff ir values of FCC licenses in two of the markets were below their respective carryirr ng
values. Accordingly, we recorded an impairment charge of $27 million to write down the carryirr ng values of these
FCC licenses to their aggregate estimated faff ir value of $184 million. The impairment charge, which is included
within “Depreciation and amortization” in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and recorded within the TV
MeMM dia segment, was the result of a higher discount rate utilized in our annual impairment tests, reflff ecting the
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impacts of market volatility and higher interest rates. Additionally, the estimated faff ir values of FCC licenses in
the three remaining markets, which had an aggregate carryirr ng value of $787 million, were each within 10% of
their respective carryirr ng values.

In the fourff th quarter of 2022, as a result of a management reorganization, the reporting units within our TV MeMM dia
segment changed frff om three to two reporting units. Accordingly, we reallocated goodwill using a relative faff ir
value appra oach and perforff med furff ther qualitative goodwill impairment assessments on the two reporting units
subsequent to the reallocation of goodwill, and concluded that the faff ir values of these reporting units continued to
exceed their respective carryirr ng values.

In the fiff rst quarter of 2022, in connection with changes to our management strucrr turt e and the resulting change in
operating segments, we reassessed our reporting units and reallocated goodwill frff om the fourff reporting units in
place prior to the realignment to six reporting units, using a relative faff ir value appra oach. We perforff med goodwill
impairment tests as of Januaryrr 1, 2022 on the reporting units in place beforff e and aftff er the change and concluded
that the faff ir values of these reporting units continued to exceed their respective carryirr ng values with signififf cant
estimated headroom and, thereforff e, no impairment charge was required.

The folff lowing tabla es present the changes in the book value of goodwill by segment forff the years ended December
31, 2022 and 2021.

Balance at Acquisitions / Foreign Balance at
December 31, 2021 (Dispositions) Currency December 31, 2022

TV Media:
Goodwill $ 24,590 $ — $ (85) $ 24,505
Accumulated impairment losses (13,354) — — (13,354)
Goodwill, net of impairment 11,236 — (85) 11,151
Direct-to-Consumer
Goodwill 2,728 — — 2,728
Accumulated impairment losses — — — —
Goodwill, net of impairment 2,728 — — 2,728
Filmed Entertainment:
Goodwill 2,620 — — 2,620
Accumulated impairment losses — — — —
Goodwill, net of impairment 2,620 — — 2,620
Total:
Goodwill 29,938 — (85) 29,853
Accumulated impairment losses (13,354) — — (13,354)
Goodwill, net of impairment $ 16,584 $ — $ (85) $ 16,499
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Balance at Acquisitions / Foreign Balance at
December 31, 2020 (Dispositions) Currency December 31, 2021

TV Media:
Goodwill $ 24,618 $ 16 $ (44) $ 24,590
Accumulated impairment losses (13,354) — — (13,354)
Goodwill, net of impairment 11,264 16 (44) 11,236
Direct-to-Consumer:
Goodwill 2,728 — — 2,728
Accumulated impairment losses — — — —
Goodwill, net of impairment 2,728 — — 2,728
Filmed Entertainment:
Goodwill 2,620 — — 2,620
Accumulated impairment losses — — — —
Goodwill, net of impairment 2,620 — — 2,620
Total:
Goodwill 29,966 16 (44) 29,938
Accumulated impairment losses (13,354) — — (13,354)
Goodwill, net of impairment $ 16,612 $ 16 $ (44) $ 16,584

Our intangible assets were as folff lows:

Accumulated
At December 31, 2022 Gross Amortization Net
Intangible assets subject to amortization:
Trade names $ 252 $ (153) $ 99
Licenses 128 (55) 73
Customer agreements 123 (101) 22
Other intangible assets 234 (181) 53
Total intangible assets subject to amortization 737 (490) 247
FCC licenses 2,389 — 2,389
International broadcast licenses 24 — 24
Other intangible assets 34 — 34
Total intangible assets $ 3,184 $ (490) $ 2,694
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Accumulated
At December 31, 2021 Gross Amortization Net
Intangible assets subject to amortization:
Trade names $ 257 $ (140) $ 117
Licenses 140 (53) 87
Customer agreements 124 (98) 26
Other intangible assets 237 (170) 67
Total intangible assets subject to amortization 758 (461) 297
FCC licenses 2,416 — 2,416
International broadcast licenses 25 — 25
Other intangible assets 34 — 34
Total intangible assets $ 3,233 $ (461) $ 2,772

Amortization expense was as folff lows:

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Amortization expense (a) $ 68 $ 46 $ 85

(a) For 2022 and 2020, amortization expense includes impairment charges of $27 million and $25 million,
respectively, to write down the carryir ng value of FCC licenses, which were recorded within the TV MeMM dia
segment.

We expect our aggregate annual amortization expense forff existing intangible assets subject to amortization forff
each of the years, 2023 through 2027, to be as folff lows:

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
Futurt e amortization expense $ 38 $ 29 $ 25 $ 24 $ 23

7) RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CORPORAR TE MATTERS

During the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, we recorded the folff lowing costs associated with
restrucrr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Severance (a) $ 260 $ 65 $ 472
Lease impairments and other exit costs 68 35 70
Restrucrr turt ing charges 328 100 542
Merger-related costs — — 56
Other corporr ate matters 257 — 20
Restrucrr turt ing and other corporr ate matters $ 585 $ 100 $ 618

(a) Severance costs include the accelerated vesting of stock-based compensation.

Restructuring CharCC ger s

Since the Merger, we have implemented a series of initiatives designed to integrate and transforff m our operations,
including changes in our management strucrr turt e, some of which resulted in changes to our operating segments (see
Note 1). These initiatives led to restrucrr turt ing actions, and as a result, we recorded restrucrr turt ing charges of $260
million, $65 million, and $472 million during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
forff severance associated with the elimination of positions and changes in management. In 2022, the actions giving
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rise to the restrucrr turt ing charges are primarily associated with our segment realignment, our plan to integrate
Showtime into Paramount+ across both streaming and linear platforff ms, and restrucrr turt ing of our international
operations. In addition, since the Merger we have been consolidating our real estate portfolff io to reduce our real
estate footff prt int and create cost synergies. In connection with this consolidation, we identififf ed lease assets that we
determined we would not use and instead sublease or terminate early, which resulted in lease impairment charges
of $68 million, $35 million, and $42 million forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
For the lease assets that we plan to sublease, the impairment charges were the result of a decline in market
conditions since the inception of these leases and reflff ect the diffff eff rence between the estimated faff ir values, which
were determined based on the expected discounted futff urt e cash flff ows of the lease assets, and the carryirr ng values.
For the year ended December 31, 2020, we also recorded other exit costs of $28 million resulting frff om the
termination of contractuat l obligations.

The folff lowing is a rollforff ward of our restrucrr turt ing liabia lity, which is recorded in “Other current liabia lities” and
“Other liabia lities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The maja ority of the restrucrr turt ing liabia lity at December 31,
2022, which primarily relates to severance payments, is expected to be paid by the end of 2023.

2022 Activity
Balance at

December 31, 2021 Charges (a) Payments
Balance at

December 31, 2022
TV Media $ 122 $ 221 $ (92) $ 251
Direct-to-Consumer — 8 — 8
Filmed Entertainment 34 17 (22) 29
Corporrr ate 34 — (20) 14
Total $ 190 $ 246 $ (134) $ 302

2021 Activity
Balance at

December 31, 2020 Charges (a) Payments
Balance at

December 31, 2021
TV Media $ 256 $ 21 $ (155) $ 122
Filmed Entertainment 30 23 (19) 34
Corporrr ate 86 1 (53) 34
Total $ 372 $ 45 $ (227) $ 190

(a) For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, excludes stock-based compensation expense of $14 million and $20
million, respectively, and lease asset impairments of $68 million and $35 million, respectively.

Other CorCC porr ate MatMM tersrr

In 2022, in addition to the abovea -mentioned restrucrr turt ing charges, we recorded charges forff other corporrr ate
matters of $257 million, consisting of $211 million associated with litigation described under Legale MatMM tersrr —
Stockholkk der MatMM tersrr in Note 20 and $46 million recorded folff lowing RusRR sia’s invasion of Ukraine in the fiff rst
quarter of 2022, principally to reserve against amounts due frff om counterparr rties in RusRR sia, Belarusrr and Ukraine.

In 2020, in addition to the abovea -mentioned restrucrr turt ing charges, we incurred costs of $56 million in connection
with the Merger, consisting of profeff ssional feff es mainly associated with integration activities, as well as
transaction-related bonuses. We also incurred costs of $5 million forff profeff ssional feff es associated with dispositions
and other corporrr ate matters, and we recorded a charge of $15 million to write down property and equipment,
which was classififf ed as held forff sale in 2020, to its faff ir value less costs to sell.
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8) RELATED PARTIES

NatNN ional Amusementstt , IncII .

National Amusements, Inc. (“NAI”) is the controlling stockholder of the Company. At December 31, 2022, NAI
directly or indirectly owned appra oximately 77.4% of our voting Class A Common Stock and appra oximately 9.8%
of our Class A Common Stock and non-voting Class B Common Stock on a combined basis. NAI is controlled by
the Sumner M. Redstone National Amusements Part B General Trusrr t (the “General Trusrr t”), which owns 80% of
the voting interest of NAI and acts by maja ority vote of seven voting trusrr tees (subject to certain exceptions),
including with respect to the NAI shares held by the General Trusrr t. Shari E. Redstone, Chairperr rson, CEO and
President of NAI and non-executive Chair of our Board of Directors, is one of the seven voting trusrr tees forff the
General Trusrr t and is one of two voting trusrr tees who are benefiff ciaries of the General Trurr st. No member of our
management or other member of our Board of Directors is a trusrr tee of the General Trusrr t.

Other Related Parties

In the ordinaryrr course of business, we are involved in transactions with our equity-method investees, primarily forff
the licensing of television and fiff lm programming. The folff lowing tabla es present the amounts recorded in our
consolidated fiff nancial statements related to these transactions.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 (a) 2021 2020
Revenues $ 358 $ 237 $ 106
Operating expenses $ 24 $ 21 $ 13

At December 31, 2022 (a) 2021
Accounts receivabla e $ 198 $ 50

(a) Revenues forff the year ended December 31, 2022 and accounts receivabla e at December 31, 2022 include amounts
related to SkyShowtime.

Through the normal course of business, we are involved in other transactions with related parties that have not
been material in any of the periods presented.

9) REVENUES

The tabla e below presents our revenues disaggregated into categories based on the naturt e of such revenues. See
Note 19 forff revenues by segment disaggregated into these categories.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Revenues by Type:
Advertising $ 10,890 $ 11,412 $ 9,751
Affff iff liate and subscription 11,551 10,442 9,166
Theatrical 1,223 241 180
Licensing and other 6,490 6,491 6,188
Total Revenues $ 30,154 $ 28,586 $ 25,285
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Receivables

Included in “Other assets” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are noncurrent receivabla es of $1.61 billion and
$1.84 billion at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Noncurrent receivabla es primarily relate to revenues
recognized under long-term content licensing arrangements. Revenues frff om the licensing of content are
recognized at the beginning of the license period in which programs are made availabla e to the licensee forff
exhibition, while the related cash is generally collected over the term of the license period.

Our receivabla es do not represent signififf cant concentrations of credit risk at December 31, 2022 or 2021, due to the
wide variety of customers, markets and geographia c areas to which our products and services are sold.

ContCC ract Liabilities

Contract liabia lities are included within “Defeff rred revenues” and “Other liabia lities” on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and were $1.06 billion, $1.20 billion and $1.12 billion at December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
We recognized revenues of $0.9 billion forff each of the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 and $0.6 billion
forff the year ended December 31, 2020 that were included in the opening balance of defeff rred revenues forff the
respective year.

UnrUU ecognizii ed Revenues UndeUU r ContCC ract

At December 31, 2022, unrecognized revenues attributabla e to unsatisfiff ed perforff mance obligations under our long-
term contracts were appra oximately $9 billion, of which $4 billion is expected to be recognized in 2023, $2 billion
in 2024, $1 billion in 2025, and $2 billion thereaftff er. These amounts only include contracts subject to a
guaranteed fiff xed amount or the guaranteed minimum under variabla e contracts, primarily consisting of television
and fiff lm licensing contracts and affff iff liate agreements that are subject to a fiff xed or guaranteed minimum feff e. Such
amounts change on a regular basis as we renew existing agreements or enter into new agreements. Unrecognized
revenues under contracts disclosed abovea do not include (i) contracts with an original expected term of one year
or less, mainly consisting of advertising contracts (ii) contracts forff which variabla e consideration is determined
based on the customer’s subsequent sale or usage, mainly consisting of affff iff liate agreements and (iii) long-term
licensing agreements forff multiple programs forff which variabla e consideration is determined based on the value of
the programs delivered to the customer and our right to invoice corresponds with the value delivered.

Perfr orff mance Obligati ions Satisii fs iff ed in Previous Periods

Under certain licensing arrangements, the amount and timing of our revenue recognition is determined based on
our licensees’ subsequent sale to its end customers. As a result, under such arrangements, we oftff en satisfyff our
perforff mance obligation of deliveryrr of our content in advance of revenue recognition. We recognized revenues of
$0.4 billion forff each of the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, frff om arrangements forff the licensing
of our content, including frff om distributors of transactional video-on-demand and electronic sell-through services
and other licensing arrangement, as well as frff om the theatrical distribution of our fiff lms, forff which our
perforff mance obligation was satisfiff ed in a prior period.

PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Tabular dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

II-76



10) DEBT

Our debt consists of the folff lowing:

At December 31, 2022 2021
7.875% Debenturt es due 2023 $ 139 $ 139
7.125% Senior Notes due 2023 35 35
3.875% Senior Notes due 2024 — 490
3.70% Senior Notes due 2024 — 599
3.50% Senior Notes due 2025 — 597
4.75% Senior Notes due 2025 552 1,242
4.0% Senior Notes due 2026 795 793
3.45% Senior Notes due 2026 124 123
2.90% Senior Notes due 2027 694 692
3.375% Senior Notes due 2028 496 496
3.70% Senior Notes due 2028 494 493
4.20% Senior Notes due 2029 495 494
7.875% Senior Debenturt es due 2030 830 830
4.95% Senior Notes due 2031 1,226 1,223
4.20% Senior Notes due 2032 975 972
5.50% Senior Debenturt es due 2033 427 427
4.85% Senior Debenturt es due 2034 87 87
6.875% Senior Debenturt es due 2036 1,071 1,070
6.75% Senior Debenturt es due 2037 75 75
5.90% Senior Notes due 2040 298 298
4.50% Senior Debenturt es due 2042 45 45
4.85% Senior Notes due 2042 488 488
4.375% Senior Debenturt es due 2043 1,130 1,123
4.875% Senior Debenturt es due 2043 18 18
5.85% Senior Debenturt es due 2043 1,233 1,233
5.25% Senior Debenturt es due 2044 345 345
4.90% Senior Notes due 2044 541 540
4.60% Senior Notes due 2045 590 590
4.95% Senior Notes due 2050 946 944
5.875% Junior Subordinated Debenturt es due 2057 — 514
6.25% Junior Subordinated Debenturt es due 2057 643 643
6.375% Junior Subordinated Debenturt es due 2062 989 —
Other bank borrowings 55 35
Obligations under fiff nance leases 10 16
Total debt (a) 15,846 17,709
Less current portion of long-term debt 239 11

Total long-term debt, net of current portion $ 15,607 $ 17,698

( )( )

(a) At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the senior and junior subordinated debt balances included (i) a net unamortized discount
of $442 million and $466 million, respectively, and (ii) unamortized defeff rred fiff nancing costs of $89 million and $95 million,
respectively. The faff ce value of our total debt was $16.38 billion at December 31, 2022 and $18.27 billion at December 31,
2021.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, we redeemed senior notes totaling $2.39 billion, prior to maturt ity, forff
an aggregate redemption price of $2.49 billion and redeemed, at par, our $520 million of 5.875% junior
subordinated debenturt es due Februarr ryrr 2057. These redemptions resulted in a total pre-tax loss on extinguishment
of debt of $120 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, we issued $1.00 billion of 6.375% junior subordinated debenturt es due
2062. The interest rate on these debenturt es will reset on March 30, 2027, and everyrr fiff ve years thereaftff er to a fiff xed
rate equal to the 5-year Treasuryrr Rate (as defiff ned pursuant to the terms of the debenturt es) plus a spread of 3.999%
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frff om March 30, 2027, 4.249% frff om March 30, 2032 and 4.999% frff om March 30, 2047. These debenturt es can be
called by us at par plus a make whole premium any time beforff e March 30, 2027, or at par on March 30, 2027 or
on any interest payment date thereaftff er.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, we redeemed senior notes totaling $1.99 billion, prior to maturt ity, forff
an aggregate redemption price of $2.11 billion resulting in a pre-tax loss on extinguishment of debt of $128
million.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, we issued $4.50 billion of senior notes and redeemed long-term debt
totaling $2.77 billion, prior to maturt ity, forff an aggregate redemption price of $2.88 billion resulting in a pre-tax
loss on extinguishment of debt of $126 million.

Our 6.25% junior subordinated debenturt es due Februarr ryrr 2057 accruerr interest at the stated fiff xed rate until
Februarr ryrr 28, 2027, on which date the rate will switch to a flff oating rate. Under the terms of the debenturt es the
flff oating rate is based on three-month LIBOR plus 3.899%, reset quarterly, however, with the phasing out of
LIBOR and the passage of the Adjustabla e Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act, signed into law on March 15, 2022, it is
expected that the 6.25% junior subordinated debenturt es due 2057 will, upon switching to a flff oating rate, bear
interest at a replacement rate based on three-month CME Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR). These
debenturt es can be called by us at par at any time aftff er the expiration of the fiff xed-rate period.

The interest rate payabla e on our 3.45% senior notes due October 2026, will be subject to adjustment frff om time to
time if Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. or S&P Global Ratings downgrades (or downgrades and subsequently
upgrades) the credit rating assigned to these senior notes. The interest rate on these senior notes would increase by
0.25% upon each credit agency downgrade, up to a maximum of 2.00%, and would similarly be decreased forff
subsequent upgrades. At December 31, 2022, the outstanding principal amount of these senior notes was $124
million.

Some of our outstanding notes and debenturt es provide foff r certain covenant packages typical forff an investment
grade company. There is an acceleration trigger forff the maja ority of the notes and debenturt es in the event of a
change in control under specififf ed circumstances coupled with ratings downgrades due to the change in control, as
well as certain optional redemption provisions forff our junior debenturt es.

At December 31, 2022, our scheduled maturt ities of long-term debt at faff ce value, which excludes payments forff the
related interest and fiff nance leases, were as folff lows:

2028 and
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Thereaftff er

Long-term debt $ 174 $ — $ 555 $ 924 $ 700 $ 13,959

ComCC mercial PapePP r

At both December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had no outstanding commercial papea r borrowings.

CrCC editii FacFF ilii ill tii ytt

At December 31, 2022, we had a $3.50 billion revolving credit faff cility with a maturt ity in Januaryrr 2025 (the
“Credit Facility”). The Credit Facility is used forff general corporrr ate purposrr es and to support commercial papea r
borrowings, if any. We may, at our option, also borrow in certain forff eign currencies up to specififf ed limits under
the Credit Facility. Borrowing rates under the Credit Facility are determined at the time of each borrowing and are
generally based on either the prime rate in the U.S. or an appla icabla e benchmark rate plus a margin (based on our

PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Tabular dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

II-78



senior unsecured debt rating), depending on the type and tenor of the loans entered. The benchmark rate forff loans
denominated in euros, sterling and yen is based on EURIBOR, SONIA and TIBOR rates, respectively. The Credit
Facility has one principal fiff nancial covenant that requires our Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio to be less than
4.5x (which we may elect to increase to 5.0x forff up to fourff consecutive quarters folff lowing a qualififf ed acquisition)
at the end of each quarter. The Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio reflff ects the ratio of our Consolidated
Indebtedness at the end of a quarter, to our Consolidated EBITDA (each as defiff ned in the amended credit
agreement) forff the trailing twelve-month period. On Februarr ryrr 14, 2022, we amended our Credit Facility to modifyff
the defiff nition of the Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio in the amended credit agreement to allow unrestricted
cash and cash equivalents to be netted against Consolidated Indebtedness through June 2024. We met the
covenant as of December 31, 2022.

At December 31, 2022, we had no borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility and the remaining availabia lity
under the Credit Facility, net of outstanding letters of credit, was $3.50 billion.

Othtt er Bank Borrowinii gs

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had bank borrowings under Miramax’s $300 million credit faff cility, which
maturt es in April 2023, of $55 million and $35 million, respectively, with weighted average interest rates of 7.09%
and 3.50%, respectively.

11) LEASES

Lessee ContCC ractstt

We have operating leases primarily forff offff iff ce space, equipment, satellite transponders and studit o faff cilities. We
also have fiff nance leases forff equipment, which were not material forff the periods presented. Lease costs are
generally fiff xed, with certain contracts containing variabla e payments forff non-lease costs based on usage and
escalations in the lessors’ annual costs.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the folff lowing amounts were recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
relating to our operating leases.

2022 2021
Right-of-ff Use Assets
Operating lease assets $ 1,391 $ 1,630

Lease Liabilities
Other current liabia lities $ 292 $ 325
Operating lease liabia lities 1,428 1,598
Total lease liabilities $ 1,720 $ 1,923

2022 2021
Weighted average remaining lease term 7 years 8 years

Weighted average discount rate 3.6 % 3.4 %

PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Tabular dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

II-79



The folff lowing tabla e presents our lease cost relating to our operating leases.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Operating lease cost (a) (b) $ 373 $ 374 $ 379
Short-term lease cost (b) (c) 306 283 162
Variabla e lease cost (b) (d) 77 62 58
Sublease income (12) (20) (24)
Total lease cost $ 744 $ 699 $ 575

(a) Includes fiff xed lease costs and non-lease costs (consisting of other occupancy and service costs relating to
the use of an asset) associated with long-term operating leases.

(b) Includes costs capia talized in programming assets during the period forff leased assets used in the
production of programming.

(c) Short-term leases, which are not recorded in right-of-ff use assets and lease liabia lities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, have a term of 12 months or less and exclude month-to-month leases.

(d) Primarily includes non-lease costs (consisting of other occupancy and service costs relating to the use of
an asset) and costs forff equipment leases that varyrr based on usage.

The folff lowing tabla e presents supplemental cash flff ow inforff mation forff our operating leases.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Payments forff amounts included in operating lease
liabia lities (operating cash flff ows) $ 394 $ 399 $ 385

Noncash additions to operating lease assets $ 170 $ 377 $ 221

The expected futff urt e payments relating to our operating lease liabia lities at December 31, 2022 are as folff lows:

2023 $ 346
2024 294
2025 266
2026 227
2027 202
2028 and thereaftff er 654
Total minimum payments 1,989
Less amounts representing interest 269
Present value of minimum payments $ 1,720

As of December 31, 2022, we had no material leases that were executed but not yet commenced.

Lessor ContCC ractstt

For the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, we recorded total lease income of $65 million, $145
million and $133 million, respectively, which relates to operating leases of our owned production faff cilities and
offff iff ce buildings. Lease payments received under these agreements consist of fiff xed payments forff the rental of
space and certain building operating costs, as well as variabla e payments based on usage of production faff cilities
and services, and escalating costs of building operations. The lower lease income forff 2022 compared with prior
years is the result of the sales of a production faff cility and an offff iff ce building during the fourff th quarter of 2021 (see
Note 2). Accordingly, our futff urt e fiff xed lease income is not expected to be material.
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12) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carryirr ng value of our fiff nancial instrumrr ents appra oximates faff ir value, except forff notes and debenturt es. At
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carryirr ng value of our outstanding notes and debenturt es was $15.78 billion and
$17.66 billion, respectively, and the faff ir value, which is determined based on quoted prices in active markets
(Level 1 in the faff ir value hierarchy) was $13.9 billion and $21.5 billion, respectively.

InvII estmt entstt

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, included in “Other assets” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are equity-
method investments of $375 million and $568 million, respectively, and equity investments without a readily
determinabla e faff ir value forff which we have no signififf cant inflff uence of $70 million and $59 million, respectively.

Our equity-method investments include a 50% interest in SkyShowtime, a joint venturt e forff med in 2022, which
launched a new subscription streaming service in certain European territories, as well as interests in several
international television joint venturt es including a 49% interest in Viacom18, a joint venturt e in India. For the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, “Equity in loss of investee companies, net of tax” on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations included impairment charges of $34 million and $9 million, respectively, relating to
television joint venturt es.

During September 2022, we sold a 37.5% interest in The CW to Nexstar Media Inc. and received a noncash
distribution of $139 million, comprised of certain licensing receivabla es earned by The CW prior to the sale. This
transaction, which reduced our ownership in The CW to 12.5%, resulted in a loss of $4 million, which principally
consists of transaction costs. This loss, along with an impairment of an investment sold in the fourff th quarter of
2022 of $5 million, is recorded in “Net gains (losses) frff om investments” on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

For 2021, “Net gains frff om investments” of $47 million on the Consolidated Statement of Operations primarily
includes a gain of $37 million on the sale of an investment without a readily determinaba le faff ir value and a gain of
$9 million frff om an increase in the faff ir value of a marketabla e security, which was sold in the third quarter of 2021.
For 2020, “Net gains frff om investments” of $206 million reflff ects a gain of $213 million related to an increase in
the value of our investment in fuboTff V, Inc. which was sold in the fourff th quarter of 2020, partially offff sff et by an
impairment of investments without a readily determinabla e faff ir value of $7 million.

ForFF eigni ExEE change ContCC ractstt

We use derivative fiff nancial instrumrr ents primarily to manage our exposure to market risks frff om flff uctuat tions in
forff eign currency exchange rates. We do not use derivative instrumrr ents unless there is an underlying exposure and,
thereforff e, we do not hold or enter into derivative fiff nancial instrumrr ents forff speculative trading purposrr es.

Foreign exchange forff ward contracts have principally been used to hedge projected cash flff ows in currencies such
as the British Pound, the Euro, the Canadian Dollar and the Australian Dollar, generally forff periods up to 24
months. We designate forff eign exchange forff ward contracts used to hedge committed and forff ecasted forff eign
currency transactions as cash flff ow hedges. Additionally, we enter into non-designated forff ward contracts to hedge
non-U.S. dollar denominated cash flff ows.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the notional amount of all forff eign currency contracts was $3.06 billion and
$1.94 billion, respectively. For 2022, $2.40 billion related to futff urt e production costs and $655 million related to
our forff eign currency balances and other expected forff eign currency cash flff ows. For 2021, $1.38 billion related to
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futff urt e production costs and $564 million related to our forff eign currency balances and other expected forff eign
currency cash flff ows.

Gains recognized on derivative fiff nancial instrumrr ents were as folff lows:

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 Financial Statement Account
Non-designated forff eign exchange contracts $ 51 $ 14 Other items, net

We continually monitor our positions with, and credit quality of,ff the fiff nancial institutt ions that are counterparr rties
to our fiff nancial instrumrr ents. We are exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperforff mance by the counterparr rties to
the agreements. However, we do not anticipate nonperforff mance by the counterparr rties.

13) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The tabla e below presents our assets and liabia lities measured at faff ir value on a recurring basis at December 31,
2022 and 2021. These assets and liabia lities have been categorized according to the three-level faff ir value hierarchy
establa ished by the FASB, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring faff ir value. Level 1 is based on publicly
quoted prices forff the asset or liabia lity in active markets. Level 2 is based on inputs that are observabla e other than
quoted market prices in active markets, such as quoted prices forff the asset or liabia lity in inactive markets or
quoted prices forff similar assets or liabia lities. Level 3 is based on unobservabla e inputs reflff ecting our own
assumptions abouta the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liabia lity. All of our
assets and liabia lities that are measured at faff ir value on a recurring basis use Level 2 inputs. The faff ir value of
forff eign currency hedges is determined based on the present value of futff urt e cash flff ows using observabla e inputs
including forff eign currency exchange rates. The faff ir value of defeff rred compensation liabia lities is determined based
on the faff ir value of the investments elected by employees.

At December 31, 2022 2021
Assets:
Foreign currency hedges $ 39 $ 23
Total Assets $ 39 $ 23
Liabilities:
Defeff rred compensation $ 336 $ 435
Foreign currency hedges 83 29
Total Liabilities $ 419 $ 464

During the fourff th quarter 2022, we recorded an impairment charge of $27 million to write down the carryirr ng
values of FCC licenses in two markets to their estimated faff ir values, which were determined based on the
Greenfiff eld Discounted Cash Flow Method (Level 3). See Note 6.

14) VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

In the normal course of business, we enter into joint venturt es or make investments with business partners that
support our underlying business strategy and provide us the abia lity to enter new markets to expand the reach of
our brands, develop new programming and/or distribute our existing content. In certain instances, an entity in
which we make an investment may qualifyff as a VIE. In determining whether we are the primaryrr benefiff ciaryrr of a
VIE, we assess whether we have the power to direct matters that most signififf cantly impact the activities of the
VIE, and have the obligation to absa orbr losses or the right to receive benefiff ts frff om the VIE that could potentially
be signififf cant to the VIE.
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The folff lowing tabla es present the amounts recorded in our consolidated fiff nancial statements related to our
consolidated VIEs.

At December 31, 2022 2021
Total assets $ 1,961 $ 1,578

Total liabia lities $ 328 $ 184

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020 (a)

Revenues $ 524 $ 576 $ 705

Operating income (loss) $ (56) $ 43 $ 498

(a) The revenue and operating income include the licensing of the streaming rights to South Parkrr by a
consolidated 51%-owned VIE in 2020.

15) STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In general, the Company’s Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock have the same economic rights;
however, holders of the Company’s Class B Common Stock do not have any voting rights, except as required by
law. Holders of the Company’s Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share with respect to all
matters on which the holders of the Company’s Common Stock are entitled to vote.

Stock OfO fff eff rings

On March 26, 2021, we completed offff eff rings of 20 million shares of our Class B Common Stock at a price to the
public of $85 per share and 10 million shares of 5.75% Series A Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock at a price
to the public and liquidation prefeff rence of $100 per share. The net proceeds frff om the Class B Common Stock
offff eff ring and the Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock offff eff ring were appra oximately $1.67 billion and $983
million, respectively, in each case aftff er deducting underwriting discounts, commissions and estimated offff eff ring
expenses. As of December 31, 2022, the Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock had an aggregate liquidation
prefeff rence of $1 billion.

MandatMM oryr ConvCC ertible Prefe eff rred Stock

Unless earlier converted, each share of Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock will automatically and
mandatorily convert on the mandatoryrr conversion date, expected to be April 1, 2024, into between 1.0013 and
1.1765 shares of our Class B Common Stock, subject to customaryrr antidilution adjustments. The number of
shares of Class B Common Stock issuabla e upon conversion will be determined based on the average of the
volume-weighted average price per share of our Class B Common Stock over the 20 consecutive trading day
period commencing on, and including, the 21st scheduled trading day immediately preceding April 1, 2024.
Holders of the Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock (“Holders”) have the right to convert all or any portion of
their shares of Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock at any time prior to April 1, 2024 at the minimum
conversion rate of 1.0013 shares of our Class B Common Stock. In addition, the conversion rate appla icabla e to
such an early conversion may, in certain circumstances, be increased to compensate Holders forff certain unpaid
accumulated dividends. However, if a fundaff mental change (as defiff ned in the Certififf cate of Designations
governing the Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock) occurs on or prior to April 1, 2024, then Holders will, in
certain circumstances, be entitled to convert all or a portion of their shares of Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred
Stock at an increased conversion rate forff a specififf ed period of time and receive an amount to compensate them forff
unpaid accumulated dividends and any remaining futff urt e scheduled dividend payments. In 2022, conversions of
Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock into Class B Common Stock were minimal.
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The Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock is not redeemabla e. However, at our option, we may purchase or
otherwise acquire (including in an exchange transaction) the Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock frff om time to
time in the open market, by tender or exchange offff eff r or otherwise, without the consent of,ff or notice to, Holders.
Holders have no voting rights, with certain exceptions.

If declared, dividends on the Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock are payabla e quarterly through April 1, 2024.
Dividends on the Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock accumulate frff om the most recent dividend payment
date, and will be payabla e on a cumulative basis when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors, or an
authorized committee thereof,ff at an annual rate of 5.75% of the liquidation prefeff rence of $100 per share, payabla e
in cash or, subject to certain limitations, by deliveryrr of shares of Class B Common Stock or through any
combination of cash and shares of Class B Common Stock, at our election. If we have not declared any portion of
the accumulated and unpaid dividends by April 1, 2024, the conversion rate will be adjusted so that Holders
receive an additional number of shares of our Class B Common Stock, with certain limitations.

Dividends

We declared a quarterly cash dividend on our Class A and Class B Common Stock during each of the quarters of
2022, 2021, and 2020. During each of the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, we declared total per
share dividends of $.96, resulting in total annual dividends of $635 million, $625 million and $601 million,
respectively.

During each of the quarters of 2022, we declared a quarterly cash dividend of $1.4375 per share on our
Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock, resulting in total annual dividends of $58 million forff the year ended
December 31, 2022. For the year ended December 31, 2021, we recorded total annual dividends on our
Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock of $44 million. During each of the third and fourff th quarters of 2021, we
declared a quarterly cash dividend on our Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock of 1.4375 per share. During the
second quarter of 2021, we declared a quarterly cash dividend on our Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock of
$1.5493 per share, representing a dividend period frff om March 26, 2021 through July 1, 2021.

TrTT easuryr Stock

At December 31, 2022, we had $2.36 billion of authorization remaining under our share repurchase program.
During 2022, we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock. During 2020, we repurchased 1.3 million
shares of our Class B Common Stock under our share repurchase program forff $50 million, at an average cost of
$38.63 per share.

ComCC mon Stock ConvCC ersrr ion Righti stt

Holders of Class A Common Stock have the right to convert their shares to Class B Common Stock as long as
there are at least 5,000 shares of Class A Common Stock outstanding. In 2022 and 2020, conversions of Class A
Common Stock into Class B Common Stock were minimal. In 2021, conversions of Class A Common Stock into
Class B Common Stock were 11.6 million.
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Accumulated Other ComCC prm ehensive IncII ome (L(( oss)s

The folff lowing tabla e presents the changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Continuing Operations
Discontinued
Operations

Net Actuarial Accumulated
Cumulative Loss and Other Other
Translation Prior Comprehensive Comprehensive
Adjd ustments Service Cost Income (Loss) (a) Loss

At December 31, 2019 $ (438) $ (1,507) $ (25) $ (1,970)
Other comprehensive income (loss) beforff e reclassififf cations 135 (74) 5 66
Reclassififf cations to net earnings — 72 (b) — 72
Other comprehensive income (loss) 135 (2) 5 138
At December 31, 2020 (303) (1,509) (20) (1,832)
Other comprehensive income (loss) beforff e reclassififf cations (142) 5 (3) (140)
Reclassififf cations to net earnings — 70 (b) — 70
Other comprehensive income (loss) (142) 75 (3) (70)
At December 31, 2021 (445) (1,434) (23) (1,902)
Other comprehensive income (loss) beforff e reclassififf cations (235) 273 (7) 31
Reclassififf cations to net earnings — 64 (b) — 64
Other comprehensive income (loss) (235) 337 (7) 95

At December 31, 2022 $ (680) $ (1,097) $ (30) $ (1,807)

(a) Reflff ects cumulative translation adjustments.
(b) Reflff ects amortization of net actuat rial losses, which forff 2021 includes the accelerated recognition of a portion of the unamortized
actuat rial losses due to the volume of lump sum benefiff t payments in one of our pension plans, and amortization of prior service cost
(see Note 18).

The net actuat rial loss and prior service cost related to pension and other postretirement benefiff t plans included in
other comprehensive income (loss) is net of a tax benefiff t forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and
2020 of $108 million, $25 million and $1 million, respectively.

16) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We have long-term equity-based incentive plans (the “Plans”) under which stock options, RSUs and PSUs are
issued. The purposrr e of the Plans is to benefiff t and advance the interests of our company by attracting, retaining and
motivating participants and to compensate participants forff their contributions to the fiff nancial success of our
company. The Plans provide forff awards of stock options, stock appra eciation rights, restricted and unrestricted
shares, RSUs, dividend equivalents, perforff mance awards and other equity-related awards. RSUs and PSUs accruerr
dividends each time we declare a quarterly cash dividend, which are paid upon vesting when the shares are
delivered and are forff feff ited if the award does not vest. Upon exercise of stock options or vesting of RSUs and
PSUs, we issue new shares frff om our existing authorization. At December 31, 2022, there were 32 million shares
availabla e forff futff urt e grant under the Plans. Stock-based compensation awards were also granted under Viacom’s
equity incentive plans until December 31, 2021. Upon exercise of outstanding stock options or vesting of RSUs
and PSUs previously granted under Viacom’s equity incentive plans, shares may be issued frff om Viacom’s
previous authorization or frff om treasuryrr stock.
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The folff lowing tabla e summarizes stock-based compensation expense forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021
and 2020.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
RSUs and PSUs $ 155 $ 163 $ 167
Stock options 3 9 19
Expense included in operating and SG&A 158 172 186
Expense included in restrucr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters (a) 14 20 88
Stock-based compensation expense, beforff e income taxes 172 192 274
Related tax benefiff t (35) (41) (54)
Stock-based compensation expense, net of tax benefiff t $ 137 $ 151 $ 220

(a) Reflff ects accelerations as a result of restrucrr turt ing activities.

Included in net earnings frff om discontinued operations was stock-based compensation expense of $3 million forff
each of the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 and $10 million forff the year ended December 31, 2020.

RSUsUU and PSUPP sUU

Compensation expense forff RSUs is determined based upon the market price of the shares underlying the awards
on the date of grant and expensed over the vesting period, which is generally a one- to fourff -year service period.
Forfeff iturt es forff RSUs are estimated on the date of grant based on historical forff feff iturt e rates and adjusted based on
actuat l forff feff iturt es. On an annual basis, we revise the estimated forff feff iturt e rate, as necessary.rr

For PSU awards the number of shares to be issued upon vesting is based on the total shareholder returt n of the
Company’s Class B Common Stock measured against the companies comprising the S&P 500 Index over a
designated measurement period, and forff certain 2022 and 2021 awards is also based on the achievement of
establa ished operating goals. The faff ir value of PSU awards with a market condition is determined using a Monte
Carlo simulation model, and is expensed over the required employee service period. Compensation expense forff
PSUs is not adjusted forff the actuat l number of shares issued based on the outcome of the market condition forff
completed perforff mance periods. The faff ir value of PSU awards with internal perforff mance conditions is based on
the market price of the shares on the date of grant, and is expensed based on the probabla e outcome of internal
perforff mance metrics and subsequently adjusted to reflff ect the actuat l shares issued based on the outcome of the
perforff mance metrics forff completed perforff mance periods. Compensation expense is adjusted forff non-perforff mance
based forff feff iturt es forff all PSU awards. The faff ir value of PSU awards granted during the years ended December 31,
2022, 2021 and 2020 was $43 million, $3 million and $34 million, respectively.

The weighted average grant date faff ir value of RSUs and PSUs granted was $31.58, $35.80 and $32.35 in 2022,
2021, and 2020, respectively. The total market value of RSUs and PSUs that vested during 2022, 2021, and 2020
was $77 million, $260 million and $222 million, respectively. Total unrecognized compensation cost related to
non-vested RSUs and PSUs at December 31, 2022 was $244 million, which is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 2.46 years.
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The folff lowing tabla e summarizes our RSU and PSU share activity:

Weighted Average
Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Non-vested at December 31, 2021 7,730,664 $ 37.14
Granted 7,494,771 $ 31.58
Vested (3,206,135) $ 39.32
Forfeff ited (903,929) $ 33.90
Non-vested at December 31, 2022 11,115,371 $ 33.02

Stock OptO ions

Compensation expense forff stock options is determined based on the grant date faff ir value of the award calculated
using the Black-Scholes options-pricing model. Stock options generally vest over a three- to fourff -year service
period and expire eight years frff om the date of grant. Forfeff iturt es are estimated on the date of grant based on
historical forff feff iturt e rates. We adjust the compensation expense based on actuat l forff feff iturt es.

There were no stock option grants during any of the periods presented.

At December 31, 2022, all stock options are vested and there is no remaining unrecognized compensation cost.

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes our stock option activity under the Plans.

Weighted Average
Stock Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2021 6,202,575 $ 63.85
Forfeff ited or expired (1,105,628) $ 80.76
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 5,096,947 $ 60.18

Exercisable at December 31, 2022 5,096,947 $ 60.18

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes other inforff mation relating to stock option exercises during the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020. There were no stock option exercises during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020
Cash received frff om stock option exercises $ 408 $ 5
Tax benefiff t of stock option exercises $ 29 $ 1
Intrinsic value of stock option exercises $ 128 $ 2

At December 31, 2022, stock options outstanding and exercisabla e have a weighted average remaining contractuat l
lifeff of 2.06 years. There was no intrinsic value forff options outstanding and exercisabla e, based on our closing stock
price of $16.88 at December 31, 2022.
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17) INCOME TAXES

The U.S. and forff eign components of earnings frff om continuing operations beforff e income taxes and equity in loss
of investee companies were as folff lows:

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
United States $ 324 $ 4,106 $ 2,353
Foreign 942 1,100 794
Total $ 1,266 $ 5,206 $ 3,147

The components of the provision (benefiff t) forff income taxes were as folff lows:

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Current:
Federal $ 75 $ 179 $ 160
State and local 64 138 73
Foreign 194 239 180
Total current 333 556 413
Defeff rred:
Federal (57) 249 146
State and local (14) 49 42
Foreign (35) (208) (66)
Total defeff rred (106) 90 122
Provision forff income taxes $ 227 $ 646 $ 535

In addition, included in net earnings frff om discontinued operations was an income tax provision of $77 million,
$57 million and $38 million forff 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively.

The equity in loss of investee companies is shown net of tax on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The
tax benefiff t relating to losses frff om equity investments was $33 million in 2022, $49 million in 2021 and $19
million in 2020, which represented an effff eff ctive tax rate of 13.9%, 35.0% and 40.4% forff 2022, 2021, and 2020,
respectively.
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The diffff eff rence between income taxes expected at the U.S. feff deral statutt oryrr income tax rate of 21% and the
provision (benefiff t) forff income taxes is summarized as folff lows:

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Taxes on income at U.S. feff deral statutt oryrr rate $ 266 $ 1,093 $ 661
State and local taxes, net of feff deral tax benefiff t 44 190 116
Effff eff ct of forff eign operations (20) (141) (98)
Noncontrolling interests (20) (13) (52)
U.K. statutt oryrr rate change — (260) (100)
Reorganization of forff eign operations (a) (72) (229) —
Excess tax (benefiff t) defiff ciency frff om stock-based
compensation 13 (8) 29

Other, net 16 14 (21)
Provision forff income taxes $ 227 $ 646 $ 535

(a) For 2022, reflff ects a defeff rred tax benefiff t resulting frff om the transfeff r of intangible assets between our subsidiaries in
connection with a reorganization of our international operations. The related defeff rred tax asset is primarily expected
to be realized over a 25-year period. For 2021, reflff ects a tax benefiff t frff om the recognition of a capia tal loss associated
with a change in the tax entity classififf cation of a forff eign subsidiary.r

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the components of defeff rred income tax assets and liabia lities.

At December 31, 2022 2021
Defeff rred income tax assets:
Reserves and other accruerr d liabia lities $ 430 $ 369
Pension, postretirement and other employee benefiff ts 534 679
Lease liabia lity 425 465
Tax credit and loss carryfrr orff wards 397 428
Interest limitation carryfrr orff ward 93 —
Capia talized costs 49 —
Other 11 23
Total defeff rred income tax assets 1,939 1,964
Valuation allowance (488) (581)
Defeff rred income tax assets, net 1,451 1,383
Defeff rred income tax liabia lities:
Intangible assets (643) (523)
Unbilled licensing receivabla es — (76)
Lease asset (344) (391)
Property, equipment and other assets (180) (171)
Financing obligations (69) (65)
Other (50) (14)
Total defeff rred income tax liabia lities (1,286) (1,240)
Defeff rred income tax assets, net $ 165 $ 143

In addition to the amounts reflff ected in the tabla e abovea , included in “Assets of discontinued operations” on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets are net defeff rred income tax assets of $55 million and $80 million at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

At December 31, 2022, we had defeff rred income tax assets forff feff deral forff eign tax credit carryfrr orff wards of $43
million and net operating loss carryfrr orff wards forff feff deral, state and local, and forff eign jurisdictions of $261 million,
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the maja ority of which expire in various years frff om 2023 through 2038. The defeff rred tax asset forff the feff deral
interest limitation carryfrr orff ward of $93 million at December 31, 2022 has an indefiff nite carryfrr orff ward period.

The 2022 and 2021 defeff rred income tax assets were reduced by a valuation allowance of $488 million and $581
million, respectively, principally relating to income tax benefiff ts frff om capia tal losses and net operating losses in
forff eign jurisdictions which are not expected to be realized.

Generally, the futff urt e remittance of forff eign undistributed earnings will not be subject to U.S. feff deral income taxes
and as a result, forff substantially all of our forff eign subsidiaries, we do not intend to assert indefiff nite reinvestment
of both cash held outside of the U.S. and futff urt e cash earnings. However, a futff urt e repatriation of cash could be
subject to state and local income taxes, forff eign income taxes, tax on forff eign currency translation gains and losses,
and withholding taxes. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2022, we recorded defeff rred income tax liabia lities
associated with futff urt e repatriations of $13 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Additional income taxes
have not been provided forff outside basis diffff eff rences inherent in these entities, which could be recognized upon
sale or other transaction, as these amounts continue to be indefiff nitely invested in forff eign operations. The
determination of the U.S. feff deral defeff rred income tax liabia lity forff such outside basis diffff eff rence is not practicabla e.

The folff lowing tabla e sets forff th the change in the reserve forff uncertain tax positions, excluding related accruerr d
interest and penalties.

At January 1, 2020 $ 384
Additions forff current year tax positions 15
Additions forff prior year tax positions 18
Reductions forff prior year tax positions (34)
Cash settlements (2)
Statutt e of limitations lapsa es (9)
Reclassififf cation to defeff rred income tax liabia lity (64)
At December 31, 2020 308
Additions forff current year tax positions 23
Additions forff prior year tax positions 32
Reductions forff prior year tax positions (45)
Cash settlements (6)
Statutt e of limitations lapsa es (11)
At December 31, 2021 301
Additions forff current year tax positions 16
Additions forff prior year tax positions 3
Reductions forff prior year tax positions (13)
Cash settlements (2)
Statutt e of limitations lapsa es (2)
At December 31, 2022 $ 303

The reserve forff uncertain tax positions of $303 million at December 31, 2022 includes $272 million which would
affff eff ct our effff eff ctive income tax rate, including discontinued operations, if and when recognized in futff urt e years.
We recognized interest and penalties of $14 million forff each of the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 and
$16 million forff the year ended December 31, 2020 in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December
31, 2022 and 2021, we have recorded liabia lities forff accruerr d interest and penalties of $67 million and $56 million,
respectively, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Viacom and CBS fiff led separate tax returt ns forff periods prior to the Merger. For CBS, we are currently under
examination by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) foff r the 2017 and 2018 tax years. For Viacom, we are
currently under examination by the IRS forff the 2016 through 2019 tax years. For tax returt ns fiff led as a merged
company, we are currently under examination by the IRS forff the 2019 tax year. Various tax years are also
currently under examination by state and local and forff eign tax authorities. With respect to open tax years in all
jurisdictions, we currently do not believe that it is reasonabla y possible that the reserve forff uncertain tax positions
will signififf cantly change within the next 12 months; however, it is diffff iff cult to predict the fiff nal outcome or timing
of resolution of any particular tax matter and events could cause our current expectation to change in the futff urt e.

18) PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries sponsor qualififf ed and non-qualififf ed defiff ned benefiff t pension plans,
principally non-contributory,rr covering eligible employees. Our pension plans consist of both fundeff d and unfundeff d
plans. The maja ority of participants in these plans are retired employees or forff mer employees of previously
divested businesses. In November 2020, our remaining defiff ned benefiff t pension plans subject to benefiff t accruarr ls,
which were sponsored by CBS prior to the Merger, were amended to frff eeze futff urt e benefiff t accruarr ls and benefiff ts
were enhanced under defiff ned contribution plans that were previously sponsored by CBS, both of which were
effff eff ctive Januaryrr 1, 2021. As a result of the pension plan amendments, a curtailment gain of $79 million
associated with the elimination of benefiff t accruarr ls forff futff urt e services of the impacted employees was reflff ected in
unrecognized actuat rial loss included within “Accumulated other comprehensive loss” on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet forff the year ended December 31, 2020. Plan benefiff ts are based primarily on an employee’s years
of service and pay forff each year that the employee participated in the plan. We fundff our pension plans in
accordance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”), the Pension Protection Act of
2006, the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and other appa licabla e law, rulrr es and regulations. Plan assets consist
principally of corporrr ate bonds, equity securities, common collective trusrr t fundsff , U.S. government securities and
short-term investments. The Company’s Common Stock represented appra oximately 1.2% and 1.5% of the faff ir
value of plan assets at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

In addition, the Company sponsors health and welfaff re plans that provide postretirement health care and lifeff
insurance benefiff ts to eligible retired employees and their covered dependents. Eligibility is based in part on
certain age and service requirements at the time of their retirement. Most of the plans are contributoryrr and contain
cost-sharing feff aturt es such as deductibles and coinsurance which are adjusted annually, as well as capsa on the
annual dollar amount we will contribute toward the cost of coverage. Claims and premiums forff which we are
responsible are paid with our own fundsff .

The pension plan disclosures herein include inforff mation related to our domestic pension and postretirement
benefiff t plans only, unless otherwise noted. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Consolidated Balance Sheets also
include a liabia lity of $45 million and $53 million, respectively, in “Pension and postretirement benefiff t
obligations” relating to our non-U.S. pension plans and certain other retirement severance plans.

We use a December 31 measurement date forff all pension and other postretirement benefiff t plans.
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The folff lowing tabla e sets forff th the change in benefiff t obligation forff our pension and postretirement benefiff t plans.

Pension Benefiff ts Postretirement Benefiff ts
2022 2021 2022 2021

Change in benefiff t obligation:
Benefiff t obligation, beginning of year $ 4,909 $ 5,162 $ 276 $ 322
Service cost — — 1 1
Interest cost 150 145 8 8
Actuat rial gain (1,089) (45) (29) (18)
Benefiff ts paid (309) (320) (43) (46)
Settlements paid — (33) — —
Participants’ contributions — — 6 5
Retiree Medicare drugr subsidy — — 3 4
Benefiff t obligation, end of year $ 3,661 $ 4,909 $ 222 $ 276

The actuat rial gain of $1.09 billion, included in the change in benefiff t obligation forff pension benefiff ts in 2022, was
driven by a 270 basis point increase in the discount rate frff om December 31, 2021 to December 31, 2022.

The folff lowing tabla e sets forff th the change in plan assets forff our pension and postretirement benefiff t plans.

Pension Benefiff ts Postretirement Benefiff ts
2022 2021 2022 2021

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 3,191 $ 3,347 $ — $ —
Actuat l (loss) returt n on plan assets (592) 116 — —
Employer contributions 73 81 34 37
Benefiff ts paid (309) (320) (43) (46)
Settlements paid — (33) — —
Participants’ contributions — — 6 5
Retiree Medicare drugr subsidy — — 3 4
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 2,363 $ 3,191 $ — $ —

The fundeff d statust of pension and postretirement benefiff t obligations and the related amounts recognized on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets were as folff lows:

Pension Benefiff ts Postretirement Benefiff ts
At December 31, 2022 2021 2022 2021
Funded statust at end of year $ (1,298) $ (1,718) $ (222) $ (276)
Amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Other assets $ — $ 7 $ — $ —
Current liabia lities (73) (73) (34) (35)
Noncurrent liabia lities (1,225) (1,652) (188) (241)
Net amounts recognized $ (1,298) $ (1,718) $ (222) $ (276)

Our qualififf ed pension plans were underfundeff d by $485 million and $655 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.
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The folff lowing amounts were recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

Pension Benefiff ts Postretirement Benefiff ts
At December 31, 2022 2021 2022 2021
Net actuat rial (loss) gain $ (1,646) $ (2,068) $ 157 $ 143
Net prior service cost (1) (1) — —
Share of equity investee — (1) — —

(1,647) (2,070) 157 143
Defeff rred income taxes 438 541 (17) (14)
Net amount recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) $ (1,209) $ (1,529) $ 140 $ 129

The accumulated benefiff t obligation forff all defiff ned benefiff t pension plans was $3.66 billion and $4.91 billion at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Inforff mation forff the pension plans with an accumulated benefiff t obligation in excess of plan assets is set forff th
below.

At December 31, 2022 2021
Projected and accumulated benefiff t obligation $ 3,661 $ 4,908
Fair value of plan assets $ 2,363 $ 3,184

The folff lowing tabla es present the components of net periodic benefiff t cost and amounts recognized in other
comprehensive income (loss).

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefiff ts
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
Components of net periodic cost:
Service cost $ — $ — $ 30 $ 1 $ 1 $ 2
Interest cost 150 145 164 8 8 11
Expected returt n on plan assets (172) (188) (194) — — —
Amortization of actuat rial losses (gains) 97 93 103 (15) (15) (15)
Amortization of prior service cost — — 2 — — 1
Settlements (a) — 10 — — — —
Net periodic cost (b) $ 75 $ 60 $ 105 $ (6) $ (6) $ (1)

(a) Reflff ects the accelerated recognition of a portion of the unamortized actuat rial losses due to the volume of lump sum benefit
payments in one of our pension plans.

(b) Includes amounts reflff ected in net earnings frff om discontinued operations of $3 million forff each of the years ended December
31, 2022 and 2021 and $5 million forff the year ended December 31, 2020.

The service cost component of net periodic cost is presented on the Consolidated Statements of Operations within
operating income. All other components of net periodic cost are presented below operating income, in “Other
items, net.”
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Pension Benefiff ts Postretirement Benefiff ts
Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Actuat rial (loss) gain $ 325 $ (27) $ (173) $ 29 $ 18 $ 8
Share of equity investee 1 1 — — — —
Curtailment gain — — 79 — — —
Settlements — 10 — — — —
Amortization of actuat rial losses (gains) 97 93 103 (15) (15) (15)
Amortization of prior service cost — — 2 — — 1

423 77 11 14 3 (6)
Defeff rred income taxes (103) (19) (3) (3) (1) 1
Recognized in other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax $ 320 $ 58 $ 8 $ 11 $ 2 $ (5)

Pension Benefiff ts Postretirement Benefiff ts
2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020

Weighted average assumptions used to
determine benefiff t obligations at December 31:
Discount rate 5.9 % 3.2 % 2.9 % 6.0 % 3.0 % 2.6 %
Rate of compensation increase — % — % — % N/A N/A N/A
Weighted average assumptions used to
determine net periodic costs forff the year ended
December 31:
Discount rate 3.2 % 2.9 % 3.4 % 3.0 % 2.6 % 3.3 %
Expected long-term returt n on plan assets 5.6 % 5.9 % 6.4 % N/A N/A N/A
Cash balance interest crediting rate 5.0 % 5.0 % 5.0 % N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase — % — % 3.0 % N/A N/A N/A

N/A - not appla icabla e

The discount rates are determined primarily based on the yield of a portfolff io of high quality bonds, providing cash
flff ows necessaryrr to meet the pension plans’ expected futff urt e benefiff t payments, as determined forff the projected
benefiff t obligations. The expected returt n on plan assets assumption is derived using the current and expected asset
allocation of the pension plan assets and considering historical as well as expected returt ns on various classes of
plan assets.

The folff lowing additional assumptions were used in accounting forff postretirement benefiff ts.

2022 2021
Projected health care cost trend rate (pre-65) 6.8 % 7.0 %
Projected health care cost trend rate (post-65) 6.8 % 7.0 %
Ultimate trend rate 5.0 % 5.0 %
Year ultimate trend rate is achieved 2030 2030
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Plan Assetstt

The Paramount Global Investments Committee (the “Committee”) determines the strategy forff the investment of
pension plan assets. The Committee establa ishes target asset allocations forff our pension plan trusrr ts based upon an
analysis of the timing and amount of projected benefiff t payments, projected company contributions, the expected
returt ns and risk of the asset classes and the correlation of those returt ns. The target asset allocation forff the
Company’s domestic pension plans is to invest between 60% - 68% in liabia lity hedging assets, 22% - 30% in
equity securities, 3% - 10% in real estate and real assets and the remainder in cash, cash equivalents, Paramount
stock and other investments. At December 31, 2022, the trusrr ts were invested appra oximately 63% in liabia lity
hedging assets, 29% in equity securities, 6% in real estate and real assets, and the remainder in cash, cash
equivalents, Paramount stock and other investments. Liabia lity hedging assets consist of a diversififf ed portfolff io of
fiff xed income instrumrr ents that are substantially investment grade, with a duration that appra oximates the duration
of the liabia lities covered by the trusrr t. All equity portfolff ios are diversififf ed between U.S. and non-U.S. equities and
include large and small capia talization equities. The asset allocations are reviewed regularly.

The folff lowing tabla es set forff th our pension plan assets measured at faff ir value on a recurring basis at December 31,
2022 and 2021. These assets have been categorized according to the three-level faff ir value hierarchy establa ished by
the FASB which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring faff ir value. See Note 13 forff a description of the levels
within this hierarchy. There are no investments categorized as Level 3.

At December 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Cash and cash equivalents (a) $ — $ 3 $ 3
Fixed income securities:
U.S. treasuryrr securities 108 — 108
Government-related securities — 133 133
Corporr ate bonds (c) — 1,144 1,144
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities — 101 101
Equity securities:
U.S. large capia talization 48 — 48
U.S. small capia talization 63 — 63
Total assets in faiff r value hierarchy $ 219 $ 1,381 $ 1,600
Common collective fundsff measured at net asset value (d) (e) 660
Limited partnerships measured at net asset value (d) 11
Mutuat l fundsff measured at net asset value (d) 92
Investments, at faiff r value $ 2,363
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At December 31, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Cash and cash equivalents (a) (b) $ 83 $ 5 $ 88
Fixed income securities:
U.S. treasuryrr securities 164 — 164
Government-related securities — 175 175
Corporr ate bonds (c) — 1,448 1,448
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities — 76 76
Equity securities:
U.S. large capia talization 72 — 72
U.S. small capia talization 81 — 81
Other — 14 14
Total assets in faiff r value hierarchy $ 400 $ 1,718 $ 2,118
Common collective fundsff measured at net asset value (d) (e) 1,013
Limited partnerships measured at net asset value (d) 18
Mutuat l fundsff measured at net asset value (d) 42
Investments, at faiff r value $ 3,191

(a) Assets categorized as Level 2 reflff ect investments in money market fundsff .
(b) On Januaryrr 3, 2022, the trusrr t that held the assets of the Viacom pension plan was merged into the trusrr t that holds the assets of
the remainder of the Company’s' domestic plans. As part of this merger, certain of the transfeff rred assets were liquidated,
which resulted in a higher level of cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2021.

(c) Securities of diverse sectors and industries, substantially all investment grade.
(d) In accordance with FASB guidance, investments that are measured at faff ir value using the net asset value per share (or its
equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been classififf ed in the faff ir value hierarchy.

(e) Underlying investments consist mainly of U.S. large capia talization and international equity securities.

Money market investments are carried at amortized cost which appra oximates faff ir value due to the short-term
maturt ity of these investments. Investments in equity securities are reported at faff ir value based on quoted market
prices on national security exchanges. The faff ir value of investments in common collective fundsff and mutuat l fundsff
is determined using the net asset value (“NAV”) provided by the administrator of the fundff as a practical
expedient. The NAV is determined by each fund’ff s trusrr tee based upon the faff ir value of the underlying assets
owned by the fund,ff less liabia lities, divided by the number of outstanding units. The faff ir value of U.S. treasuryrr
securities is determined based on quoted market prices in active markets. The faff ir value of government related
securities and corporrr ate bonds is determined based on quoted market prices on national security exchanges, when
availabla e, or using valuation models which incorporrr ate certain other observabla e inputs including recent trading
activity forff comparabla e securities and broker quoted prices. The faff ir value of mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities is based upon valuation models which incorporrr ate availabla e dealer quotes, projected cash flff ows and
market inforff mation. The faff ir value of limited partnerships has been estimated using the NAV of the ownership
interest. The NAV is determined using quarterly fiff nancial statements issued by the partnership which determine
the value based on the faff ir value of the underlying investments.
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Future Benefiff t Payments

Estimated futff urt e benefiff t payments are as folff lows:

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028-2032
Pension $ 313 $ 311 $ 311 $ 309 $ 305 $ 1,421
Postretirement $ 35 $ 32 $ 29 $ 27 $ 24 $ 87
Retiree Medicare drugrr subsidy $ 3 $ 3 $ 3 $ 3 $ 3 $ 14

In 2023, we expect to make $8 million in contributions to our qualififf ed pension plans forff minimum fundiff ng
requirements under ERISA and $75 million to our non-qualififf ed pension plans to satisfyff benefiff t payments due
under these plans. Also in 2023, we expect to contribute appra oximately $35 million to our other postretirement
benefiff t plans to satisfyff our portion of benefiff t payments due under these plans.

Multiemployer Pension and Postretirement Benefiff t Plans

We contribute to a number of multiemployer defiff ned benefiff t pension plans under the terms of collective
bargaining agreements that cover our union-represented employees including talent, writers, directors, producers
and other employees, primarily in the entertainment industry.rr The other employers participating in these
multiemployer plans are primarily in the entertainment and other related industries. The risks of participating in
multiemployer plans are diffff eff rent frff om single-employer plans as assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by
one employer may be used to provide benefiff ts to employees of other participating employers and if a participating
employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfundeff d obligations of the plan may be borne by the remaining
participating employers. In addition, if we choose to stop participating in some of its multiemployer plans we may
be required to pay those plans a withdrawal liabia lity based on the underfundeff d statust of the plan.

The fiff nancial health of a multiemployer plan is indicated by the zone statust , as defiff ned by the Pension Protection
Act of 2006. Plans in the red zone are in critical statust ; those in the yellow zone are in endangered statust ; and
those in the green zone are neither critical nor endangered.

The tabla e below presents inforff mation concerning our participation in multiemployer defiff ned benefiff t pension
plans.

Employer
Identififf cation
Number/Pension
Plan Number

Pension
Protection Act Company

Contributions

Expiration
Date of
Collective
Bargaining
Agreement

Zone Status (a)

Pension Plan 2022 2021 2022 2021 2020
AFTRARR Retirement Plan (b) 13-6414972-001 Green Green $ 16 $ 17 $ 13 6/30/2024
Directors Guild of America - Producer (b) 95-2892780-001 Green Green 19 23 16 6/30/2023
Producer-Writers Guild of America 95-2216351-001 Green Green 30 26 22 5/1/2023
Screen Actors Guild - Producers 95-2110997-001 Green Green 30 45 24 6/30/2023
Motion Picturt e Industryrr 95-1810805-001 Green Green 63 66 35 (c)
I.A.T.S.E. Local No. 33 Pension Trusrr t Fund 95-6377503-001 Green Green 5 10 3 3/31/2023
Other Plans 14 16 7

Total contributions $ 177 $ 203 $ 120

(a) The zone statust forff each individuadd l plan listed was certififf ed by each plan’s actuat ryr as of the beginning of the plan years forff 2022
and 2021. The plan year is the twelve months ending December 31 forff each plan listed abovea except AFTRARR Retirement Plan
which has a plan year ending November 30.

(b) The Company was listed in these plan’s most recent Form 5500 as providing more than 5% of total contributions forff the plan.
(c) The expiration dates range frff om Januaryrr 15, 2022 through December 1, 2024.
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As a result of the abovea noted zone statust there were no fundiff ng improvements or rehabia litation plans
implemented, as defiff ned by ERISA, nor any surcharges imposed forff any of the individual plans listed.

We also contribute to multiemployer plans that provide postretirement healthcare and other benefiff ts to certain
employees under collective bargaining agreements. The contributions to these plans were $192 million, $184
million and $95 million forff the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. We recognize the
net periodic cost forff multiemployer pension and postretirement benefiff t plans based on the required contributions
to the plans.

Defiff ned Contribution Plans

We sponsor defiff ned contribution plans forff the benefiff t of substantially all employees meeting eligibility
requirements. Employer contributions to such plans were $137 million, $106 million and $91 million forff the years
ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

19) SEGMENT INFORMATION

The tabla es below set forff th our fiff nancial inforff mation by reportabla e segment. Our operating segments, which are the
same as our reportabla e segments, have been determined in accordance with our internal management strucrr turt e,
which is organized based upon products and services.

Beginning in the fiff rst quarter of 2022, primarily as a result of our increased strategic focff us on our direct-to-
consumer streaming businesses, we made certain changes to how we manage our businesses and allocate
resources that resulted in the changes described below. Prior period results have been recast to conforff m to these
presentation changes.

ManageMM ment Structure ChangeCC

Our management strucrr turt e was reorganized to focff us on managing our business as the combination of three parts:
a traditional media business, a portfolff io of domestic and international streaming services, and a fiff lm studit o. As a
result, we realigned our operating segments and accordingly, beginning in 2022, and forff all periods presented we
are reporting results based on the segments in the tabla es below (see Note 1 forff a description of each operating
segment).

IntII ercompanym License FeFF es

Concurrent with the change to our operating segments, we changed the way we record intersegment content
licensing. Under our previous segment strucrr turt e, management evaluated the results of our segments including
intersegment content licensing at market value as if the sales were to third parties. Thereforff e, the licensor segment
recorded intercompany license feff e revenues and profiff ts and the licensee segment recorded production costs in the
amount of the license feff e charged by the licensor, which generally reflff ected the cost to the Company plus a
margin. The intercompany revenues and the margin embedded in the cost to the licensee were eliminated in
consolidation.
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Under our new segment strucrr turt e, management evaluates the results of the segments using an allocation of the
total cost of content frff om the licensor segment to each licensee segment utilizing the content. As a result, content
costs are allocated across segments based on the relative value of the distribution windows within each segment.
The allocation is recorded by the licensor segment as a reduction of content cost and no intersegment licensing
revenues or profiff ts are recorded.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Revenues:
Advertising $ 9,350 $ 10,105 $ 9,062
Affff iff liate and subscription 8,180 8,413 8,037
Licensing and other 4,202 4,216 4,021
TV Media 21,732 22,734 21,120
Advertising 1,533 1,298 686
Subscription 3,371 2,029 1,129
Direct-to-Consumer 4,904 3,327 1,815
Advertising 23 18 18
Theatrical 1,223 241 180
Licensing and other 2,460 2,428 2,272
Filmed Entertainment 3,706 2,687 2,470
Eliminations (188) (162) (120)
Total Revenues $ 30,154 $ 28,586 $ 25,285

Revenues generated between segments are principally frff om intersegment arrangements forff the distribution of
content, rental of studit o space, and advertising, as well as licensing revenues earned frff om third parties who license
our content to our internal platforff ms either through a sub-license or co-production arrangement. These
transactions are recorded at market value as if the sales were to third parties and are eliminated in consolidation.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Intercompany Revenues:
TV Media $ 66 $ 87 $ 88
Direct-to-Consumer — 2 2
Filmed Entertainment 122 73 30
Total Intercompany Revenues $ 188 $ 162 $ 120
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We present operating income excluding depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation, costs forff
restrucrr turt ing and other corporrr ate matters, programming charges and net gain on dispositions, each where
appla icabla e (“Adjusted OIBDA”), as the primaryrr measure of profiff t and loss forff our operating segments in
accordance with FASB guidance forff segment reporting since it is the primaryrr method used by our management.
Stock-based compensation is excluded frff om our segment measure of profiff t and loss because it is set and appra oved
by our Board of Directors in consultation with corporrr ate executive management.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Adjd usted OIBDA:
TV Media $ 5,451 $ 5,892 $ 5,816
Direct-to-Consumer (1,819) (992) (171)
Filmed Entertainment 272 207 158
Corporrr ate/Eliminations (470) (491) (485)
Stock-based compensation (158) (172) (186)
Depreciation and amortization (405) (390) (430)
Restrucrr turt ing and other corporr ate matters (585) (100) (618)
Programming charges — — (159)
Net gain on dispositions 56 2,343 214
Operating income 2,342 6,297 4,139
Interest expense (931) (986) (1,031)
Interest income 108 53 60
Net gains (losses) frff om investments (9) 47 206
Loss on extinguishment of debt (120) (128) (126)
Other items, net (124) (77) (101)
Earnings frff om continuing operations beforff e income taxes and
equity in loss of investee companies 1,266 5,206 3,147

Provision forff income taxes (227) (646) (535)
Equity in loss of investee companies, net of tax (204) (91) (28)
Net earnings frff om continuing operations 835 4,469 2,584
Net earnings frff om discontinued operations, net of tax 379 162 117
Net earnings (Paramount and noncontrolling interests) 1,214 4,631 2,701
Net earnings attributabla e to noncontrolling interests (110) (88) (279)
Net earnings attributabla e to Paramount $ 1,104 $ 4,543 $ 2,422

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Revenues: (a)
United States $ 24,412 $ 23,320 $ 20,690
International 5,742 5,266 4,595
Total Revenues $ 30,154 $ 28,586 $ 25,285

(a) Revenue classififf cations are based on customers’ locations.

At December 31, 2022 2021
Long-lived Assets: (a)

United States $ 18,231 $ 16,075
International 1,458 897
Total Long-lived Assets $ 19,689 $ 16,972

(a) Reflff ects total assets less current assets, investments, goodwill, intangible assets, noncurrent receivabla es and
noncurrent defeff rred tax assets.

We do not disclose our assets by segment because they are not used to evaluate our operating perforff mance or in
determining the allocation of resources.
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20) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

ComCC mitmtt entstt

Our commitments not recorded on the balance sheet primarily consist of programming and talent commitments
and purchase obligations forff goods and services resulting frff om our normal course of business.

Our programming and talent commitments, estimated to aggregate to $33.73 billion as of December 31, 2022,
include $29.50 billion forff sports programming rights and $4.23 billion relating to the production and licensing of
television and fiff lm programming, including talent contracts. We also have committed purchase obligations which
include agreements to purchase goods or services in the futff urt e that totaled $1.73 billion as of December 31, 2022.

Other long-term contractuat l obligations recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet include program liabia lities,
participations, residuals, and a tax liabia lity resulting frff om feff deral tax legislation enacted in December 2017. This
tax liabia lity reflff ects the remaining tax on the Company’s historical accumulated forff eign earnings and profiff ts,
which is payabla e to the IRS in 2024 and 2025.

At December 31, 2022, commitments forff programming and talent and purchase obligations not recorded on the
balance sheet, and other long-term contractuat l obligations recorded on the balance sheet were payabla e as folff lows:

Payments Due by Period
2028 and

Total 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Thereaftff er
Offff -ff Balance Sheet Arrangements
Programming and talent commitments $ 33,729 $ 4,233 $ 3,990 $ 3,004 $ 2,890 $ 2,632 $ 16,980
Purchase obligations $ 1,729 $ 693 $ 561 $ 258 $ 145 $ 21 $ 51

On-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Other long-term contractuat l obligations $ 2,287 $ — $ 1,288 $ 683 $ 255 $ 53 $ 8

We also have long-term lease commitments forff offff iff ce space, equipment, transponders and studit o faff cilities, which
are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2022. See Note 11 forff details of our operating
lease commitments.

Guarantees

Lettersrr of CrCC edit and Suretytt Bonds. At December 31, 2022, we had outstanding letters of credit and surety bonds
of $178 million that were not recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Letters of credit and surety bonds are
primarily used as security against non-perforff mance in the normal course of business.

CBCC S TeTT levisii ion Citytt . In connection with the sale of CBS Television City property and sound stage operation
(“CBS Television City”) in 2019, we guaranteed a specififf ed level of cash flff ows to be generated by the business
durdd ing the fiff rst fiff ve years folff lowing the completion of the sale. Included in “Other current liabia lities” and “Other
liabia lities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2022 is a liabia lity totaling $51 million, reflff ecting
the present value of the remaining estimated amount payabla e under the guarantee obligation.
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Lease Guarantees. We have certain indemnififf cation obligations with respect to leases primarily associated with
the previously discontinued operations of Famous Players. These lease commitments totaled $20 million at
December 31, 2022, and are presented within “Other liabia lities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The amount
of lease commitments varies over time depending on the expiration or termination of individual underlying leases,
or the related indemnififf cation obligation, and forff eign exchange rates, among other things. We may also have
exposure forff certain other expenses related to the leases, such as property taxes and common area maintenance.
We believe our accruarr l is suffff iff cient to meet any futff urt e obligations based on our consideration of availabla e
fiff nancial inforff mation, the lessees’ historical perforff mance in meeting their lease obligations and the underlying
economic faff ctors impacting the lessees’ business models.

In the course of our business, we both provide and receive indemnities which are intended to allocate certain risks
associated with business transactions. Similarly, we may remain contingently liabla e forff various obligations of a
business that has been divested in the event that a third party does not live up to its obligations under an
indemnififf cation obligation. We record a liabia lity forff our indemnififf cation obligations and other contingent
liabia lities when probabla e and reasonabla y estimabla e.

Legal Matters

General

On an ongoing basis, we vigorously defeff nd ourselves in numerous lawsuits and proceedings and respond to
various investigations and inquiries frff om feff deral, state, local and international authorities (collectively,
“Litigation’’). Litigation may be brought against us without merit, is inherently uncertain and always diffff iff cult to
predict. However, based on our understanding and evaluation of the relevant faff cts and circumstances, we believe
that the folff lowing matters are not likely, in the aggregate, to result in a material adverse effff eff ct on our business,
fiff nancial condition and results of operations.

StSS octt kholdell r MatMM ttt ett rsrr

Litigati ion Relating to the MeMM rger r

Beginning in Februarr ryrr 2020, three purporrr ted CBS stockholders fiff led separate derivative and/or putative class
action lawsuits in the Court of Chanceryrr of the State of Delaware. In March 2020, the Court consolidated the
three lawsuits and appoia nted Bucks County Employees’ Retirement Fund and International Union of Operating
Engineers of Eastern Pennsylvania and Delaware as co-lead plaintiffff sff forff the consolidated action. In April 2020,
the lead plaintiffff sff fiff led a Verififf ed Consolidated Class Action and Derivative Complaint (as used in this paragraph,a
the “Complaint”) against Shari E. Redstone, NAI, Sumner M. Redstone National Amusements Trusrr t, members of
the CBS Board of Directors (comprised of Candace K. Beinecke, Barbar ra M. Byrne, Garyrr L. Countrymrr an, Brian
Goldner, Linda M. Griego, Robert N. Klieger, Martha L. Minow, Susan Schuman, Frederick O. Terrell and
Strauss Zelnick), forff mer CBS President and Acting Chief Executive Offff iff cer Joseph Ianniello and the Company as
nominal defeff ndant. The Complaint alleges breaches of fiff duciaryrr duties to CBS stockholders in connection with
the negotiation and appra oval of an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 13, 2019, between CBS and
Viacom (as amended, the “Merger Agreement”). The Complaint also alleges waste and unjust enrichment in
connection with Mr. Ianniello’s compensation. The Complaint seeks unspecififf ed damages, costs and expenses, as
well as other relief.ff In June 2020, the defeff ndants fiff led motions to dismiss. In Januaryrr 2021, the Court dismissed
one disclosure claim, while allowing all other claims against the defeff ndants to proceed. In December 2022, the
Court dismissed the fiff duciaryrr duty claim against Mr. Klieger. Discoveryrr on the surviving claims is proceeding. A
six-day trial is scheduled to begin in June 2023. We believe that the remaining claims are without merit and we
intend to defeff nd against them vigorously.
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Beginning in November 2019, fourff purporrr ted Viacom stockholders fiff led separate putative class action lawsuits in
the Court of Chanceryrr of the State of Delaware. In Januaryrr 2020, the Court consolidated the fourff lawsuits. In
Februarr ryrr 2020, the Court appoia nted Califorff nia Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”) as lead
plaintiffff forff the consolidated action. Subsequently, in Februarr ryrr 2020, CalPERS, together with Park Employees’
and Retirement Board Employees’ Annuity and Benefiff t Fund of Chicago and Louis M. Wilen, fiff led a First
Amended Verififf ed Class Action Complaint (as used in this paragraph,a the “Complaint”) against NAI, NAI
Entertainment Holdings LLC, Shari E. Redstone, the members of the special transaction committee of the Viacom
Board of Directors (comprised of Thomas J. May, Judith A. McHale, Ronald L. Nelson and Nicole Seligman) and
our President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer and director, Robert M. Bakish. The Complaint alleges breaches of
fiff duciaryrr duties to Viacom stockholders in connection with the negotiation and appra oval of the Merger
Agreement. The Complaint seeks unspecififf ed damages, costs and expenses, as well as other relief.ff In May 2020,
the defeff ndants fiff led motions to dismiss. In December 2020, the Court dismissed the claims against Mr. Bakish,
while allowing the claims against the remaining defeff ndants to proceed. Discoveryrr on the surviving claims is
proceeding. A six-day trial is scheduled to begin in July 2023. We believe that the remaining claims are without
merit and we intend to defeff nd against them vigorously.

InvII estigati ion-Related MatMM tersrr

As announced in August 2018, the CBS Board of Directors retained two law fiff rms to conduct a fulff l investigation
of the allegations in press reports abouta CBS’ forff mer Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Offff iff cer, Leslie Moonves, CBS News and culturt al issues at CBS. In December 2018, the CBS Board of Directors
announced the completion of its investigation, certain fiff ndings of the investigation and the CBS Board of
Directors’ determination with respect to the termination of Mr. Moonves’ employment.

In August 2018 and in October 2018, Gene Samit and John Lantz, respectively, fiff led putative class action lawsuits
in the U.S. District Court forff the Southern District of New York, individually and on behalf of others similarly
situat ted, forff claims that are similar to those alleged in the amended complaint described below. In November
2018, the Court entered an order consolidating the two actions. Subsequently, in November 2018, the Court
appoia nted Construcrr tion Labora ers Pension Trusrr t forff Southern Califorff nia as the lead plaintiffff of the consolidated
action. In Februarr ryrr 2019, the lead plaintiffff fiff led a consolidated amended putative class action complaint against
CBS, certain current and forff mer senior executives and members of the CBS Board of Directors. The consolidated
action is stated to be on behalf of purchasers of CBS Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock
between September 26, 2016 and December 4, 2018. This action seeks to recover damages arising during this
time period allegedly caused by the defeff ndants’ purporrr ted violations of the feff deral securities laws, including by
allegedly making materially faff lse and misleading statements or faff iling to disclose material inforff mation, and seeks
costs and expenses as well as remedies under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and RulRR e 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. In April 2019, the defeff ndants fiff led motions to dismiss this action, which
the Court granted in part and denied in part in Januaryrr 2020. With the exception of one statement made by Mr.
Moonves at an industryrr event in November 2017, in which he allegedly was acting as the agent of CBS, all claims
as to all other allegedly faff lse and misleading statements were dismissed. We reached an agreement with the
plaintiffff sff to settle the lawsuit forff $14.75 million, which was paid by our insurers. The settlement, which includes
no admission of liabia lity or wrongdoing by the Company, was granted fiff nal appra oval by the Court in November
2022.

We also received subpoenas or requests forff inforff mation frff om the New York County District Attorney’s Offff iff ce,
the New York City Commission on Human Rights, the New York State Attorney General’s Offff iff ce and the United
States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) regarding the subject matter of the CBS Board of
Directors’ investigation and related matters, including with respect to CBS’ related public disclosures. In
November 2022, we entered into an Assurance of Discontinuance with the Investor Protection Bureau of the New
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York State Attorney General’s Offff iff ce to resolve that matter. Aftff er credits forff the settlement amount to be paid in
the consolidated feff deral securities class action discussed abovea , and certain fiff nancial commitments to human
resources-related programs made by CBS in connection with an earlier resolution with the Civil Rights Bureau of
the New York State Attorney General’s Offff iff ce, the Company has made a payment of $7.25 million, which by
agreement with the Investor Protection Bureau will be distributed in connection with the feff deral securities class
action settlement discussed abovea . The resolution with the Investor Protection Bureau includes no admission of
liabia lity or wrongdoing by the Company. In December 2022, we received a termination letter frff om the SEC,
indicating that it does not intend to recommend an enforff cement action against the Company. We may continue to
receive additional related regulatoryrr and investigative inquiries frff om these and other entities in the futff urt e.

Litigati ion Related to Stock OfO fff eff rings

In August 2021, Camelot Event Driven Fund fiff led a putative securities class action lawsuit in New York Supreme
Court, County of New York, and in November 2021, an amended complaint was fiff led that, among other changes,
added an additional named plaintiffff (as used in this paragraph,a the “Complaint”). The Complaint is purporrr tedly on
behalf of investors who purchased shares of the Company’s Class B Common Stock and 5.75% Series A
Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock pursuant to public securities offff eff rings completed in March 2021, and was
fiff led against the Company, certain senior executives, members of our Board of Directors, and the underwriters
involved in the offff eff rings. The Complaint asserts violations of feff deral securities law and alleges that the offff eff ring
documents contained material misstatements and omissions, including through an alleged faff ilure to adequately
disclose certain total returt n swapa transactions involving Archegos Capia tal Management refeff renced to our
securities and related alleged risks to the Company’s stock price. In December 2021, the plaintiffff sff fiff led a
stipulation seeking the voluntaryrr dismissal without preje udice of the outside director defeff ndants frff om the lawsuit,
which the Court subsequently ordered. On the same date, the defeff ndants fiff led motions to dismiss the lawsuit,
which were heard in Januaryrr 2023. On Februarr ryrr 7, 2023, the Court dismissed all claims against the Company
while allowing the claims against the underwriters to proceed.

Litii itt gati itt on Relatll ett d tott TeTT lell visii ion StSS attt itt on Ownersrr

In September 2019, the Company was added as a defeff ndant in a multi-district putative class action lawsuit fiff led in
the United States District Court forff the Northern District of Illinois. The lawsuit was fiff led by parties that claim to
have purchased broadcast television spot advertising beginning abouta Januaryrr 2014 on television stations owned
by one or more of the defeff ndant television station owners and alleges the sharing of allegedly competitively
sensitive inforff mation among such television stations in alleged violation of the Sherman Antitrusrr t Act. The action,
which names the Company among fourff teen total defeff ndants, seeks monetaryrr damages, attorneys’ feff es, costs and
interest as well as injunctions against the allegedly unlawfulff conduct. In October 2019, the Company and other
defeff ndants fiff led a motion to dismiss the matter, which was denied by the Court in November 2020. We have
reached an agreement in principle with the plaintiffff sff to settle the lawsuit. The settlement, which will include no
admission of liabia lity or wrongdoing by the Company, will be subject to Court appra oval.

Litii itt gati itt on Relatll ett d tott thtt e PrPP oposed SalSS ell of SiSS mii on & ScSS hustett r

In November 2021, the U.S. Department of Justice fiff led suit in the U.S. District Court forff the District of Columbia
to block our sale of the Simon & Schuster business to Penguin Random House pursuant to a Share Purchase
Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”), dated November 24, 2020, between the Company, certain of its
subsidiaries, Penguin Random House and Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA. In October 2022, folff lowing a bench trial,
the Court blocked the sale. In November 2022, we terminated the Purchase Agreement and subsequently received
a $200 million termination feff e.
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ClCC aill mii s Relatll ett d tott ForFF mrr er Businii esses

Asbestos

We are a defeff ndant in lawsuits claiming various personal injuries related to asbestos and other materials, which
allegedly occurred as a result of exposure caused by various products manufaff cturt ed by Westinghouse, a
predecessor, generally prior to the early 1970s. Westinghouse was neither a producer nor a manufaff cturt er of
asbestos. We are typically named as one of a large number of defeff ndants in both state and feff deral cases. In the
maja ority of asbestos lawsuits, the plaintiffff sff have not identififf ed which of our products is the basis of a claim.
Claims against us in which a product has been identififf ed most commonly relate to allegations of exposure to
asbestos-containing insulating material used in conjunction with turt bir nes and electrical equipment.

Claims are frff equently fiff led and/or settled in groups, which may make the amount and timing of settlements, and
the number of pending claims, subject to signififf cant flff uctuat tion frff om period to period. We do not report as
pending those claims on inactive, stayed, defeff rred or similar dockets that some jurisdictions have establa ished forff
claimants who allege minimal or no impairment. As of December 31, 2022, we had pending approxia mately
21,580 asbestos claims, as compared with appra oximately 27,770 as of December 31, 2021 and 30,710 as of
December 31, 2020. During 2022, we received appra oximately 2,840 new claims and closed or moved to an
inactive docket appra oximately 9,030 claims. We report claims as closed when we become aware that a dismissal
order has been entered by a court or when we have reached agreement with the claimants on the material terms of
a settlement. Settlement costs depend on the seriousness of the injuries that forff m the basis of the claims, the
quality of evidence supporting the claims and other faff ctors. Our total costs forff the years 2022 and 2021 forff
settlement and defeff nse of asbestos claims aftff er insurance recoveries and net of tax were appra oximately $57
million and $63 million, respectively. Our costs forff settlement and defeff nse of asbestos claims may varyrr year to
year and insurance proceeds are not always recovered in the same period as the insured portion of the expenses.

Filings include claims forff individuals suffff eff ring frff om mesothelioma, a rare cancer, the risk of which is allegedly
increased by exposure to asbestos; lung cancer, a cancer which may be caused by various faff ctors, one of which is
alleged to be asbestos exposure; other cancers, and conditions that are substantially less serious, including claims
brought on behalf of individuals who are asymptomatic as to an allegedly asbestos-related disease. The
predominant number of pending claims against us are non-cancer claims. It is diffff iff cult to predict futff urt e asbestos
liabia lities, as events and circumstances may impact the estimate of our asbestos liabia lities, including, among
others, the number and types of claims and average cost to resolve such claims. We record an accruarr l forff a loss
contingency when it is both probabla e that a liabia lity has been incurred and when the amount of the loss can be
reasonabla y estimated. Our liabia lity estimate is based upon many faff ctors, including the number of outstanding
claims, estimated average cost per claim, the breakdown of claims by disease type, historic claim fiff lings, costs per
claim of resolution and the fiff ling of new claims, as well as consultation with a third party fiff rm on trends that may
impact our futff urt e asbestos liabia lity. While we believe that our accruarr l forff matters related to our predecessor
operations, including environmental and asbestos, are adequate, there can be no assurance that circumstances will
not change in futff urt e periods, and as a result our actuat l liabia lities may be higher or lower than our accruarr l.

Other

From time to time, we receive claims frff om feff deral and state environmental regulatoryrr agencies and other entities
asserting that we are or may be liabla e forff environmental cleanup costs and related damages principally relating to
our historical and predecessor operations. In addition, frff om time to time we receive personal injuryrr claims
including toxic tort and product liabia lity claims (other than asbestos) arising frff om our historical operations and
predecessors.
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21) SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The folff lowing tabla e presents the components of Other items, net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Pension and postretirement benefiff t costs $ (65) $ (43) $ (69)
Foreign exchange losses (58) (26) (35)
Pension settlement charge (a) — (10) —
Other (1) 2 3
Other items, net $ (124) $ (77) $ (101)

(a) Reflff ects the accelerated recognition of a portion of the unamortized actuat rial losses due to the volume of lump sum
benefiff t payments in one of our pension plans.

Redeemable NoncNN ontrolling IntII erest

On October 31, 2022 we acquired the remaining 40% interest in Nickelodeon UK Limited (“Nick UK”), bringing
our ownership to 100%. Prior to this transaction, we were subject to a redeemabla e put option with respect to Nick
UK, which was classififf ed as “Redeemabla e noncontrolling interest” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2021 and 2020. The activity reflff ected within redeemabla e noncontrolling interest forff the years ended
December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 is presented below.

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Beginning balance $ 107 $ 197 $ 254
Net earnings 4 14 11
Distributions (6) (5) (15)
Translation adjustment (20) (5) 7
Redemption value adjustment 17 (94) (60)
Purchase of noncontrolling interest (102) — —

Ending balance $ — $ 107 $ 197

Supplemental CasCC h FlFF ow InfII off rmation

Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Cash paid forff interest $ 920 $ 970 $ 965

Cash paid forff income taxes:
Continuing operations $ 61 $ 291 $ 411
Discontinued operations 12 43 55
Total cash paid forff income taxes $ 73 $ 334 $ 466
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Item 9. ChCC anges inii and Disii agreementstt WiWW tii htt Accountantt tstt on Accountitt nii g and FiFF nii ancial Disii closll ure.ee

None.

Item 9A. ConCC trtt olsll and PrPP ocedures.

Our chief executive offff iff cer and chief fiff nancial offff iff cer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by
this report, our disclosure controls and procedures (as defiff ned in RulRR e 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”)) were effff eff ctive, based on the evaluation of these controls
and procedures required by RulRR e 13a-15(b) or 15d-15(b) of the Exchange Act. No change in our internal control
over fiff nancial reporting occurred during our fourff th fiff scal quarter that has materially affff eff cted, or is reasonabla y
likely to materially affff eff ct, our internal control over fiff nancial reporting.

Management’s report on internal control over fiff nancial reporting and the report of our independent registered
public accounting fiff rm thereon are set forff th in Item 8, on pages II-47 and II-48, of this report.

Item 9B. Othtt er InII fn orff mrr atitt on.

None.

Item 9C. Disii closll ure Regare dinii g ForFF eigi ngg Jurisii dictitt ons thtt at PrPP event InII spes ctitt ons.

Not appla icabla e.
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PART III

Item 10. Dirii ectortt srr ,s ExeEE cutitt ve OfO fff iff cersrr and CorCC porrr atett GovG ernrr ance.ee

The inforff mation required by this item with respect to the Company’s directors will be contained in the Proxy
Statement forff the Company’s 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”) under the headings
“Our Board of Directors” and “Item 1 — Election of Directors,” which inforff mation is incorporrr ated herein by
refeff rence.

The inforff mation required by this item with respect to the Company’s executive offff iff cers is contained in Part I of
this Form 10-K under the capa tion “Our Executive Offff iff cers.”

Item 11. ExeEE cutitt ve ComCC pem nsatitt on.

The information required by this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Our Board of
Directors,” “Director Compensation,” “Executive Compensation,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” and
“Compensation Committee Report,” which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SeSS curiti ytt Ownersrr hipii of CeCC rtaitt nii Benefe iff ciali Ownersrr and ManMM agement and Relatll ett d StSS octt kholdell r
MatMM ttt ett rsrr .

The information required by this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information,” which
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. CeCC rtaitt nii Relatll itt onshipsii and Relatll ett d TrTT ansactitt ons,s and Dirii ectortt InII depeee ndence.ee

The information required by this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Related
Person Transactions” and “Our Board of Directors,” which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. PrPP inii cipalii Accountitt nii g FeFF es and SeSS rvices.

The information required by this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Fees for
Services Provided by the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” which information is incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. ExhEE ibiti stt ,s FiFF nii ancial StSS attt ett ment ScSS hedulell s.

(a)

1. FiFF nancial Statementstt .

The fiff nancial statements of Paramount fiff led as part of this report on Form 10-K are listed on the Index on
page II-46.

2. FiFF nancial Statement Schedules.

The fiff nancial statement schedule required to be fiff led by Item 8 of this Form 10-K is listed on the Index on
page II-46.

3. ExEE hibitstt .

The exhibits listed in Item 15(b) of this Part IV are fiff led or incorporrr ated by refeff rence as part of this
Form 10-K. The Index to Exhibits begins on page E-1.

Item 16. ForFF mrr 10-K- Summaryr .yy

None.
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PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(Tabular dollars in millions)

Col. A Col. B Col. C Col. D Col. E

Description

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Charged to
Expenses and

Other
Accounts Deductions

Balance at
End of
Period

Allowance forff doubtfuff l accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2022 $ 80 $ 40 $ 9 $ 111
Year ended December 31, 2021 $ 85 $ 8 $ 13 $ 80
Year ended December 31, 2020 $ 80 $ 32 $ 27 $ 85

Valuation allowance on defeff rred tax assets:
Year ended December 31, 2022 $ 581 $ 15 $ 108 $ 488
Year ended December 31, 2021 $ 593 $ 63 $ 75 $ 581
Year ended December 31, 2020 $ 547 $ 67 $ 21 $ 593

Reserves forff inventory obsolescence:
Year ended December 31, 2022 $ 47 $ — $ 3 $ 44
Year ended December 31, 2021 $ 58 $ — $ 11 $ 47
Year ended December 31, 2020 $ 57 $ 3 $ 2 $ 58
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
ITEM 15(b)

Effff eff ctive December 31, 2005, ViVV acom Inc. was separated into twt o pubu licly-traded compm anies, the Company and a new
ViVV acom Inc., and the Company was renamed CBS Corprr oration. Effff eff ctive December 4, 2019, new ViVV acom Inc. merged with
and into CBS Corprr oration with CBS Corprr oration continuing as the survrr iving compm any,yy and the combined company changed
its name to ViVV acomCBS Inc. Effff eff ctive Februrr aryrr 16, 2022, ViVV acomCBS Inc. was renamed Paramount Global.

Exhibit No. Description of Document

(3) Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws
(a) Amended and Restated Certififf cate of Incorpr oration of Paramount Global, effff eff ctive as of Februr ary 16, 2022

(incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 3.1 to tht e Currr ent Report on Formr 8ဩK of Paramount Global fiff led Februrr aryrr
16, 2022) (File No. 001ဩ09553).

(b) Amended and Restated Bylaws of Paramount Global, effff eff ctive as of December 16, 2022 (incorprr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 3.1 to tht e Current Report on Form 8-K of Paramount Global fiff led December 21, 2022) (File
No. 001-09553).

(c) Certififf cate of Desiggnations of the 5.75% Mandatoryyrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock, Series A (incorpr orated byy
refeff rence to Exhibit 3.1 to tht e Currr ent Report on Formr 8-K of ViVV acomCBS Inc. fiff led March 26, 2021) (File No.
001-09553).

(4) Instruments defiff ning the rights of security holders, including indentures
(a) Specimen Certififf cate of the Mandatoryrr Convertible Prefeff rred Stock (included in Exhibit 3(c) above).
(b) Description of the Registrant’s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 4(b) to the Annual Report on Formr 10ဩK of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r tht e
fiff scal year ended December 31, 2021) (File No. 001ဩ09553).

(c) Amended and Restated Senior Indentutt re dated as of November 3, 2008 (“2008 Indentut re”) among CBS
Corprr oration, CBS Operations Inc., and The Bank of New YoYY rkr Mellon, as senior trur stee (incorprr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 4.1 to tht e Registration Statement on Form Sဩ3 of CBS Corprr oration fiff led Novembm er 3, 2008)
(Registration No. 333ဩ154962) (File No. 001ဩ09553).

(d) First Supplemental Indentut re to 2008 Indentut re dated as of April 5, 2010 among CBS Corpr oration, CBS
Operations Inc., and Deutsche Bank TrTT urr st Compm any Americas, as senior trtt usr tee (incorporrr ated by refeff rence to
Exhibit 4.3 to tht e Currr ent Report on Form 8ဩK of CBS Corprr oration fiff led April 5, 2010) (File No. 001ဩ09553).

(e) Indentut re, dated as of April 12, 2006, betwtt een ViVV acom Inc. and The Bank of New YoYY rkr (incorprr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 4.1 to tht e Currrr ent Report on Formr 8-K of ViVV acom Inc. fiff led April 17, 2006) (File No. 001-
32686).

(f)ff TwTT entytt -First Supu plemental Indentutt re, dated as of December 4, 2019, by and among CBS Corprr oration, ViVV acom
Inc. and The Bank of New YoYY rk Mellon, a New YoYY rk banking corprr oration, as trurr stee (in such capa acity,yy tht e
“TrTT ur stee”), to tht e Indentut re, dated as of April 12, 2006, betwtt een ViVV acom Inc. and the TrTT urr stee (incorprr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 4.1 to tht e Currrr ent Report on Formr 8-K of ViVV acomCBS Inc. fiff led December 4, 2019) (File No.
001-09553).

(g) Indentut re, dated as of March 27, 2020, between ViVV acomCBS Inc. and Deutsche Bank TrTT urr st Compm any Americas,
as trur stee (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement on Formr S-3 of ViVV acomCBS Inc.
fiff led March 27, 2020) (File No. 001ဩ09553).
The other instrurr ments defiff ning the rights of holders of tht e longဩterm debt securities of Paramount Global and its
subsidiaries are omitted pursuant to paragrapa h (b)(4)(iii)(A) of Item 601 of Regulation SဩK. Paramount Global
hereby agrees to fuff rnr ish copies of these instrtt urr ments to the Securities and Exchange Commission upu on request.

(10) Material Contracts
(a) CBS Corprr oration 2009 LongဩTeTT rm Incentive Plan (as amended and restated December 11, 2018) (incorpr orated by

refeff rence to Exhibit 10(a) to tht e Annual Report on Form 10-K of CBS Corprr oration foff r the fiff scal year ended
December 31, 2018) (File No. 001-09553).*

(b) Formr s of Certififf cate and TeTT rmr s and Conditions foff r equity awards under CBS Corprr oration 2009 LongဩTeTT rm
Incentive Plan:
(i) Stock Options (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(c)(ii) to tht e Annual Report on Formr 10ဩK of CBS

Corpr oration foff r the fiff scal year ended December 31, 2011) (File No. 001ဩ09553).*
(ii) Perfoff rmanceဩBased Restricted Share Units with Time VeVV sting and Perfoff rmr ance VeVV sting (incorprr orated by

refeff rence to Exhibit 10(c)(v) to the Annual Report on Form 10ဩK of CBS Corprr oration foff r the fiff scal year
ended December 31, 2011) (File No. 001ဩ09553).*
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(iii) Restricted Share Units with Time VeVV sting (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(c)(vii) to the Annual
Report on Form 10ဩK of CBS Corpr oration foff r the fiff scal year ended December 31, 2011) (File
No. 001ဩ09553).*

(iv) Perfoff rmance Share Units (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(b)(iv) to the Annual Report on Form
10ဩK of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the fiff scal year ended December 31, 2020) (File No. 001-09553).*

(v) Restricted Share Units (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(b)(v) to the Annual Report on Formr 10-K
of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r tht e fiff scal year ended December 31, 2020) (File No. 001-09553).*

(c) Paramount Global Short-TeTT rm Incentive Plan, as amended and restated Februr aryy 13, 2023 (fiff led herewith).*
(d) Paramount Global Excess 401(k) Plan foff r Designated Senior Executives - Part A (as amended and restated as of

October 1, 2021) (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(b) to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q of
ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the quq arter ended September 30, 2021) (File No. 001ဩ09553) (as amended by Amendment
No. 1, effff eff ctive as of Februrr aryrr 16, 2022) (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 4.5 to tht e Registration Statement
on Formr Sဩ8 of Paramount Global fiff led October 7, 2022) (Registration No. 333ဩ154962).*

(e) Paramount Global Excess 401(k) Plan foff r Designated Senior Executives - Part B (as amended and restated as of
October 1, 2021) (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(c) to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q of
ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the quq arter ended September 30, 2021) (File No. 001ဩ09553) (as amended by Amendment
No. 1, effff eff ctive as of Februrr aryrr 16, 2022) (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 4.5 to tht e Registration Statement
on Formr Sဩ8 of Paramount Global fiff led October 7, 2022) (File No. 001ဩ09553) (as fuff rther amended by
Amendment No. 2, effff eff ctive as of Januaryrr 1, 2021) (fiff led herewith).*

(f)ff Paramount Global Bonus Defeff rral Plan foff r Designated Senior Executives - Part A (as amended and restated as of
October 1, 2021) (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(e) to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q of
ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the quq arter ended September 30, 2021) (File No. 001ဩ09553) (as amended by Amendment
No. 1, effff eff ctive as of Februrr aryrr 16, 2022) (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 4.10 to tht e Registration Statement
on Formr Sဩ8 of Paramount Global fiff led October 7, 2022) (File No. 001ဩ09553).*

(g) Paramount Global Bonus Defeff rral Plan foff r Designated Senior Executives - Part B (as amended and restated as of
October 1, 2021) (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(f)ff to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q of
ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the quq arter ended September 30, 2021) (File No. 001ဩ09553) (as amended by Amendment
No. 1, effff eff ctive as of Februrr aryrr 16, 2022) (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 4.10 to tht e Registration Statement
on Formr Sဩ8 of Paramount Global fiff led October 7, 2022) (File No. 001ဩ09553).*

(h) ViVV acom Inc. 2016 Long-TeTT rm Management Incentive Plan (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit A to the
Defiff nitive Proxy Statement of ViVV acom Inc. fiff led Januaryrr 23, 2015) (File No. 001-32686).*

(i) Forms of TeTT rms and Conditions to the Certififf cates foff r equitytt awards under the ViVV acom Inc. 2016 Long-TeTT rm
Management Incentive Plan:
(i) Stock Options (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q of ViVV acom

Inc. foff r the quq arter ended June 30, 2016) (File No. 001-32686).*
(ii) Restricted Share Units (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10.4 to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q of

ViVV acom Inc. foff r the quq arter ended June 30, 2016) (File No. 001-32686).*
(iii) Perfoff rmance Share Units (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q

of ViVV acom Inc. foff r tht e quarter ended December 31, 2018) (File No. 001-32686).*
(iv) Perfoff rmance Share Units (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(g)(iv) to the Annual Report on Form

10ဩK of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the fiff scal year ended December 31, 2020) (File No. 001-09553).*
(v) Restricted Share Units (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(g)(v) to the Annual Report on Formr 10-K

of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r tht e fiff scal year ended December 31, 2020) (File No. 001-09553).*
(j(( ) ViVV acom Excess Pension Plan, as amended and restated Januaryy 1, 2023 (fiff led herewith).*
(k) ViVV acom Excess 401(k) Plan foff r Designated Senior Executives, as amended and restated as of October 1, 2021

(incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(a) to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the
quarter ended Septembm er 30, 2021) (File No. 001ဩ09553).*

(l) ViVV acom Bonus Defeff rral Plan foff r Designated Senior Executives, as amended and restated as of October 1, 2021
(incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(d) to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the
quarter ended Septembm er 30, 2021) (File No. 001ဩ09553).*

(m) Summaryyrr of Paramount Global Compensation foff r Outside Directors (as of December 16, 2022) (fiff led herewith).*

(n) Formr of Director Indemnififf cation Agreement (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10 to the Currrr ent Report on
Form 8ဩK of CBS Corprr oration fiff led Septembm er 18, 2009) (File No. 001ဩ09553).*
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(o) CBS Corprr oration Defeff rrrr ed Compm ensation Plan foff r Outside Directors (as amended and restated as of Januaryr 29,
2015) (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(k) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of CBS Corprr oration foff r the
fiff scal year ended December 31, 2014) (File No. 001-09553).*

(p) CBS Corprr oration 2005 RSU Plan foff r Outside Directors (as amended and restated through Januaryrr 29, 2015)
(incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(m) to the Annual Report on Formr 10-K of CBS Corpr oration foff r the
fiff scal year ended December 31, 2014) (File No. 001-09553).*

(q) CBS Corprr oration 2015 Equitytt Plan foff r Outside Directors (effff eff ctive May 21, 2015) (incorpr orated by refeff rence to
Exhibit 10(a) to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of CBS Corpr oration foff r the quq arter ended June 30, 2015)
(File No. 001-09553).*

(r) ViVV acom Inc. 2011 RSU Plan foff r Outside Directors, as amended and restated as of Januaryrr 1, 2016 (incorprr orated
by refeff rence to Exhibit B to tht e Defiff nitive Proxy Statement of ViVV acom Inc. fiff led Januaryrr 23, 2015) (File No. 001-
32686), as fuff rther amended and restated as of May 18, 2016 (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Quarterly Report of ViVV acom Inc. foff r tht e quarter ended June 30, 2016) (File No. 001-32686).*

(s) Employment Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2019, between ViVV acom Inc. and Robert M. Bakish (incorprr orated
by refeff rence to Exhibit 10.4 to CBS Corprr oration’s Registrtt ation Statement No. 333-234238 on Form S-4 fiff led
October 17, 2019) (File No. 333-234238).*

(t) Letter Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2019, between ViVV acom Inc. and Robert M. Bakish (incorprr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 10.5 to CBS Corprr oration’s Registration Statement No. 333-234238 on Formr S-4 fiff led
October 17, 2019) (File No. 333-234238).*

(u) Employment Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2020, between ViVV acom Inc. and Naveen Chopra (incorprr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 10(a) to tht e Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the quq arter ended June
30, 2020) (File No. 333-234238).*

(v) Letter Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2020, between ViVV acomCBS Inc. and Naveen Chopra (incorprr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 10(b) to tht e Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r the quq arter ended June
30, 2020) (File No. 333-234238).*

(w) Employment Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2022, between Paramount Global and Christa A. D’Alimonte
(incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(a) to the Quartrr erly Report on Form 10-Q of Paramount Global foff r tht e
quarter ended March 31, 2022) (File No. 333-234238).*

(x) Employment Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2022, betwtt een Paramount Global and DeDe Lea (incorpr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 10(b) to tht e Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Paramount Global foff r the quq arter ended
March 31, 2022) (File No. 333-234238).*

(y) Employment Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2022, betwtt een Paramount Global and Nancy Phillips (incorprr orated
by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(c) to the Quarterly Report on Formr 10-Q of Paramount Global foff r tht e quarter ended
March 31, 2022 (File No. 001-09553).*

(z) Matching Giftff s Program foff r Directors (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(aa) to the Annual Report on Formr
10-K of CBS Corprr oration foff r the fiff scal year ended December 31, 2018) (File No. 001-09553).*

(aa) Amended and Restated $3.5 Billion Credit Agreement, dated as of Januaryrr 23, 2020 (the “Credit Agreement”),
among ViVV acomCBS Inc.; the Subu sidiaryrr Borrr owers party thereto; the Lenders named therein; JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent; Citibank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A. and WeWW lls Fargo Bank, National
Association, as Syndication Agents; and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., Goldman Sachs Bank USA, Mizuho
Bank, Ltd. and Morgan Stanley MUFG Loan Partners, LLC, as Documentation Agents (incorpr orated by refeff rence
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Formr 8-K of ViVV acomCBS Inc. fiff led Januaryrr 23, 2020) (File No. 001-
09553).

(bb) Amendment No. 1 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of December 9, 2021, by and among the parties listed
therein (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of ViVV acomCBS Inc. fiff led
December 14, 2021) (File No. 001-09553).

(cc) Amendment No. 2 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of Februrr aryrr 14, 2022, by and among the parties listed
therein (incorpr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(hh) to the Annual Report on Form 10ဩK of ViVV acomCBS Inc. foff r
the fiff scal year ended December 31, 2021) (File No. 001ဩ09553).

(dd) Settlement and Release Agreement effff eff ctive as of September 9, 2018 (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10(a)
to the Currr ent Report on Form 8-K of CBS Corprr oration fiff led September 10, 2018) (File No. 001-09553).

(ee) Amendment No. 1 to the Settlement and Release Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2019, by and among the
parties listed tht erein (incorprr orated by refeff rence to Exhibit 10.3 to the Currr ent Report on Form 8-K of CBS
Corprr oration fiff led August 19, 2019) (File No. 001-09553).

(ffff )ff Supu port Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2019, by and among the parties listed therein (incorprr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 10.1 to tht e Currrr ent Report on Form 8-K of CBS Corprr oration fiff led August 19, 2019) (File No.
001-09553).
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(gg) Governance Agreement, dated as of August 13, 2019, by and among tht e parties listed tht erein (incorprr orated by
refeff rence to Exhibit 10.2 to tht e Currrr ent Report on Form 8-K of CBS Corprr oration fiff led August 19, 2019) (File No.
001-09553).

(21) Subsidiaries of Paramount Global (fiff led herewith).
(23) Consents of Experts and Counsel

(a) Consent of Pricewaterhr ouseCoopers LLP (fiff led herewith).
(24) Powers of Attorney (fiff led herewith).
(31) Rule 13aဩ14(a)/15dဩ14(a) Certififf cations

(a) Certififf cation of the Chief Executive Offff iff cer of Paramount Global pursuant to RuRR le 13aဩ14(a) or 15dဩ14(a), as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of tht e Sarbr anesဩOxley Act of 2002 (fiff led herewith).

(b) Certififf cation of the Chief Financial Offff iff cer of Paramount Global. pursuant to RuRR le 13aဩ14(a) or 15dဩ14(a), as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of tht e Sarbr anesဩOxley Act of 2002 (fiff led herewith).

(32) Section 1350 Certififf cations
(a) Certififf cation of the Chief Executive Offff iff cer of Paramount Global fuff rnrr ished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,

as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbr anesဩOxley Act of 2002 (fuff rnrr ished herewith).
(b) Certififf cation of the Chief Financial Offff iff cer of Paramount Global fuff rnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tht e Sarbr anesဩOxley Act of 2002 (fuff rnished herewith).
(101) Interactive Data File

101. INS XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not apa pear in the Interactive Data File because
its XBRL tags are embm edded within tht e Inline XBRL document.
101. SCH XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Schema.
101. CAL XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Calculation Linkbk ase.
101. DEF XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Defiff nition Linkbk ase.
101. LAB XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Laba el Linkbkk ase.
101. PRE XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Presentation Linkbk ase.

(104) Cover Page Interactive Data File (foff rmatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Paramount Global has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized.

PARARR MOUNT GLOBAL

By: /s/ Robert M. Bakish
Robert M. Bakish
President and

ChiCC efe ExEE ecutive OfO fff iff cer

Date: Februar ryrr 16, 2023

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the folff lowing persons on
behalf of Paramount Global and in the capaa cities and on the dates indicated:

Signatureg Title Date

/s/ Robert M. Bakish
President and Chief

Executive Offff iff cer; Director
(Principal Executive Offff iff cer)

Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Robert M. Bakish

/s/ Naveen Chopra
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Offff iff cer

(Principal Financial Offff iff cer)
Februar ryrr 16, 2023

Naveen Chopra

/s/ Katherine Gill-Charest

Executive Vice President,
Controller and

Chief Accounting Offff iff cer
(Principal Accounting Offff iff cer)

Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Katherine Gill-Charest

* Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Candace K. Beinecke

* Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Barbar ra M. Byrne

* Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Linda M. Griego

* Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Robert N. Klieger



Signatureg Title Date

* Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Judith A. McHale

* Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Ronald L. Nelson

* Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Charles E. Phillips, Jr.

* Chair Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Shari Redstone

* Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Susan Schuman

* Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023
Nicole Seligman

*
Director Februar ryrr 16, 2023

Frederick O. Terrell

*By: /s/ Christa A. D’Alimonte
Februar ryrr 16, 2023Christa A. D’Alimonte

Attorneye -in-FacFF t
forff Directorsrr



CERTIFICATION

I, Robert M. Bakish, certifyff that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Paramount Global;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untruerr statement of a material faff ct or omit to state a
material faff ct necessaryrr to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the fiff nancial statements, and other fiff nancial inforff mation included in this report,
faff irly present in all material respects the fiff nancial condition, results of operations and cash flff ows of the
registrant as of,ff and forff , the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifyiff ng offff iff cer and I are responsible forff establa ishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defiff ned in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
fiff nancial reporting (as defiff ned in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(f)ff and 15d-15(f)ff ) forff the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material inforff mation relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over fiff nancial reporting, or caused such internal control over fiff nancial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonabla e assurance regarding the reliabia lity
of fiff nancial reporting and the preparation of fiff nancial statements forff external purposrr es in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effff eff ctiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions abouta the effff eff ctiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiff scal quarter (the registrant's fourff th fiff scal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affff eff cted, or is reasonabla y likely to materially affff eff ct, the
registrant’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifyiff ng offff iff cer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over fiff nancial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons perforff ming the equivalent funcff tions):

(a) All signififf cant defiff ciencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
fiff nancial reporting which are reasonabla y likely to adversely affff eff ct the registrant’s abia lity to record,
process, summarize and report fiff nancial inforff mation; and

(b) Any frff aud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a signififf cant
role in the registrant’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting.

Date: Februarr ryrr 16, 2023
/s/ Robert M. Bakish
Robert M. Bakish
President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer

Exhibit 31(a)



CERTIFICATION

I, Naveen Chopra, certifyff that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Paramount Global;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untruerr statement of a material faff ct or omit to state a
material faff ct necessaryrr to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the fiff nancial statements, and other fiff nancial inforff mation included in this report,
faff irly present in all material respects the fiff nancial condition, results of operations and cash flff ows of the
registrant as of,ff and forff , the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifyiff ng offff iff cer and I are responsible forff establa ishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defiff ned in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
fiff nancial reporting (as defiff ned in Exchange Act RulRR es 13a-15(f)ff and 15d-15(f)ff ) forff the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material inforff mation relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over fiff nancial reporting, or caused such internal control over fiff nancial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonabla e assurance regarding the reliabia lity
of fiff nancial reporting and the preparation of fiff nancial statements forff external purposrr es in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effff eff ctiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions abouta the effff eff ctiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiff scal quarter (the registrant's fourff th fiff scal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affff eff cted, or is reasonabla y likely to materially affff eff ct, the
registrant’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifyiff ng offff iff cer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over fiff nancial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons perforff ming the equivalent funcff tions):

(a) All signififf cant defiff ciencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
fiff nancial reporting which are reasonabla y likely to adversely affff eff ct the registrant’s abia lity to record,
process, summarize and report fiff nancial inforff mation; and

(b) Any frff aud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a signififf cant
role in the registrant’s internal control over fiff nancial reporting.

Date: Februarr ryrr 16, 2023
/s/ Naveen Chopra
Naveen Chopra
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Offff iff cer

Exhibit 31(b)



Certififf cation Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Paramount Global (the “Company”) on Form 10-K forff the year ended
December 31, 2022 as fiff led with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Robert M. Bakish,
President and Chief Executive Offff iff cer of the Company, certifyff that to my knowledge:

1. the Report fulff ly complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. the inforff mation contained in the Report faff irly presents, in all material respects, the fiff nancial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Robert M. Bakish
Robert M. Bakish
Februarr ryrr 16, 2023

Exhibit 32(a)



Certififf cation Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Paramount Global (the “Company”) on Form 10-K forff the year ended
December 31, 2022 as fiff led with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the ”Report”), I, Naveen Chopra,
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Offff iff cer of the Company, certifyff that to my knowledge:

1. the Report fulff ly complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. the inforff mation contained in the Report faff irly presents, in all material respects, the fiff nancial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Naveen Chopra
Naveen Chopra
Februarr ryrr 16, 2023

Exhibit 32(b)
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